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ABOUT US

Estabfished in 1957, Cerabral
Palsy Allance Singapore

OUR VISION

Empowering persans with
cerabral palsy o mulliphe
disabilities to realise their full
patential and lead fulfilled,
dignifled lives.
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The Firancial Year 2024/25 has been an exciting
and meaningful one for CPAS, With refined
programmes, strategic partnerships, and greatar
public angagamenl, wa continue 10 evalve o mesl
the diverse needs of our over 800 clents with cerabral
palay or multiple disabilites. As you read through this
Annual Report, | invite you 1o learm more aboul the
progress we have made, and the people behind it

This milestona year alsa coincides with 5G80—a time
for Singapore 1o celebrate cur nation-bullding journey
and shared values. At CPAS, it iz a fitting moment
to commemarale six dacades of senvice o persans
with cerebral patey or mulliple disabilities. Reflecting
on this legacy is vital as it honows the cowage,
commitment, and community spiril that have shapead
our organisation

Our story began in 1857, when a small group of
volunteers bed by Professor Elaine Field started a
class for ten children with cerebral palsy. Socn after,
the Spastic Children's Associaticn of Singapore was
formally established at “Field House® on Gilstead
Foad.

In 1884, we axtanded our reach with the launch of the
Goodwill, Rehabilitation and Occupational Workshop
(GROW) at McMair Road, providing vocational training
and employment to adults with disabilities. Today,
GROW supports 100 clients with purpose and dignity.

In 2004, we opensd our main campus—ine Cerebral
Palsy Cantra at Pasir Ris—officiated by then Prima
Mirdeter Lee Hsien Loorng. In response to growing
needs, we launched EIFIC&Cove in 2011 and, in

CHAIRPERSON'S
MESSAGE

2013, adopled our current name—Caerebral Palsy
Allance Singapore—to better reflect cur inclusive
mEssan,

In 2023, we expanded further with the opening of
CPAS School (West), cur second govemnment-funded
SPED school, offering customised education for
students with higher support neads,

Looking ahead, we are exploring the development
ol a programme targeled at posl-55 seniors with
disabiliies, with a potential launch in the coming
years, We are also working towards increasing our
enrolment to 1000, to ensure broader access lo
education, therapy, and vocatonal support.

Az we celebrate SGE0 and our own B0-year journey,
we remain guided by tha same values of boldness,
reslllence, and inclusion. On behalf of the Board, |
thank our clianis, families, voluntears, eand partners for
thedr urwavering suppoe

Let us continue forward together with purposs and
cOmpassian.

Dr Janlce Wong
Chairparson,

Carabral Palsy AMance Singapore
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Al CPAS, we believe thal the strength of an
crganksation lies not anly in the quality of its Individual
parts, but in how wall those parts work together. The
theme of this year's Annual Report, “Pleces Thal Fil,
Strength We Bulld", reflects the value we place on
collaboration across departments and programmaes,
Lika a puzzle, sach programme and department
contributes its wunique shape and purpese, it is only
whan fitted together with infention that we create
a compiete and impactiul picture of support for our
clients and thair families

COwar tha past year, we have sean how collaboration
empowers our clients in meaningful ways. The
Sibtopia workshop, & joint initistive by our Soclal
Work and Psychology depariments, sxemplifies
this. Desigred to support mneurctypical siblings of
children with special nesds from both owr EIPIC
and CPAS School programmes, Sibtopia created a
sale space for connection, expression, and healing,
Through reflective activities and heartfelt |etiers from
parania, tha workshop reminded sach child that thay,
oo, are valued members of the family, The impact
was immediate—participants reported feeling more
undearsiood and expressed a dasire to play a mare
active role in their sibling's lives

Anpther example s the collaboration betwean
our Day Actvity Centre and Assistive Technology
Hub to support Chan Y1 Zhen, a 30-year-oid client
with communication  difficulies.  Through regular
consultations, the team identified speciic assistive
lools—including switch-access technology and
leaming apps like HelpKidzLearm—ihat matched Y1
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Zhen's abilities and learning style. With structured
support, she began using custom tocls like the
"Top Worksheet” to complete tasks independenthy,
Her confidence has since grown significantly—she
now responds to guestions with minimal prompting
and recently completed an entire lesson  activity
indapendently using the agp.

These stories are a testament to the strength we buibd
when wa coms togethar with a shared purpose. As
wa look ahead, we remaln committed to deepening
these collaborations and expanding our services, In
daing so0, we anaura that every puzzle piece—be it
education, therapy, employment supporl, or family
engagement—cantinues to align and contribute to a
mare inclusiva future for parsons with cerabral palsy
and mulliphe dizabilities.

Thank wou to all our staff for your dedication,
professicnalism, and unwavering commitment o this
shared mission.

Ms. Latha Kulty
Exsputive Direcior.

Cerabyal Palsy Allance Singapora
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HIGHLIGHTS HIGHLIGHTS
OF THE YEAR OF THE YEAR
SUMMARY FINANCIAL

SUMMARY FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE PERFORMANCE

INCOME EXPENSES

. 2 %;

Ty <
i?i Spacitic Donations o e B General & Administrative Cost
General Donations $1,171,372 000o $1,825,265
$908,865 ) Wi Othars

L $5,511,203

&

Total Expenses

?

Government Grants

P

Total Income $9,795,564 S
$20,453,744 $20,545,526 :{éf:

$13.209,058
b4

Others®
$8,577,943

“Others includes GST Expense, Interest Expense & Depreciation (ROU Asset), Utilisation of

*Others includes ProgrammeTherapy Fees, TOL Fee, Wage Credit Scheme, and Others.
specific fund, Upkeep and utilities, and Others.
m
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PROGRAMMES

Programme Overview

The Early Intervention Programme for Infamls and
Childran {EIPIC) supports children under six years old
who require madium to high levals of early intervantion
(El} support.

The programme aims to increese each child's
davalopmental growth potential in several key areas.
These Inclede fosterng positive soclal-emotional
relationships, supporting the acquisition and use of
knowledge, and encouraging appropriate behaviours

Statistics:
T'otal Enroimant as of 31 March 2025: 248

EARLY INTERVENTION PROGRAMME FOR
INFANTS AND CHILDREN (EIPIC)

o help children meet their needs. It also works to
minimise the development of secondary disabilities
and maximise opporunities for integration into
mainstream settings.

CPAS offers & range al EIPIC senvices lailored
Iz differert needs. These [nclude EIPIC&Cantra,
EIPIC Under2s, the High-Needs Grant, home-based
imtanvention, and DS-Plus,

Breakdown by parcants of diagnostic profile of Chants as of 31 March 2025;

Aufiam/Suapected Autiam

Global Developmental Delay

Client Spotlight: Charlotte
Charlotts ks a cheerlul and lively young girl who brings
oy to everyone around her. A delight to work with, she
has shown remarkable growth in both her social and
physical development over tha past year.

Charlotte enjoys interacting with her peers and
has made significant progress in iniiating thess
interactions more confidently. She has also shown
improvement in expressing her emations, effectively
using communication charts and simpls 2 to 3-word
phrases o share ber feslings and needs.

Physically, Charlotte has demaonsirated increasad
sirangth and endurance, aspecially in walking. With
the support of her assistive walking equipment, she
can take independent sieps more steadily

Har resilience and positive spirlt continue 1o Inspire
those around her, making her a shining example of
progress and peraeverance,

| Oihar disabilities

: Diowmn Bymdroms

Cerabral Palay and multiple dizabilities

Programme Highlights

1. Showcasing Progress al the Early Intervention
Conference 2024

As part of our commitment o professional
develcpment and knowledge sharing, the EIPIC team
participated in the Early Intervention Conference
in April 2024, Ouwr educators proudly presentied
Innovative assistive teaching devices through an
engaging booth display, showcasing practical tools
designed to suppor the kaming and development of
children with special needs. The prasentation drew
intereat from fellow professionals in the field and was
honoured by a visit from Minister Masagos Zulkifl,
highlighting the importance of inclusive practices and
the role of innovation in early imterventian,

2, Celebrating Children at EIPIC Children's
Day 2024

To celebrate Children’s Day this year, the Early
Intervention Programme for Infants and Children
({EIPIC) organised a vibrant and inclusive carnival
designed 1o bring joy o cur students and their
families. Held at Pasir Ris Elias Community
Club—chosen for its accessibilty and history of
collaboration with CPAS—tha event offered a sale
and engaging environment tallored fo mest the
unigue neads of our childran.

The camival featured an exciting lineup of activities
including bouncy castles, & ball pit, drip painting,
balloon sculpling, glitter fattoos, and a baboon
dome, Caregivers weare warmly Invited to jain In
the fun, creating am Aimosphers of community
celabration. The strong turmout during both marning
ardd afterncon - sessions reflected the event's
success, with many parents expressing appreciation
for the apportunity to share a joylul and meaningful
axperience with thedr children,




CPAS SCHOOL (EAST)

Programme Overview

CPAS School (East) is a double-session Special Education (SPED) school serving students with mederate to
sevane mulliple disabilities aged betwean 7 and 18 years old. We offer the SPED Curriculum as recommendad
by the Ministry of Education. To realise its vision, the school focuses on equipping students with the ability to
manage daily living activities, communicate effectively, and travel independently, In fine with individual abilities.
Thess areas arg integrated across thrae programmes: the Academic Programme (Acad), Functional Programma
{FP), and High Support Programme (HSP)

Statistics:

Tolal Enrolmant as o

Oihar disabilities
| Duchenns Muscular Dystrophny

Client Feature: Wee Zhi Qing Bravienne

Wes Zhl Qing Bravienne, a student with Cerebral
Palsy and Global Devalopmantal Delay, axemplifias
leadership, resllience, and creativity, As Head Prefect,
she confidently leads school tours and contributes
to wvideo editing and graphic dasign. Through
perseverance and support fram her teachers and the
Trans-Disciplinary team, she has become proficient
in using the iPad. Her skills ware showcasad during
Apple CEQ Tim Cook's visit and in a llve CNAS3S
interview. An active Scout, Bravienne demonsirated
independence on a school irip o Melbowns and
recaived Leadership Awards In 2023 and 2024, She
was nominated for the 2025 Lee Kuan Yew Exemplary
Studant Award.

Programme Highlights
1. Breaking Barriers: Visit by Apple CED Tim Cook

On 18 April 2024, CPAS School (East) had the honour
of hosting Apple GEQ Tim Cook, The visit provided
an opportunity io showcass how Apple technalogy is
meaningfully integrated |mo teaching and learming o
support stedents with diverse needs, During the visit,
student Darren demonstrated how he uses an iPad
with custom |oysticks and switches 1o design digital
gtickess using the Keynole app. Student Aloysius
engaged Tim using an iPhane eguipped with tha Live
Speech feature and the Prologuo2Go app, sharing his
hobbies and creative projecis.

This visit affirmed the efforls of CPAS educators
In incorporating  assistive  technology to foster
sccessibility, engagement, and independaence in
leaming. CPAS remains commitled 1o leveraging
technology to empower students to communicate,
leam, and paricipata meaningfully 0 their
cammunities.

2. Accessible Adventures: High Support Holiday
Programme

On & June 2024, the High Support Programme
collaborated with Republic Polytechnic's Senscry
Circus (Diploma In Arts and Theatre Managemsant) to
deliver a multi-eensory experience ai The Republic
Cuttural Cenfre. Highlights incluced Oddysea:
Jourmney Into the Deep Blue, a music performance
by the AP Band, and a Music and Movemeant activity
by CPASS. The evenl offered meaninglul holiday
engagement and was later showcased at the Arts and
Disability Forum on 25 March 2025 at Esplanade -
Thealraes on the Bay, with an audience of 300

3. Outdoor Education Programme: Melbourne
Adventure Trip

From 2022 to 2024, CPAS School parinered with
Republic Poltechnic’'s School of Sporls, Health
and Leisure o implement & three-year outdoor
expanantial l[eaming programme designed to build
sludants' confidance and self-esteam. Guided by a
“challenge by cholce” approach, students engaged
in progressively demanding activities &t thair own
pace, supparted by Republic Polytechnic stalf and
studant voluntesrs,

Tha programme culminated in a six-day overseas
rip in September 2024 to YMCA Camp Manyung
in Melbourne, Austraiia, involving 24 students from
CPAS School (East) and CPAS School (West).
Located on the scanic Mominglon Penirsula, the
inclusive campsite offered accessible facilities and
a wide rangs of culdoor activities including the fying
fox, ree rolling, glam swing, and a camplire session.
‘While some activities were physically and emotionally
challenging, studants showed remarkable courags,
supported one another, and embraced new
experiences beyond their comfart 2ones,

This trip was made possible through the generous
spansorship of Singapore Alrlines under the 2023 S1A
Cares fundraising initiative. In addition to supporting
the trip, the ramaining funds fram the initiative will go
towards enhancing speclal education programmes
through the purchase of assistive fechnology and
aguipmant.



CPAS SCHOOL (WEST)

Programme Overview Statistics:

CPAS School (West) serves students aged 7 to 18
years with moderate to severa mullipls disabilities.
Sludents are placed in either the Functional Breakdown by percentage of diagnostic
Programme (FFP) or High Support Programme (HSF) profile of Clis of 31 March 2025:

basad on their individual needs.

Total Enrolimant as of 31 March 2025: T2

The Functonal Programme caters fo  students MM
requiring moderate support in daily living and GDD with other disahilities

leaming. Senicr studerts develop pre-vocational -
skllis, and those assessed o have potential for open Cther disabilities

or shettared employment are trained at the school's
social anterprise, MiniMart@CPAS. Tha High Support
Programme supports students with higher needs In
makbility, fime motar skills, self-halp, and leaming. The
curricuium focuses on promoling wall-being through
a holistic approach.

Client Feature: Avery Chua Han Yu

Awvary, from Class 4C, began her joumsy with
significant challenges In communicaticn, mobility,
and seli-care, Through the use of her Augmentative
and Alternative Communication (AAC) davice, she
gained confidence in real-ife settings, including
national events. Teachers introduced cycling and
frama running o support her motor dewvslogment,
while self-feeding skills were strengthened through
gradual withdrawal of assistance. Adapted learning
materiais and home-schoo!  collaboration  further
supported her academic growth. A milestone was
reached when Avery led the school in pledge-taking
uging har AAC device. Today, she demonstrales
improved communication, physical coordination, and
independence.

Programme Highlights

1. From Skills to Seli-Discovery: The Power of
EnrichME!

Launched in 2024, the EnrichME| afier-school
enrichment programme was designad to provide
senior students with meaningful cpportunities 1o
explore their interests and acquire essential |ife
skills. Activities offered includs visual arts, baking,
gardening, community mobility (Let's Go Jalan
Jatanl), financial iteracy, cooking, and IT enrichment,
These termiy modulss aim 1o promote autonomy,
creativity, and social interaction culside the academic
curriculum. Motable outcomes nciude the creaton
ol a student-cesigned sensory garden and the
development of digital resources for school Lse,
showcasing students’ practical contributicns,

Through EnrichME!, students gained hands-on
experience, enhanced thelr communication skills, and
developed a sense of ownership over their learning.
The programme reflects CPAS School (West)s
commitment to providing a helistic and inclusive
educational experience that prepares students for
greater independence and community participation.

2. Racing Towards Independence: Frame Running
Programme

Frame Running, a para sport for individuals with
mobility challenges, empowers students 1o build
physical sirangth and confidance through competitive
alhletics. In 2024, studenls from the Frame Bunning
CCA achleved commendable results at the National
Para Athletics Championships and the Haw Par
Mational Youth Para Athletics Meel, earning multiple
top three finishes. These achievements are a
testarmant to their dedication, resilience, and sparting
axcallance.

Beyond competition, Frame Running promaotes
physical fiiness and encourages studants 1o sat and
pursue personal goals. To bulld capacity, two staff
members—Mr Tan Choon Kiang (Job Coach) and
Ms Ni Ni Swe (Senlor Physiotherapist}—attended
an intemational Framae Running Coaching Cowrse in
Caopenhagen, Denmark, from 7 to 14 July 2024, Their
participation, supported by the Singapore Disability
Sports Councdl, has strengthened the school's
abilty to deliver specialised sporis programmes
that promote empowerment, nclusicn, and lifelong
physical activity.

3. Gaming for Good: Success at the ECO-Game
Design Challenge 2024

Theee studenis from the IT Enrichment Programms
took part in the Mational Environment Agency's ECO-
Game Design Challange, held from September to
October 2024. Their submission, "Urgent Business”,
wan 1st Priza in the Special Education School
category, outperforming entries from five other
schools. The gams, 8 creative adaptation of Snakes
and Ladders, was designed to promate public
tollet hyglene by incorporating visual humour and
educational elements. This achievement highlightsd
fha students' ability 1o apply creative thinking and
teamwark o address real-world soctal issues
Through the design process, students improved
their digital literacy, communication, and problem-
solving skills, Thedr success aleo exempiifies how
inclusive education and enrichment programmes
can purtune innovation and advocacy in studanis
with disabllities.




GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL

WORKSHOP (GROW)

Programme Overview

The GROW sheltared workshop provides vocational
training and a range of work experiences for adults
aged 18 years old and above with cerebral palsy and
multipla disabilities, many of whom experience mator
skill challenges. The programme leatures four primary
product and service aress designed to enhance
employability and indepandence,

Project Works offers subcontracted manual tasks
such as foiding die-cul boxes, labsling, packaging,
and companent assambly. These tasks allow trainees
to develop fine motor skills through hands-on practice,
Although such subcontract opportunities  have
becomea mora limited in recant yaars, eflorts to sacure
new projects conlinue. Trainees alsc participate
in eco-friendly initiatives, including shredding and
pulping paper o create upcyclad notebooks.

Statistics:
Total Enrolment as of 31 March 2025: 100 clients

Far those who are [T-literate and cognitively able,
GROW's IT-Hub trains trainess in digital design and
office-related tasks. Using professional software, thay
produce greeling cards, name cards, and printed
materials, while also gaining experience in decument
scanning and data antry. With a fully equipped
digital printing facility and status as a GeBIZ Partner,
GROW serves numerous governmant and educational
inatitutions.

Tralnees with artistic abllities recelve training in
tradifional acrylic and walercclour painting. Their
artworks are highly scught after and are reproduced
on corporate gifis and greeting cards, In addition,
GROW operates a cafeteria, gift shop, and pushcarts
to provide trainees with practical retail experience,
Including customer service and financial Meracy,

Breakdown by parcentage of diagnostic profile of Clients as of 31 March 2025:

' Carsbral Palsy
| Ciher disabilitiss

| Awtizm Spectrum Disorder

Global Developmental Daelay

Down Syndrome

Client Feature: Dang Yun Ying

Since jolning GROW in 2023, Dang Yum Ying has
made significant prograss. Initlally reserved and
communicating only in Mandarin, she guickly adapted
o packing lasks despite her mobility Bmilations.
During cross-training, her artistic talent emerged, and
hear artwork was later exhibited at multiple events, In
mid-2024, she joined the GROW IT-Hub, where she
excalled In designing festive greeting cards using
Canva. These designs were faatured in the CPAS
g-shop. Her commilment, crealivity, and drive have
Inspired her peers and reflected the transformative
potential of the GROW programme,

%

Programme Highlights

1. Art Meets Retail: Collaboration with Link's Malls
Link REIT Collaboration

In parinership with Link's Malls, GROW artist Ang
Wal Lun created a festive artwork that was printed
on tote bags for the "Enchanted Forest” Chrisimas
evant at malls such as Jurong Point, Swing By @
Thomsan Plaza, and AMEK Hub. This inltiative not ondy
celebrated inclusive art but also offered shoppers an
opportunity to support persons with cerabral palsy or
multiple disabilibes through CPAS.

2. Celebrating Heritage Through Art: Amity Global
Institute Mural

GROW artist Mdm Minah Binl Mohd, guided by
art inetructor Mr Patrick Yes, painted a Singapore-
themed mural for Amity Global Institute. Installed on
the AG| campus wall, the mural reflects the arlst's
regilience and creative expreaaion whila spotlighting
Singapora’s cultural vibrancy. The collaboration
demonstrates the power of art In highlighting the
abilities of people with cerabral palsy or multiple
disabilities.

3. Showcasing Ability: Shaping Hearts 2024
GROW participated in Shaping Hearis 2024,
Singapore's largest inclusive arts festival, crganised
by Morth East COIC. Five artworks by GROW fralnees
ware exhibited at Sengkang Grand Mall and
Promenadea MAT station, celebrating the creativity
ared talent of artists with disablities on a national
platfarm.

4, Public Engagement Through Booth Sales

GROW was inviled to participate in various booth sale
avents throughout the year, including MINDEF's Mig-
Autumn Festival and 3G Enable’s I'm Collective Gift
Market, These events provided valuable platforms
for trainees o angage with the public, enhance their
communication skills, and experience real-life retad
interactions. Members of the public showed strong
support for the handoraftad merchandise produced
by our trainees, fostering both awareness and
appreciation for their abilities,




DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE (DAC)

Programme Overview

The Day Actrity Centre (DAC) provides day care
sanvices for adults with carsbral palsy or multiple
dizabllities, aged 18 1o 55 years, who reguire higher
levels of support. Established in February 2006,
DAC offsers a8 balanced and structured curriculum
that promotes self-help skills, soclal inclusion, and
rehabilitation. Chenls engage in & wide range of
activities such as lraining in Activities of Daily Living
(ADL), community Iving, and social and Interpersonal
skills, They also participate in language and cognitive
activities, music and movement, as wall as receive
therapy services including occupational therapy,

physiotherapy, and speech therapy, The programme
aims o empowar clients to lead more meaningful ves
while offering caregivers essential respite and peace
aof mind,

Statistics:
Total Enrolmant as of 31 March 2025: 58 clienls

Breakdown by percentage of diagnostic profils of
Clients as of 31 March 2025;

Client Feature: Jia Jie

Jia Jie, a 25-year-oid client from Daisy Class, has
mads natable progress in salf-help and mability skills,
Initlally unmativated and requiring frequent prompling,
she now Independently wheals herself throughout the
Centre and assists with claseroom routines. With the
caonsistent support of her Training Officers and Aldes,
Jia Jie has also learmned to transfer herself from her
wheelchair during toilsting and helps open doors
for her peers. Her translormation from a dependent
to a corfident and helpful classmate Is a testament
ta her determination and the stafi's encouragameant,
Jia Jie now takes pride In assisting teachers, such
as cleaning up after activities—demonstrating the
empowarmant that comes with skill development and
sall-badiaf.

2. DAC Community Engagement & Activities

Throughouwt the year, DAC organised diverse
communily activilleg that enriched owr clients’
axperiences  and  strengthered  community
partnerships. In August, Singapora Land Pte Lid
sponsored an exceptonal outing lor 50 clients 1o
Gardens by the Bay, where dedicated wolunteers
aesisted with accesaibility needs while exploring the
Flower Dome and Cloud Forest,

Ow annual DAC Fun Fair in Oclober brought
together staff and clienls for games, lood, and
arts & crafts, successiully raising $3,178.80 for
DAC Project Engage funds. December marked a

Programme Highlights
1. Story Massage for High Support Needs

In 2024, the Story Massage Programme was
infroduced  in Sunflower Class, enhancing
engagement amang clients with high support needs.
This activity combines positive towch with storytelling,
rhymes, or songs, aiming fo improve communication,
social interaction, and self-confidence. Clients
responced  through gestures and  expressions,
showing increased emotional engagement. Staff
capability also improved, as Training Cfficer Aidas
galned the skills and confidence to faclliate Story
Massage independently foliowing ftraining and
classroom attachments.

valuable healthcare initialive as 43 clients receivad
eye screenings from MNgee Ann  Polytechnic's
Year 3 Optomeatry students, fostering educational
partnerships whils addressing client wallness needs.

The Orchid class concluded the year with an engaging
urban famm tour at Park Royal Hotel in March, whers
clients participated In hands-on vegelable tempura
making and enjoyed hospitality from hotel staff
These activities demonstrate DAC's commitmeant to
providing  meaningful community exparences that
promote social inclusion, health awareness, and iife
skille developmeant for our clients,




CPAS CONNECT ALUMNI

Programme Overview

Established in October 2018, the CPAS Connact Alumnd Programme aims to engage students and clients who
have graduated from CPAS School or left the programmes under Adult Services, Through the provision of
heofistic services including activities, ad-hoc events and mentoring for employment, CPAS Connect provides
opporitunities for membars to further develop their lalents and skills.

Client Spotlight: Jeralyn Tan

Jeralyn Tan Is a proud Cerebral Palsy Alllance Singapora (CPAS) Alumnl Programme member. She actively
participatad in digital art inftiatives and regulary joined the outings crganisad by the programme. Through shear
hard work and determination, she recently achieved a significant milsstone by representing Singapore al the
Paris Paralympic Games. She was awarded a Silver medal In women's Individual BC1 event, the first Boccla
Paralympic medalist for Singapore. Her achievernent showcased her dedication, talent, and spirit intermationally.

Jeralyn picked up the sport as a co-curricular activity in 2008, when she was a student in CPAS, She received
guidance from her alumni teacher and support from her coach and Allied Health Professionals; including
assistance from the seating clinic provided by a CPAS Occupational Therapist.

Jeralyn has also conducted talks and shared at schools and crganisations, fostering greater understanding and
support for people with disabiliies. She inspirad the community by sharing her journey as & Boccia Medallist,
breaking barriers far persons with disanilites, and championing inciusion through her leadership, advecacy, and
outreach within the PWD community and the malnstream. Her dedication to advecacy and empowarment made
her a frue leader and rale model within and beyond the CPAS commumity,

Statistics:
Total En 1 as of 31 March 2025: 45 clients

Breskdown by peroentage of diagnos
Clierts as of 31 March 2025:

i .Gambr-aj Palay

Global Developmantal Dalay

Programme Highlights

Collaboration with SMU

The collaboration batween the Cerebral Palsy Alllance
Singapore {CPAS) Connect Alumni Programme and
fwst-year students from  Singapore Managemsant
University (SMLY) has fostared meaningful interactions Physical sessions were conducted in CPAS every
through a blend of virtual, physical, and outing-basad Tuesday covering Life BExperiences, Hands-on
activities. Activities, Arl & Crafts, Gardening, |nteractive

Games and ent
SMU organised vinual sessions that “walk” CPAS S0 IORIoR O SeTpOwE

CPAS THERAPY REHABILITATION PROGRAMME

Programme Overview

The Home Managemant Programme (HMP) specialises in providing comprebensive therapy and intervention
senvices to inchviduals with cerebral palsy and associated disablites, for betier sockal and community
engagement. Litilising an interdisciplinary approach, our registered therapisis offer a variaty of therapies,
including physiotherapy, occupational therapy, and speech-language therapy directly at the client's residences
for maximised convenlence and efficacy,

The Dutpatient Programme at CPAS offers specialised therapy and intervention services fo chents diagnosad
with cerebral palsy and other physical disabilities for better social and community participation. This prograrmmse
Is designed for clients who can commute to our centre, elther independantly or through caregiver assistance

Statistics:
Tatal Enralment as of 31 March 2025: 63 clients

| Cerabral Paley

Autiemn Spectrum Disorder
| Associated Byndroms

| Global Development Detay

Client Spotlight: Suhana

At 48, Buhana Binte Suhaimi's journey exemplifies
how dedicated rahablitation support trareforms fvas,
Living with cerebral palsy and dysionia, she has
flourished through CPAS' comprehensive outpatient
senvices over the past five years.

After a 2015 fall ended her administrative career
and caussd persisten back pain, Suhana joined
CPAS In 2019, receiving weekly physiotherapy
and occupational therapy sessions through the
CPAS Therapy Rehabilitation Programma. The
physiotherapy  programme  focuses on preserving
her range of motion, preventling confractures, and
improving balance through targefed upper limb
exercises, Her therapists prescribed a lumbar brace
and home exarcise regimen to manage chronic back
pain affaciively.

Simultanecuwsly, CPAS  occupational  therapy
programme addresses three crucial areas: enhancing
maotor function through strength and coordination
exercises, buflding sel-halp skifls  for  dally
independence, and providing assistive technology
evaluations for adaptive davices incleding matorised
whaeichalrs

This comprehensive supporl has prevented physical
detaricration while maintaining Suhana's mobility and
Independence. Empowered by this stability, she has
pursued remarkable achievements: saming a 2021
Modalling Award from Singapora Fashion Rurmway,
recedving a 10-Year Long Service Award for community
voluniearing, and growing her home-based baking
business, Pelangl Delights, which secured a Maybank
grant in 2025.

Suhana's story demonstrates CPAS™  holistic
approach to rehabilitation, enabling individwals to
not just malntain function, but thrive and contribute
meaningfully to socisty. - i)

alumni through inleractive axperiances, daily living,
music, sensory engagemant, soclal stores and life
experiences conducted fortnightly for 5 months.

This hybnd programme featured both virtual sessons
and physical weekly engagements, culminating in a
heartwarming closing campfire at CPAS,




OUR ALLIED HEALTH PROFESSIONALS

Cur Alked Health Professionals extend a comprehenshee range of speclalised healthcare and support to
our chients

Assistive

Technology Hub Physiotherapy Sl.'ﬂ:ll.i Work

Occupational Psychology Speech and Language
Therapy Fathology




ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY HUB

Department Overview

Assistive Technology (AT) relers to any iem,
equipment, or system that enhances the functional
capabilities of indviduals with disabilifies in daily living,
learming, and wark. The CPAS Assiztive Technology
Hub supports chents by providing personalised AT
solutions, training staff and carsgivers o integrate
these tools into daily routines and creating inclusive
envircnments through home and centre modifications,

Client Feature: 'C’

Far clients like DAC Client 'C’, who has spastic
quadriplegia and no functional hand movement,
independent mobility once seemed unattainable,
Through the integration of advanced AT—such as
R-Met powered wheelchairs, Omnal Controd systems,
and input devices like head arrays and sip-and-puff
systems—C is now ampowered to drive independertly.
These technologies interpret sublie head movements
or breath inputs o control movement, offering safety,
precigion, and fresdom of mability.

Statistics:

® Total of 25
upekill TRAC

s {54 out of
of function ac
on, measured on the Adapted
upatioral Perfomancea Measura

Department Highlights:

The Innovation Wing at AT HUB is a cynamic
Initiathve  fostering  creativity and  problem:-
solving through internal expertise and exsmal
collabaration. lta mission focusas on devaloping
Innowvative solutions for chents' unique challenges
through ideation, prototyoing, and implementation
of user-centarad innovations.

The Imncvation Wing successfully dellvered
numerous  aclutions  enhancing  classroom
participation and indepandent lsarning, Including
30 printed |elly bean switch mounts, autcmated
flag machines, and lift accessible buttons,

MNotably, we collaboraled with ST Enginesring
to create Rain Shield, a customised hands-free
davice protecting poweared mobilty usars from
hesavy raim during travel.

OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY

Department Overview:

The Dccupational Therapy (OT) Departmant supporis clients in achisving functional independence in daily
Iving, learning, and working through purposeful activities and targeted intervantions. Key focus areas include
upper limo management; hard function and fine motor skills such as pre-writing, writing, and typing; positioning
and mehbility training for wheelchair and power chair users; sensory processing for dally tasks, classrocom
learniryg, and play; visual perception and cognition; and activities of daily living and life skills traning. The OT
depariment also manages the Seating and Posture Clinle, Hand Clinic and Splinting, Sensory Processing and
Sansory Integration Clinic,

Statistics:

= 23 new seating systems provided; 33 seating modifications completad.

& 506 equipment repairs carried oul (special seating, wheselchairs, power chairs, bug

= G0% of rapaies wers for school clients; 10% for DAC, GROW, 0P, and HMP chants

Client Feature: Arthur Dominic

Arthur Dominic, a 5-year-old EIPIC clent with Global
Developmental Delay, presented with poor posture
and excessive writing pressure due to reduced body
awareness and pencil control. Occupational therapy
interventions, including the use of a8 compression vest
and fine maotor raining with adaptive pencil grips, led o
Improved postura, pressure control, and a mature grasp.
Ha now damonstrates greater independence, confidence,
and active participation in group writing activities,

Department Highlights:
Occupational Therapy Day 2025: Growing Through Gardening
In celebration of Occupational Therapy Day 2025, the department organised a gardening El-ﬂ'tl'u'ﬂ‘;f themed
“Cultivating Our Legacy, Branching Out for the Future.” Clients and stafl coflaborated to create personalisad
planters using adaptive tools that enabled participation by Individuals of all abilitles, Activities included sersory
digging, seeding, watering, and pruning. The event was & maaningful and engaging demanstration of the
therapeutic benefits of occupational therapy.




PHYSIOTHERAPY
Department Overview:

The Physotherapy Depardment  provides
comprehensive assessments and customised
nterventions fo improve clienls’ gross mofor
function. Treatment approaches inchude manual
thesapy, core strengthening, batance training,
gait comection, endurance fraining  wsing
medical treadmills and the Aler-G ant-gravity
treadmil, as well as hwydrotherapy, The team
also manages post-surgical and  post-Botox
rahabilitation and prescribas mobility devices and
orthoses o enhance functional independence
and community participation. The PT departrment
alsn manages the Orthopaedic Cliric, Paediatric
Psychological Testing Services, and Pasdiatric
Neurology Clinic.

Client Feature: Toh Sze Ning

Born with cerebral palsy, S7e MNing has been
racaiving comprehensive physiotharapy
support from CPAS for many years. This ongoing
care has been instrumental in helping her live a
lutfilled lifa and reach ramarkable achisvamants
in Boceoia, where she now represents Singapore
an the international stage.

As an athlate under the Singapore Disability
Sports Councll, Sze Ming eamed recognition
as a SPEX Scholarship recipient in 2025,
Har competitive success has been equally
impressive—in December 2024, she and her
pariner Gareth Ho claimed a silver medal in
the BC3 Pairs event in Bahrain, Bullding on this
mamentum, Sze Ming continued her winning
streak in 2025 by securing 8 bronze medal
at the Astana Workd Boccla Challenger in
Kazakhstan

Through dedicated physiotharapy support and
her own determination, Sze Ning exemplifies
how comprehensive care can help individuals
wilh disabilities achieve their full potential both
in caily Ite and alite competition.

tian Improvamant allsr
Grvisntion!

= EIPIC + B5% of clients showed
maasurable nprovemant

= CPAS Schoaol | 77% impn TNt

= GROW + B1.B% improvemeant

= DAC '8 ovemeant

Department Highlights:

Upskilling for Better Care: Physiotherapy Training
Across CPAS Programmes

In 2024, the Physictherapy team led training Inftatives
across  EIPIC, School, DAC, and Home-Based
Programmas, equipping educators, caregivers, and
support staff with practical skills o better support
clients’ physical needs.

Toples covared included basic exercisas, cersbral
palsy awareness, mat handling techniques, and the
benefits of structurad physical activity. For DAC staf!
and careglvers, hands-on sessions on Range of Motion
and Back Care Basics received strong feedback ratings
of B3.3% and 98% respectivaly.

Six caregiver education sassions—focusing on postural
care, post-surgical and post-Botox management—
wers dalivered in both physical and virtual formats.
Additionally, caregivers of OP and HMP clients
participated in exercise training (15 families in tatal),
while valuriteers attended a dedicated session on safe
transfers and |ifting technigues.

PSYCHOLOGY

Department Overview:

Our psychologists specialise in providing servicas
which address pediatric needs. We provide services
for & range of behaviowal, developmental and
learning neads. As maental health professicnals,
peychologlists play an Integral role In supporting the
functional development of individuals with learning
and developmental difficulties. They assess the
psycheosocial, emotional and cognitive abiliies
of individuals with special needs fo facilitale their
lparning.  Paychologists  consult  with  medical
professionals and collaborate with alled heafth
professionals, interventionists, support stafi, parenis
and farnilies, in supporting the holistic development of
individuals with speckal neseds.

Client Feature: “"H"

CPAS Psychologist Chris has been supporting client
W sincs August 2024 for emoctional outbursts—
screaming and shouting at teachers and peers,
oocurring  fwice weekly and disrupting learming
Weakly sessions explored H's friggers using reactive
and proactive approaches. Reactively, H expressad
his experiences through ar in a safe space,
gaining self-awareness of inappropriate behaviors.
Proactively, H leamed to identify physiclogical
triggers and apply regulation sirategies before
ascalation. Imervention frequency decreased from
weekly o monthly as H demonstrated improved
salf-regulation skills. Teachers and caregivers now
report significantly fewar tantrum episodes, with H
successfully detecting and de-escalating his own
triggers at home and schagd,

Department Highlights:
World Mental Health Day 2025

Statistics:

al students In EIPIC wera supportsd lar (hedr
Do

Eludenls |
ahie

The Pesychology department organised Psychology Day in alignment with World Mental Health Day on 11™
October 2024, For the entire manth, the Psychology team sent posters sharing ways to enhanca one's mental health
al tha workplace. Ramindar pocket cards ware pravided to sach of the staff.




SOCIAL WORK

Department Overview:

CPAS Social Work department support clhienis
and their families in managing challenges ralated
1o digablliles and help clents realise thelr fullest
patential. They provide a range of asnvices including
information and referrals, casework and counseling,
financial assistance, and linking clents to community
resourcas, Additionally, they offer support for parents
and caragivers and faciftate agency visils to assist
with transition planning.

Client Feature: Nelson Foo Shu Xiang

and Family

CPAS Soclal Work services have been Instrumental
in supporting Melson Foo Shu Xiang and his family.
With the Social Workar's assistance, Melson's parants
secured financial aid from the AIC Home Care Giving
Grant and Careshield Life schemes, providing
ongoing raliel. Transport challenges were sasad
through enrolment in the AIC Medical Transport
scheme, reducing family strain, Additionally, MNelson
was rafarred lo SG Enable's Take a Break saervica,
offering In-home casegiving support and respite for
his mother. Nelson's family expressed deep gratitude
for the comprahensive, communily-basad support
that has significantly Improved their queality of e,

Department Highlights:

A Day of Care and Connection:
Respite Care Day 2024

On 18 October 2024, the CPAS Soclal Work
Dapartment hosted a Raspite Care Day dedicated
1o caregivars' relaxation, connection, and self-cara.
In collaboration with Touch Community Services,
marmed couples participated in meaningful activitias
such as appreciation exercises, hand massages,
love letter wriing, and wvow renewals, receiving
positive  fesdback. Meanwhile, other caregivers
anjoyed personal colour analysis, decoupage art,
and a microgreens workshop, Sponsored transport

was provided lo 45 clients and famibes, ensuring
accessibifity. A total of 132 clients ard family
mambers attended, with caragivers expressing high
satisfaction.

SPEECH AND
LANGUAGE PATHOLOGY

Department Overview:

Our Speech and Language Pathology (SLP) team
specialises In assessing and managing speech,
language, communication, literacy, feeding, and
swallowing skills o support childran and adults with
cerebral patsy and multiple disabdities

We also provide Augmentative and Alternative
Communication (AAC) interventions using  low-
and high-tech devices for clients with complex
communication neads  and reduced speech
intelligibfity. The SLP depariment also manages the
Audiclogy Clinkz, and Feeding and Swallowing Clinic

Client Feature: °J’

W, oa T-year-cld with West Syndrome enrolled In
EIPIC since 2023, has limited neck and trunk controd
resulting in poor postue and balance. Feading
was challenging due to Inadeguate seating. Alter
consultation with the Transdisciplinary team, a tumble
form seat was loanad for home use, providing J with
postural support, sale and comfortable sealing, and
improved feeding posture that reduces aspiration
risk. This intervantion has facilitaled safer fesding and
greater engagement in dally activities.

Department Highlights:

Speech Therapy Week Outreach: Celebrating
Differences

The Speech and Language Pathology Depariment
organised An oufreach event to commemorate
Spesch Tharapy Week 2024, themed Celsbrating
Differences. Held at One Punggol Celebration
Square 2 on 9 November 2024, the event attracted
approximataly 1,108 visitors. Informational boolhs
covered key areas including speech, language,
feeding, and assistive technology, alongside CPAS
programmas and senices.

Statistics:

» Approcamately 312 clients receivaed oromoior
and faeding ool

= Around 740 fesding an
distributed for clas

* Aboul 120 AAC o

bansfitting cwver ents ACroas Bettings

SLP Staff and wvolumtesrs facilitated interactive
activities, gamas, and discussions designed 1o
raize awareness of the vital role Speech Theraplsis
play in supporting communication and feeding
neads across various setlings.




LEARNING, DEVELOPMENT AND CONSULTANCY (LDC)

Department Overview:

Learning, Developmant and Conauttancy (L) is the fraining arm of Cerebral Palay Alliance Singapore (CRAS),
We aim o build the capabilities of our learners so that they can deliver the best programmes and services for
thelr clliants. For caregivers, we strive 1o empower them with the skills and knowledge 1o care confidanty. We
suppaort this belisf by providing cerification couwses and workshops conducted by experts for professionals
in felds such as Early Intervention, Special Ecucation, Allied Health, as well as caregivers of indniduals with
disabllities.

Statistics:
99.79%

Coursa QObjacives met during Training

a7

Corplstad Teainings

Camgval Alndess

Department Highlights:

Completed Training Courses:
Department Overview Trainer
Cartificate in Ayres Sanacry Integration Moduls 1-3 Stephan Chan

NDTA™ Certificate Course in the Contemporary Practics “‘““;m‘ma?“""'
of NDT for the Management of Children with Cersbral rtbadrnh
Palay and other Neuromusacular Desorders Ligia Cristing Jaramilla

Foundation B&ila in Handling Children with Food Refusal e
lzauas Jaya Giopinath
Foundalinnal Skills for Faciitating Eating, Drinking, and Wit
Bwallowing Siills in Children o Diumﬂi‘ﬁu
. L Andrea Claudia Koh Ser Wei
Fundamenial Principles of Seating and Positioning Pampi Ghash
Facilitating the Development of Upper Bxdramities in Kim Barthal
Toy Adaptation for Switch Acosas Ramlan Bin Hamim
Feading - A Sensory Motor Approach Laori Ovarland
Syarwani Bints Sahrol
Toilet Training for Children with Spacial Needs Sharifah Shahidah Binte Syed Omar Aljufiri
Ruzanna Binte Jamil

Underatanding Bahanviours for the Inclusive Classroom  Ruzanna Binte Jamil & Nurkhairiyati Binte Subair

Courses with Recurring Runs (since 2021):

I N R S

Basio Firat Ald with CPR+AED ]
Oral Placement Therapy for Speach Clarity and 3
Faeding
Handling Childran with Eating, Drinking, and 2
Swallowing |ssuas
Foundation Skille in Handling Children with Food 4
Refusal lzsuss

Promating Emergant Literacy skills
Toilet Training for Children with Special Meeds
Facilitating Language Communication Skills in

Children with Developmental Delays

Aazsistive Technology for Carsbral Palay
Etrategies in Training Persons with Physical
Dizabilitiss to parform basio ADL - Feeding, a

Dressing and Grooming
Social Btory™ Intervention Writing Soclal Stories 2
Sansory Processing and

Sensory Integration
Dyefunction Commanly Found in Children with 3
Special Nesds

Toy Adaptation for Switch Access 2

P T

LDC has been recognised as an Allied Health Professional Council (AHPC) approved Continuing Prolessional
Education (CPE) provider, Allled Health Professionals (AHPs) can accumulate CPE hours when attending LDC
courses approved Dy AHPC.

LDC's caregivers’ courses are now Skillsfuture credit (SFC) claimable. Caregivers can wse SFC o offset the
course fee after the Caregivers Training Grant (CTG) for eligible courses




Superstar 2024 Charity Golf and
Dinner

In March 2024, CPAS held thae Suparstar 2024
Charity Goll and Dinner, a fundraising ewent
graciously led and organised by cur dedicated
supporter, Ma Amberly Woo, The day commenced
with an engaging round of goli, providing altendees
the opportunity to enjoy both the sport and
meaninghul conversations, The event concluded
with an evening of fine dining, entertainment,
and camaraderie, Thanks fo the generosity of all
participanis, sponsors, and supparters, the avenl
successfully rased owver $200,000. We extend
our gincere appreciation to Ms Amberly Woo
and evaryone imvalved in halping us achieve this
remarkabie milastona.

CPAS Charity Dinner 2024

The CPAS Charity Dinner 2024 was held on 2
August at the Sands Expo and Convention Centre
and proved fo be a resounding success. Wilh the
generous support of our sponsors, guests, staff,
ard clients, we raised more than $280,000. We
are especially honoured to have welcomed our
Guest of Honour, Mr Teo Chee Hean, then Senior
Minisier and Coordingting Ministar for National
Sacurity, whoss presence greally anrichad the
occasion. We also wish o express our heartfelt
gratitude to our venue spansor, Marina Bay Sands,
far thair invaluable suppor as part of the Sands for
Singagare 10th Charity Festival

World Cerebral Palsy Day 2024

On &5 October 2024, CPAS commemorated
World Carebral Palay Day with the ‘Calebrating
Possibiliies' camival, This event nal anly hanouwed
tha achievements and lives of Individuals with
cersbral palsy D also marked the 40° annivarsary
of our iconic Suey Doll Donaticn Box, a long-standing
symbol of fundraising and awareness In Singapone
The day was filed with inspiration and joy, featuring
moving testimonials rom poel Staphanie Esther
Fam, who has cerebral palsy, and CPAS client and
Paralympic medalist Jeralyn Tan,

Atendeas enjoyed a vadely of camival games, Ive
perormances, finger food, and cther activities that
brought the communiy together in calebration. We
are deeply grateful to the voluntesrs from Micron
Singapore, Singapore Pools, and By Nancy.sg for their
imvaiuable suppaort in making the event a succass,

THE YEAR AHEAD

CPAS 5 Year Strategic Plan

CPAS s committed to playing a key rola in the success of the Enabling Master Plan 2030 (EMP2030), focusing on
Improving the Ihves of persons with Cerebral Palsy and Multiple Disabilities.

Starting In 2024, CPAS embarked on a 5-vear strategic plan with an emphasls on growing programmes and
services aligned with the EMP2030, increase employabllity of Persans with Disabilities (PWDs), and sharing of
knowledge with caregivers, service providers and the wider community. To achieve this, CPAS will also look at
both capacity and capahilily building 1o serve moee chanis.

{a) Exploring Growth Opportunities

CPAS aims to scale our number of clients by 10% on a year-on-year bas:s, reaching 1,000 chents at the end of
tha 5 years. Our client numbars graw from 798 last financial year, o 857 this financial year. Wa will implament
a consistant review of our programmes and service offerings to ensura we continue o provide targated and
relevant services, espacially for our core sanvice users.

With an ageing chant profile, CPAS embarked on a feasibilty study on the potential establishmeant of & programme
targeting post-85 saniors with Cersbral Palsy and multiple disabilities. CPAS will continue our efforts in this area,
locking into funding, identification of potential premises and service model design.

(B) Improving Quality of Service

Above and beyond, CPAS remains committed to dalivering high quality services for our service users, thraugh
maintaining cur high client satisfaction rate at between B0% to 100%. CPAS strives 1o maintain or Improve our
Organisation Health index (QHI) score, assessed through the Organisation Health Framewaork for Soclal Services
{OHFES) in the “"Good" banding or batter, through addressing our weaker sub-domain on user centric services
of knowledge and research.

{e) Enhancing our capabilities through two Centres-of-Excellence (CoE)

#1: CoE (Assistive Technology)

CPAS aspires o becoma the sector leader In Assistive Technology (AT). This s achieved through targated eflarts
i raisa the sector's capabilities and awareness of AT, with the core objective to help ensure access 1o AT for
PWDs, allowing tham to lead independent lives across all slages of thair lives.

In the past financial year, the CPAS Assistive Technology Hub initiatad an innovation wing to build a culture of
mnovation to resohea funclional challanges faced by our students and cliants, Through this wing, some innovative
solutions developed including a two-switch mounting tray and switch-adapted waiering bottles amongst othera.

In the upcoming financial year, CPAS will cantinue o develop maore innovative solutions through this wing and will
leverage on collaborations and partnerships with external agencies such as corporates and institutes of higher
fearning to advance the adoption of AT,

#2: CoE (Trans-Disclplinary Approach)

CPAS also aspires to become the sector leader in the Transdisciplinary (Trans-D) approach. The Trans-D
approach ls a family-centred approach to enhancing hofistic and comprehensive development in clients by
adopling a common view on educational needs and a consensual cammitment to integrated planning and
Implementation,

To do g0, CPAS will focus on building stalf capabilities in the Trans-D model of service dalivery, In the fast financial
year, represeniatives from the varous CPAS programmes, participated In a learming journey to speclal schools in
Hang Kong. The visil aimad to evaluate the implementation of the Trans-D approach at CPAS and SAHK, explore
strategies for collaboration with families, and undarstand challanges facad in facilitating skill transfer at homa.
Insights from this trip will inform best practices and enhance the integration of Trans-D processes across CPAS
SEMNICES,

Building on this, in the next financial yaar, the team plans to commence the pilot intenvention cycle for identified
classes across the different programmes, following a rubric to gradually build staff competencies inimplementing
enhanced Trans-D initlatives. This will be followed up with additional efforts In knowledge transfer, such as
engaging caregivers o embed learning opportunities In home routines,




FUNDRAISING

PLANS

In exddition to support from the govarmmant, CPAS relies on the generous suppor from corporale, organisations
and individual donors and benefactors. Funds raised will go fowards sustaining and estending our core
programmes and senvices to children and adults with Carebeal Palsy or multiple disabilities.

The Tote Board has announced the extension of the Enhanced Fund-Raising Programme (EFR), which provides
daollar matching for donations received from approved campaigns and projects, subject to eligibifity conditions,

CPAS plans to roll out 4 fundraising projects and campaigns this financial year.

Quumrter 1: Empower Children and Adults with Cersbral Palsy or Multiple Disabiliiles [CPAS25)

This is & year-long digital fundraising campaign launched at the start of each Financial Year to rally for donations
o support all programmes and services, Through appeals, we hope 1o solicit donations, all year round, for over
B00 chitdren and adulls with Cerebral Palsy or multiple disabilities under cur care.

Quarter 2: CPAS Charity Dinner 2025 — Rock N Roll for a Cause

CPAS will work with cur longstanding venue sponsor, Marina Bay Sands (MBS), 1o organise our annual Charity
Dinner with an expecied turmnout of over 400 guasts,

This year's theme is Rock M Roll for a Cause, and CPAS alms to ralse an evant target of $250,000. This would
be done through tabde sponsarships, outright donations, and on-event day sagments such as Raffle Draw and
Auction segrmanis.

Quarter 3: Spamn Your Change for Suzy 2025 - SGE0 Edition (SYC15)

World Carebral Palsy (CP) Day is commamorated in October sach yaar. As the specialist social service agency
in Singapore working with persons with the condition, CPAS dedicates the entire manth of October as Warld
CP Month.

Through a mix of volunieering, advocacy and fundraising collaborations with individuals, corporates and
community partners, CPAS hopes to raise awareness of CP in Singapore.

Suzy, the iconic donation box from CPAS, reprasents a girl with CP. She fronts the campaign and will appeal to
danors to "Spare Their Change” through simple everyday giving,

As part of the nation’s SG60 push, we are looking to place Suzy at 60 locations island wice. This can be in the
form of physical donation box placements, digital screens, event posters, online appeals, or projects 1o raise
funds throughout the campaign period,

Quarter 3/4: Gift of Hope (GOH2E)

The end of year and the start of the year ane usually masked with festivities such as Christmas and the Chinese
Mew Year, Donors lend 1o give gifts during this period, and CPAS plans to launch this campalgn to invite donors
o share a gift of hope for our beneficiaries in our care,

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cersebral Palsy Allilance Singapora
Statement of Ainancial Position

For year ended 3713t March 2025
FY24/25 FY23/24
Aszats 53 5%
Mon-Current Assets 14,514,800 12,585,204
Current Assets 20,098,965 21,129,920
25,511,885 33,715,124
Liabilitias ard Funds
Current Liabilities 3,568,685 3,402 385
Defermad Capital Donation & Leasa Liabilities 12,378,008 10,856,783
Funds 18,564,172 18,655,956
35,511,885 3,715,124
Siniement of Comprehensive income
For year ended 31st March 2025
Total Total
Income 55 5%
Governmant Grarts 8,795,584 8,793,818
Specific Donations 1,471,372 88,130
Ganeral Donations 808,885 812,724
Programmes/Therapy Treatment Fees 852,888 585,888
Wage Cradit Scheme 467,147 32,531
TOL Fea 1,520,478 1,345277
Others 5,037 432 5,534,142
Total Income m W
Expenditure
Manpower 13,208,058 11,781,434
General & Administrative Costs 1,825,265 1,887,751
Upksep and Ltilities 589,845 552,784
Utilisation of Specific Funds 1,001,058 1,188,744
Intemsst Expense & Depreciation (ROU Assat) 1,735,040 1,383,178
GET Expenas 508,413 543913
Others 1,578,747 1,200,077
Tetal Expenditure 20,545,526 18,285,882
Surpluafloss) (81,782) (1,082,382)

Faor our full annual raport and financial staternants for FY2024/2025, please vislt our wabslte at www.cpas.org.sg
'We aincansly thank all donora, voluntesrs, supportars, frisnds and weall-wiahers who have helpad maka a differanca in
tha livea of our clients.
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SUMMARISED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore School (East)

Statement of Financial Position
For year ended 315t March 2025

MNon-Current Assets
GCurrent Assets

Liabilities and Funds
Current Liabilities
Defarrad Capital Donation
Funds

Statement of Comprehenzive Income
For year ended 31st March 2025

Income
Govemment Grants
Specific Donations
General Donations
Programmes Feas
Others

TOL Fea

Total Income

Expenditure

Manpower
General & Administrative Costs

Upkeep and Uilities
Utilisation of Specific Funds
TOL Fee

Others

Total Expenditure

Surphus/{Loss)

1183017

380,319

7,330,758
B

12,763,448
347,685

133,574

246,983
13,130,402

1,661,047

834,124
6,882, 438
7,818,560

1,774,800
372,048
5,668,711

T 7,816,500

Total

5%
10,286,546
168,178
16,062
227,808
475,916
875,841
11,831,352

8,186,201
3,082,588
298,098
1,808,218
675,841
233,827
12,372,861

(541,308)

For our full annual report and finencial statemants for FY2024/2005, please visit our webslts &t www.cpas.orgsg
'We aincanaly thank all donors, voluntesers, supportars, friands and well-wizhera who have halped make a differance in

the lives of our clienta.

Cersbral Palsy Alliance Singapora School (Weast)

Statement of Financial Position
For year ended 31st March 2025

Liabilities and Funds
Current Liabilities
Defermad Capital Donation

Siniement of Comprehensive income
For year ended 31st March 2025

Income
Governmeant Grants
Specific Donations
General Donations
Programmes Fees
Othera

TOL Fea

Total Income

Expenditure

General & Administrative Costs
Upkseep and Liilities
Uitilisation of Specific Funds
TOL Fee

Cthers

Total Expenditure

Surplus/Loss)

For our full annual report and financial staternenta for FY2024/2025,

824,904
382,162
870,982

2,188,038

4,570,183
34,758

118,877
203,964

5,807,960

2,698,387
358,173
aoa.127
830,153
680,400
281,404

s
e vl

vigit our website at

448,172
1,111,878

1,560,050

712,278
292,115
825,656

1,560,050

2,725,576

1,000
a3arz
24,148

510,300

4,141,000

1,826,835
240,584
208,824
508,857
510,300
221,834

3,515.344

= e

please WWW.CPAS.0Mg.ag
We sincarely thank all donors, voluntesrs, supportars, friends and wall-wishers who have helped maks a differance In

tha lives of cur cllents.
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HUMAN RESOURCES CPAS ORGANISATION CHART
MANAGEMENT

CFAS conducts anopen review ol sfali performanca annuglly by sigring each svalustion with sstfing goals and
targets, ollowed by & mid-yaar review and year-and review

Jwill &1 dowm with their team 1o et goals and fargets that ars aligned o cepariment 8nd organizanon gos
gets
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POLICIES

Whistleblowing Policy

Cerabral Patsy Alfance Singapora is commitled to sernving with Integrity and compllance with regulations. CPAS has
a whistleblowing policy which provides an avenue for individuals to report wrongodolng safely and without fear of
retaliation.

Confiict of interest Policy

CPAS has a Conflict of Interest Policy and operating procedures ans in place to avoid or manage situations of any
actual or parcaived conflicis of interast. Board membars, commitiees and employess of CPAS are required to daclars
on an annual basis or, a5 and when necessary, make full disclosure of any intarests, relationships andlor holdings that
could patentially result in a conflict of interast to their functions and/cr employment by CPAS. Whan a conflict of interest
situation arises, the Memberjemployes shall gbstain from participating in the discussion, decision-making and voting
on the matter concarmad.

In addition, Board members and committeas do not recelve any remuneration for thedr services,

Disclosure of Information on Executive Management
Executive Director: Ms Latha DVO K P Sankaran Kutty

- Raports to Chalrparson, Executive Board of CPAS

- Appointed 1 October 2018

- Past Job Experience:

= 2014 to 2018 - EIPIC Principal at CPAS

* 2013 to 2014 - Lead Teacher at Ralnbow Canlre Yishun Park Schoal
* 2009 i 2012 - Sanior teachar as Ralnbow Centra Yishun Park Schoal
= 2004 to 2008 - Teacher al Ralnbow Centre Margaraet Drive and Yishun Park School
* 2000 to 2001 - Teacher al Ashmount School (England)

* 1890 to 1996 - Teacher at Margaret Drive Spacial Schaol




THE BOARD BOARD MEMBERS

1 April 2024 - 31 March 2025 am NAME DEBKEHATION REMARKE
Appointed fo posltion sinoe
1 Mis Latha Kty Exncuiive Direcior o1 Oot 2018
GOVERNING BOARD
JOINED AS
BOARDY ATTENDANCE AT BOARD PAST
M NAME OCCUPATION HAME OF EMFLOYER CO-OFTED CURRENT APPOINTMENT MEETINGS PAST APPOINTMENT APPOINTMENT (2)
HEHI]EH_
1 DrJanieWong Tzen Yuen  Pasdiairician Dr Janice Pasdiawic Centre Pie Lid 2000 el 45 Board member
2 MrMervyn Siissnarem  Rstires NA 2017 mwm s Board member
3 Dr'Yoong Siew Lea Consultant Sali-amployed 2012 mw 415 Board mamber
. Honorary Treaswurar
Director (Corporate 18 Sep 2024 (CPAS) Assiatant Honorary Treasurer (CPAS)
d Ma Yvonne Chan D }iGFO Singapore Managament Univereity 2018 1 Dec 2023 {Sci 58 29 Oct 2020
Managemeant Commitiea)
Assistant Honorary
5 Mr Mg Wai Keong Director, Public Transport Ministry of Tranaport Secratary 555 Board member
| 19 Gep 2024
Assistant Honorary
Hj Salim Bin Abdul Kadir Honorary Treasunsr Honorary Treasuner
] R Director, Human Capital AFL Technologies Pia Ltd 2m7 ‘:‘l:;l.;ﬂ 45 22 et 2020 2020 - 2024
7 DrSatyski Sengupta Seniot Principal Physiotherapist KK Women's and Children's Hospital 2009 m“m"""" s ity bt il S
& MrRemy Ghoo Director Skillefuture Singapore Agency 2ma Board memiber a8
?  MrAloysius Wes Lawyer Aquina's Law Aliance LLP 2022 m”;‘:’ s wm
10 Mr Allan Phus Ciwvil Sanar Pubdic Sarvice Division 2023 Baoard membear 88
PricewaterhouseCoopers
11 Mr Emilio Choo Manager, HR IT GHFS Pis Lid 2024 Board member A5
Chairparaon
Member (Emeritus ; 2010 - 2020
Aszociats Professor h Emeritus Chairman (non voting rights)
12 iy L eti pesk vas Orthopaadic: Surgeon KK Women's and Children's Hospital = 2008 w 25 23 Oiet 2020 Emerie Chairman
e {non vating righte)
| 2020 - 2024
13 Mr Alistar Ong wlli‘cmlglmi Michas| Page Recruitment Agency 2023 Co-Opted Member 4
475 (officially attended 1st
14 Mr Chong Yoon Chou Fund Manager/Direcior LeanneCapital Pte Lid 2024 Co-Optad Mambear board meeting only on 25 Jul
2024)
/5 (officially attended 1st
15 Mr Chow Shang Wai Venture Capitalist Vertex Holdings 2024 Co-Opted Mambar board meating only on 25 Jul
2024)
45 (officially attendsd 18t
18 Mr Lam Ches Weng CED Singapors Pools 2024 Co-Opted Member board mesting only on 18 Sep
2024)

There are no Board members holding staff appointments.




LENGTH OF SERVICE OF BOARD MEMBERS

In compliance with item 13 of the Governance Evaluation Chacklist (GEC) (Tier 2) under the Code of Gavernance,
CPAS hareby declares that the following Board mambers have sarved mare than 10 consecutive years. Thess
members are in the minarity among the current board memibars in terms of length of consecutive service.

Dr Janles Wang Dr Yoong Siew Lee

Dir Satyakl Sengupla

Each ol thess individuals possess in-depth knowledge through their long service. Thedr expertise and continued
contribution Is vital to the Board. The Momination Subcommittes has nol been able to identity and recruit
voluntears with similar expartise and commitmeant to serve on the CPAS Board.

BOARD APPOINTMENT AND TERM LIMIT

Term Limit for the Treasurer
The tarm limit for the Treasurer is two tarms. Each term is two years.

REMUNERATION

In compliance with tem 29 of the GEC {Tier 2) under the Cods of Governance, CPAS disclosas that no Board members
ara remunerated,
In compliance with item 31 of the GEC (Tier 2) under the Code of Governance, in tarms of remuneration band, the

breakdown below shows a two-year compariscn by headcount,
ANNUAL REMUNERATION

2025 2024
24 16

Remunaration Band

$100,000 - $200,000

In compliance with itam 32 of the GEC (Tier 2) under the Code of Governance, CPAS discloses that there is one paid
staff mamber whao is a close member of the family of the Executive Head, who received remuneration below $100,000
during the yaar. When a confict of inferest situation arises, the Exscutive Director abstains hersalf from participating in

the discussion and decision-making of remuneration of the stalf concermed.

Disclosure of parties involved In setting remuneration of key staff

* Head of Department, HR guides Senlor HR Executive to propose remunesation of key staff

* CPAS Staff Sub-Committee members and Executive Director overses and give approval for remuneration for key
managemant staff.

* CPAS Staff Sub-Commiltes members overses and ghwe approval for remunaration for Executive Director

RO e e s M m

SUBCOMMITTEES

AUDIT SUBCOMMITTEE
AND REPORT

CHAIRFERSON  Dr Yoong Siew Lee
MEMBERS Hj Sallim Bin Abdul Kadir,
BEM, PBM, &

Mr Allan Phua

Mr Aloysius Wee

Mr Chong Yoon Chou
Executive Director

Head of Department, Finance
Head of Department, HR

Assistant Head of Department,
Admin

STAFF IN
ATTENDANCE

About the Audit Subcommittee

Therole of the Audit Subcommittee Is fo provide strategic
direction and |leadership to ensura effactivenass in the
internal control framework for compliance.

The Audit subcommittes sets out to:

(g} Facilitate the external and intemal audit of the
organisation for the Board to oblain independent
information about the organisation’s activities;

(b) Achieve high level ol good govermnance and
inmternal controd in the financial reporting process,
procurement process, audit process, Information
technology security and operalional matters, and
compliance with faws and regulations;

(c) Review tha audit plans and reporis of the axtamal
auditors and Internal auditors, and considers the
effectivensss  of fthe actions taken by
management on the auditors’ recommaendations;

{d} Direct internal checks on key processes to
ensure compllance with the established
procedures and report to the Board on the
findings and recommeandations for improvements;

(g) Facilitata risk  assessmants  for  better
management of risk assoclaled with the key
processes;

() Oversee regulatory compliance and
whistleblower guidelines (whare applicabla);

(o) Report to the Board of any financlal Fregularities,
concems and opporiunities; and

(h} Lisise with auditors on any significant matters
arising.

SCHOOL MANAGEMENT

COMMITTE
CHAIRPERSOM & Dr Janica Wong
SUPERVISOR
SECRETARY Mira Koh-Lim Ai Lay

{Principal — School Wast)
HON THEASURER  MWs Yvonne Chan
MEMBERS AProf Kevin Lim esd, peu

Dr Satyakl Sengupta

Mr Remy Choo

Ms Latha Kutty (ED)

Mr Boo Hian Kok

{Principal — School East)
MOE Mg Tamry Thessira
REPRESENTATIVE  jr Mark Minjoot
PARENT Mr Yen Tun |
AEFAESENTATIVE  Mr Chew Chang Yang Jossph
STAFF IN Vice Principal, CPAS Schools
ATTENDANCE Administrative Manager,

CPAS Schools

The role of the School Management Committes (SMC)

is to exercise power and authority over the gensral

managemant, operational policies and directions for the
school in accordance with the School Constitution set up by
iha Ministry of Education (MOE) and the National Council of

Social Service (NCSS5) for:

{a) The effective management of the School,
including but mot limited to all aspects pertaining
o the financial matters, human resource
managament matters and proparty mattars imvolving all
aexisting and new bulldings, faciBtbes and Infrastructure
of the School,

(b) The education and well-being of the students of the
School; and

{c} The policy for admission of students to the Scheal.

The SMC shall ensura that the School is govermed and
managed responsibly and prudently and act in the best
interasl of the studants and school.




FINANCE-INVESTMENT

SUBCOMMITTEE
CHAIRFERSOM = Ms Yvonne Chan
MEMBERS Hj Sallim Bin Abdul Kadir,

BEM, PEM, JP

Mr Chow Shang Wei

Mr Lam Ches Weang
STAFF IN Exscutive Director

ATTENDANCE  Head of Departmant, Finance

The role of the Finance-Investment Subcommitise
is to provide strategic direction and leadership in the
recommendation of financialinvestment policies,
targets and budgets that support the mission, values
and goals of the organisation.

The Finance-invastment Subcommittee sets out to:

{a) Recommend policies thal maintain and improve the
financial health and infegrity of the organisation;

(b) Review and recommend an annual cperating
budget and annual capital budget consistant with
the long-term financial plan and financial policies;

{c) Review the financial aspects of major proposed
ransactions, new programmes/services, as well as
proposals to discontinue programmes/services

(d) Menitor the financial performance of the
organisation as & whole and its major programmes’
senices against approved budgets, long-lerm
trends and industry benchmarks;

{e) Require and monitor comective actions to bring the
ofganisation into compliance with its budgel and
other financial targets;

{f) Recommend investmant policies to the Board:

(g) Appoint investment advisers’bankers iIn  the
eslablishment of investment portfolio, asset
allocation, benchmarks and tolerance bands;

(h) Review invesiment reports from advisars’bankers;

{i) Consider appropriate opporiunistic investments
that have the potential 1o defiver more favourable
returns than passive risk-adverse investments; and

{i) Review and reporl to the Board annually on the
irvestment plan.

FUNDRAISING
SUBCOMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON  Mr Mannym Sirisena Pes

MEMBERS Mr Ng Wai Keong
Mr Aloysius Wee
Mr Chow Shang Wei
Mr Lam Chesa Wang

STAFF IN Exscutive Dirsctor
ATTENDANCE  Haad of Department,
Advocacy & Marketing
Head of Department, Finance
Assistant Advocacy &
Marketing Manager

The role of the Fundraising subcommitiee ks to aversee
and provide strategic direction and leadership to ansure
the smeoth planning, coordination, and implemeantation
of all fundraising activities in support of the programmae,
projects and activities of CPAS.

Tha Fundraising subcommittes sels out to:

{a) Develop the fundraising sirategy for CPAS;

(b} Implement, monitor and evaluate the strategy once
it is adopted;

(e} Develop project proposals to submil to polential
donors and funders;

{d) Manage and develop the network of stakeholders,
and

(¢} Keep policies 1o ensure honest and ethical
fundraising.

NOMINATION
SUBCOMMITTEE

CHAIRFERSON | Dr.Janice Wong

MEMBERS Ms Yvanne Chan

Dr Satyaki Sangupta
. 2uks P Lim,
[BBM, PBM, PBE

STAFF IN Exscutive Director

ATTENDANCE  aggigtant Head of Departmant,
Admin

The role of the Nomination subcommilies is to provide
the Board with sirategic direction and leadership on
matters relating fo appoiniments.

The Momination subcommittes meets to discuss and
make recommaendalions 1o the Board before the Annual

General Mesting (AGM).
Tha Momination subcommittes sels out to:
(a) Review the of the Board annually to

ensure that the rd has an rigle balance
of independant Buaﬂ.‘;fmmi:ms mﬁmmabg:
appropriale balance of expertisa, attribu
and abllity ameng the Board members,
(b} Ir.ﬁaﬂl , invite and groom petential Board member
ates to serve as Board members;

() Nurnlnm individual 1o be elected as members of
the Board;

(d} Nominata Boardmembers for election as Office
Baoarars;

(8} Take the lead in succession planning; and
(f} Design and overses a process of Board Orientation.

STAFF SUBCOMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSON  Hj Sallim Bin Abdul Kadir
BEM, PEM,
MEMBERS Dr Janice Wong
Mr Allan Phua
Mr Emilic Choo
Mr Chong Yoon Chou
STAFF IN Exscutive Director

ATTENDANCE  Head of Department, HR
Senior HA Exacutive

The rmole of the Staff subcommittee is to provide
sirategic directicn and leadership to appeint, confim,
amplace on permanem or parl-ime establishmant,
promaote, fransfer and exercise disciplinary control over
the employees of CPAS,

The Staff subcommittes sets out fo actively initiate,
hedp develop, monilor and evaluate strategic Human
Resource (HR)} actions and policies that will enhance
and embed CPAS' reputation as an employer, and
enabla CPAS to recruit, develop, engage and retain the
best stafl,

PROGRAMMES
SUBCOMMITTEE

CHAIRFERSON  Dv Satyaki Sengupts

MEMBERS Dr Yoong Siew Lee
Mr Remy Choo
Mr Emilio Choo
Mr Alistar Ong
STAFF IN Executive Diractor
ATTENDAMCE CPAS School Principals
EIPIC Principal
Head of Departmant, Adult
Senvices-DAC
Head of Departmeant, Adult
Services-GROW

Haed of Departmant,
Occupational Therapy

Head of Department,
Phyeiotharapy

Haad of Departmant,
Peychology

Head of Departmant,
Social Work

Haad of Departmeant, Speach
& Language Pathalogy
Haad of Departmant,
Agsistive Technology Hub
Head of Dapartmant, Finance

The role of the Programmes subcommitiss is to provide

strategic direction and |eadership to ensure that good
practices ara cbserved in meeting the wellare of all

studentsichients; and to the development of CPAS as

a regional cantre for Excellent Rehab therapy sarvice,

educational development and advocacy.

The Programmeas subcommities sets out to:

{a) Review and monitor progress on studentsichent
matters {e.g. therapy for clients);

(b) Review and endorse exceptional referrals for
admission, transfer andfor discharge of students/
clients for therapy senices, early intervention,
special schoal education and adult services,

{c) Review and endorse recommendstions made in
relation to the planning and development of projects

and resources;

T




{d) Review and endorse budget andfor financial
mtiers in relation to programmes and cliends;

{e) Review and endorse changes to policies and
procedures in accordance with the advice/thanges
from Ministry of Social and Family Dewelopment
(MSF) and National Council of Social Service
(NCSS);

i} Collsboraie with healthcare professionals and
government agencies in identilying quality services
and updated technology;

{g) Incorporate advanced technology Into  the
development of therapy outcome measwres,
practice guidelines, qualty service Indicators of
therapy-related practices and the Implementation of
affective techniquas; and

{h) Oversea the growth and development of Rehab
professionals  toward research  advocacy and
information technology.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
(IT) SUBCOMMITTEE

CHAIRPERSOMN = Mr Emilia Choo

ETAFF IN Executive Director
ATTENDANCE  Head of Department, IT

A Subcommiitee of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore

{CPAS) is formalised to oversee specific arsas of

govemnance and operations,

Through the process, the subcommitles submits

proposal and shorflist recommendations to the Board

for approvals. The Board may delegate aspects of

decision-making to a subcommitiee, Any decision

made by a subcommittee remains the responsibility of

the Board. The Board has the final decision.

The subcommilles shall ensure proper monstoring.

The IT subcommities ovarseas and provides sirategic

direction and [eadership to ensure effective use of IT

resourcas and systems to mee! the ocrganisation’s

naads.

The IT Subcommittes sats out o

{a) Provide support, guidance and advice for
tachnology related projects and initiatives:

(b} Assist In consultancy by contributing reliable
information o aid and recommend efficiant
solutions for both hardware and software matiers;

(g} Enhance stability in  the  technology
infrastrecture,  encourage  uniformity  and
consislency  across  platforms,  increasing

efficlency and productivity throughout the
organisation;

{d) Make recommendations o the Board on
proposad IT projects based on priorities and
resource requirements; and

{8) Aeview, monitor progress and report updates
of engoing projects at regular Intervals.

Rapresentatives from respective depariments are

appointed to co-ordinate, update and present IT

related suggestions to the workgroup.

CPAS REPRESENTATIVES

EXTERNAL AGENCIES

SINGAPORE Mr Boo Hian Kok
DISABILITY

BPORTS COUNCIL

(SDSC)

THE CHILDREN"S Mr Mervyn Sirisena, Pam
CHARITIES Mr Mg Wai Keong

ASSOCIATION OF
SINGAPORE (CCA)

TIER 2 | GOVERNANCE EVALUATION
CHECKLISTS (GEC)

PRINCIPLE 1: THE CHARITY SEAVES ITS MISSION AND ACHIEVES ITS OBJECTIVES.

1

Claarly state the charitable purpoees (For example, vision
and mission, objectives, usa of resources, activitiss, and

s0 on) and includs the objectivea in the charity's goveming

inatrument.

Publish the stated charitable purposes on platiorms (For
exampla, Charity Portal, waksite, social media channala,

| @nd o on} that can be easily acceesed by the public.

Develop and implament stratagic plans to achieve the
stated charitable purposes.

| Have the Board review the charty's strategic plane

regularly to ensura that the charity ia achieving ita
charitable purpoees, and monitor, evaluate and report the

oulcoma and impact of its activities.
Document the plan for building the capacity and capability

of the charity and ensure that the Board monitors the
progresas of this plan.

"Capacity” refers to a charity's infrastructure and
operational resources whila behind capability relers to its
axpartize, skills and knowledge.

11

1.2

13

14

Yes
“ No

Partial
Compliance

PRINCIPLE 2: THE CHARITY HAS AN EFFECTIVE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT.

The Board and Managemant are collectively responsibla
for achieving the charity's charitable purposes. The rolea
and responaibiities of the Board and Management should

be clear and distinct.

The Board and Managemant should be inducted and

undarge training, whare necessary, and their performance
reviewad regularly to ensure their effectivenass.

Document the terms of referance for thea Board and each of its

commilteas. The Board should have commiliess (or designatad
Boand mamberis)) o overses the following areas”, where
relevant io the chardty:

A Audit B. Finance
"Other ansas include Programmes and Services, Fund-raising,

Apponiment™ominaion, Human Resourcs, and inestment.

Ensure the Board is diverss and of an appropriate sire,
and has & good mix of shkills, knowledge, and experiance,
All Board mambears should exercise indepandeant
judgement and act in the best interest of the charity.

21

22

23

24

Yes
“ No

Partial
Compliance

Yes
“No

Partial
Compliance

Yea
“"No

Partial
Compliance

“Ne
Compliance




Develop proper processes for leadarship renswal.

This includes establishing a term imit for aach Board member.
Al Board membars must submit themeshwes for re-nomination
and re-appointmant, at keast onca every three years.

Dewvelop proper processes for leadership renewal.

This Includes establishing a term limit for the Treaswrer (or

equivalant position).

For Treasurer (or equivalent poeition) only:

& The maximum tarm FlriiurtaTmmr {or aqlluﬂmt
pwilmliw Flwma

mm

lmm mmm
m.mmﬁmnnltduonh

memmmumhithIhMm
Board member's the position of
'ﬁmm{mmm pﬁmnmﬁrbﬂvmm
after at boast a two-year break)
i.BlnldinmmhwnﬂuMhrlamlm
mﬁdmmﬂ hu‘gm-nppmm tha

mﬂmmmumﬁnﬁm
stapped down as Treasurar.

Ersure the Board has suitable qualifications and sxpariance,

understands its duties ciearly, and parforme well.
& No staff should chair the Board and staff should not
comprias mora than one-third of the Board,

12  Ensure the Management has suitable qualifications and

exparienca, undersiands e duties clearly, and parforma wall.

2 Staff must provide the Board with complete and timely
information and should not vote or parficipats in the
Board's decision-making.

13 The term limit for all Board members should be set at 10

mﬁwwwlmwmmmm
can be considerad afier at least a two-year break.

For all Board members:
ummmmmrmm&:mfwmmm

c. The should discioge the reasons for retaining
any member who has served on the Board for
mara than 10 consscutive years, as well as its
succeasion plan, in its annual report.

28

27

28

28
28b

14

For Tressurer (or equivalent poaition) only:

d. A Board mambear holding the Treasurer poslion (or equivalent
position ke & Finance Commities Chaiman or key parson
on the Board responaible for overseeing the finances of
the charity) must stap down from the Treasurer or equivalent
position afier a mexdmum of four consscutive years.

L Tha Board member may confinua to senve in other
posifions on the Board (except the Assistant Treasurer
position or equivalent), not beyond the overall tsrm lmit of
10 consacutive years, unisss the exdension was delibarated
and approved &t the gensaral mesting - referio 20.b,

£

~ No
Compliance

:

PRINCIPLE 3: THE CHARITY ACTS RESPONSIBLY, FAIRLY AND WITH INTEGRITY.

15

18

7

18

19

Conduct appropriate background checks on the members
of the Board and Management to ensure they are suited to
work at the charity.

Documnent the processas for the Boand and Managemant to

declare actual or potential confiicts of interest, and the measures

to deal with these conflicts of interest when they anse.

a. A Board member with a conflict of intarest in the
matter(s) discuseed should recuse himssifihareslf
from the meeting and shouwld not voie or take part in the
decision-making during the meaeting.

Ensure that no Board member is involved in sstting hishar
own remunaration directly or indiractly.

Ensure that no staff is involved in satting hiather own
ramunernation diracily or indirecthy.

Establish a Codes of Conduct that reflacts the charlty's
valuss and ethica and ensure that the Code of Conduct s
appliad appropriately.

Tmmmmthsﬁmmmm
the charity's activities

3.1

3.3

' Yes
No

Partial
Compliance

.w“l’n

No
Partial
Compliance

PRINCIPLE 4: THE CHARITY SERVES ITS MISSION AND ACHIEVES ITS OBJECTIVES.

pma@m?uﬁlﬂ ﬂmﬂwgﬁmbmmh

charity's objectives.

&. Ensure the Board approves
lladwiy'aplummd

mnm

the annual for

4.1a

« Yes
No

Partial
Compliance




Implement and regulary review key policies and procadures
enswre that they continue io support the charity's objeciives.
b. Implemant appropriate intemal controls to managa and

manitor the charity's funds and reecurcee, This includes key

proceasss such as:

I. Revenus and recaipting policies and procedures;

il. Procurament and paymant policies and procadurss; and

ii. Systam for the delagafion of authority and limits of approval.
Seek the Board's approval fior any loans, donatione, grants,
or financial assistance provided by the charity which are not
part of the core charitable programmas listed in its policy.

{For example, loans o employese/subsidianes, grants or
{ financial essistance to business entitiea),

Ragularly identify and review the key risks that the charity
is exposad to and refer to the charity's procasses o
manage these risks.

Set intemnal policies for the charity on the following arsas

and regularly review tham:

a. Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of
Terrorism (AMLIGFT);

b. Board strategies, functions, and responsdhilitios;

¢. Employmeant practices;

d. Violuntesr management;

a. Finances;

{. information Technolegy (IT) including data privacy
managameant and cyber-security;

g. Investmeant (obtain advice from qualified prolessional
advigors if this iz deemed necessary by the Board);

h. Sarvice or quality standards; and

_ i. Other key areas such as fund-ralsing and data protection. _

The huﬂmniﬂlnuquiﬂlﬂtmmldbl
confident

operational policies and
mmmwﬂmof ]m o

The charity should alao measure the impact of
Ildrwondmfwy mﬁﬁhmﬂ

oocoumranca, o

ufﬂlﬂr-hmt]r.

42  Yes
No

Compliance

43 . " Yoa
No

4.4 .\f‘ﬁ-
No
Compliance

485 Yes
No

46 .«/m
No

Compliance

membens should not receive remuneration

The charity should discloss the following in its annual
report:
A. Number of Board mestings in the yaar; and

| B, Each Board member's attendance.

The charity shouid discloss in its annual report the total
annual remunaration remunaraiion i

than 5100,000 in annual remuneration each, the charity
diacioes thia fact.

{ should

The should discioss in its annual

bands of $100,000. Il none of its stafl is a closs member of
l'lnfmirufﬂnEnMMHMwad membars and
racaivea more than 000 in annual ramuneration, the

charity shousd discloss this fact.

relevant
advics, and resources to conduct their roles effecsivaly.
a. Record relevant discussions, views and
decizions in the minutes of genaral Board

mestings.
the minuies of theae meatinga o the Board as
800N &8

mmmwm have an appropriate quorum
of at least half Board rlnqlmhmmmm

Implement a M—Hmup@hmﬂmhw
mr:ﬁ:m;:ﬂ mmm

follow-up action taken as appropriats.

81

5.6a

5.60

a7

.J‘Eu

Compliance

“ Yea

Compliance

' Yea

3

.Jh

Partial
Compliance

.-»/m

Compliance

.\(m

Partial
Compliance




PHRINCIPLE 8: THE CHARITY COMMUNICATES ACTIVELY TO INETILL PUBLIC CONFIDENCE.

38 Devsiop and implement strategies for regular 81 ' Yes
commumication with the charity's stakehaldars and the No
public (For example, focus on the charity's branding Partial
and overall message, raise awarenass of ita cause to Compliance
maintain or increase public support, show appreciation to
supporters, and a0 onj.
37 | Listan io the views of the charity's stakeholdera and tha 6.2 ' Yea
public and respond constructively. No
Partial
Compliance
3  Imgplemeant a media communication policy to help the 83 Yes
Board and Managemeant build positive relationships with No
the media and the public. Partial
Compliance

DECLARATION

Name Latha Kutty
Email latha_kutty @ cpas.org.sg

Contact Office B585 5608
Medile

Designation % Executive Director Chial Exacutive Officer
General Manager Board Member

Pleasa note that any false information provided in this submission will invalidate this submission.

» | confirm that the infermation provided In this submission is trus and accurate to the best of my knowledge.
| am awara that the provision of false or misleading information in relation to this submission to the Commissionear of
Charities can constitute a criminal offence, which is punishable by imprisonment andfor a fine.

W | hereby declare that the Gowverning Board has approved this Governance Evaluation Checkiist and has authorized
me to submit this checkilst on its behalf. All information given by me In this checkiist subméssion s true 1o the best

FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

of my knowledge and | have not willfully suppressad any maierial fact
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In the opinion of the mémbers of the Executlve Committee of Cerebral Palsy Allisnce Singapore

(the “Association”),
{a)  he Rnarcial stotementa of the Assgdiation aa sct aul en peges § to 30 are drovwn up In accerdanes
CONTENTS with the provisien of the Societies Act 1966 (the "Soclethes Act™), the Charities Act 1994 and cther

relevant regulsticns (the "Charities Act and Regufalicns™) and Financal Reporting Standsrds in
Singapore 50 a5 to present falrly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Assoclation as
&L MAFEN 31, 0S5, ARG (e BNANRGEI PEFFORMANcE, CRANGES N TURDS 3nd c3sn NOws of [Ne ASSOCITon

BAGE for the financial year then ended;
{b) the use of donation moneys IS in sccordance with the abjectives of the Assodiation 8s requined under
Sravement by Executive Commithes 1 Regulation 11 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations;
(€] the Assaciation has complied with the reguirements of Reguiation 15 of the Charities {Institutions of
Incdepandant Auditors’ Roport -4 a Public Character) Regulations;

() cordance with th providons of the Sucetes Resuitions enactod under the Socedes Ac, the
; accordance w provisions ] ons under s the
Sxaterment of Financial Position 5 Charities Act and Regulations;

(2] the fund-raising appeals held during the peried Asgust 2024 hawe been camied out In accordance with
Statement of Comprohanciva Incoma €-7 Requlation 6 of the Societies Regulations issued under the Societies Act and proper accounts and ather
FECAraS Nave Deen kept of the MNG-rAISing APpeals; ana

Statement of Changes in Funds 8 (f}  atthe date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds ta beliove that the Association will be able
1o pay its debls when they Tall due,

Staternant of Cash Flows L]

Motes to Financial Statemants 10 - 30

ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Auvgust 18, 2025

&1
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFPORE

Faprur L v Lhe Augdil uf Lhes Fisaondial Stalaomenis
Opinion

Wie have audited the financial statements of Cercbral Palsy Alllance Singapore (the “Asseciation™), which
comprise the statement of financial pesition a5 at March 31, 2025, and the statement of comprehansive
incame, staterment of changes in funds and statament of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
thi financial statements, incleding material accounting policy information, as set out on pages 5 to 30,

In our opinien, the sccompanying financial statements arg propérly dreawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Act 1966 (the “Societies Act™), the Charities Act 1994 and other relevant
ragislatinne (the “Charities Art and Regulatinns®) and Financial Reporting Standanda in Singapone [“FRS<T)
50 a5 to give a troe and fair view of the financial pesition of the Association as at March 31, 2025 and of the
fingncial performance, changes in funds and cash flows of the Association for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

W conducted our audit in accardance with Singapare Standards an Auditing ("SSA37). Our responsibilities
wisder Wiose sloamlards are forkber desoribed in Une Auciitor s Sesgorsdliities for Oee Acof of the Finasal
Statemants stction of gur repart. We are independent of the Asseciation in accordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professiondl Conguel and Ebhics for Pulilic Accountants and
Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code™) together with the athical requirements that are relevant o our audit of
thix financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfiied cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Tharaon

Managrmant ia respanaible for the ather informating. The sthee infarmation compriaos the SEatamant by the
Executive Cammittee, but does nat include the financial statements and cur auditas's report thereon.

Qur opinion on the finpncial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
farm af assurance canclusion thercan.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibllity is te read the other information
and, in daing so, consider whether the other information s materially inconsistent with the financial
whaysments or our knowledge obtalned in the audic or etherwise appears o be materially misstaced. 16, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 8 material messtatement of this other infarmation,
wiz are required to report that fact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

Deloitte.

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

Responsibilities of Managament and Executive Committes for the Financial Statements

Management 5 respongible for the preparation of finoncial statements that give & true and fair view in
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Act, the Charities Act and Regulations and FRSs, and lor
devising and maintaining a system of mternal accounting controfs sulficient to provide a reasonable
assurance that ascets are safeguarded against loss from vnauthoriced veo or dicpesition; and trancactions
are properly authorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and falr
financial staternents and to maintain acoountability of assats.

In preépanng the hnancal Stalements, Management 1% Fesponsible Tor SSCLing the ASSOCRalN S adality 1o
continue as a going concern, dischosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and wsing the going
conoern basis of accounting unbess management either intends to liquidate the Association or o cease
agwratinns, nr has nn realictic alternative Bub toods sn

Thir Executive Committee is responsible for overseeing the Association’s financial reporting process.

Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our obiectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
e from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion, Ressonable assurance i a high level of assurance, but 5 not & guarantes that an audit
conducted in accordance with SSAs will always debect & material misstatement whan it exists, Misstatements
can arige from fraud o ecror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonakily be expected to influence the econamic decksions of users taken an the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5545, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
soepticlsm throughout the audit. We also:

(@) Identify and 233033 the risks of material misatatement of the financial statements, whother due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain awdit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriabe to previde a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstaternent resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resulting from efror, as fraud may
invabve colfusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

(b} Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are Bppropriate in the circumctanced, but not for the purpose of axpreascing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Association's internal contral.

[c) Ewvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accocunting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

[(d)  Conclude on the appropriatencss of mangement's use of the geing concern basis of accounting and,
hasad am the audit evidencs ahtainad, whathor & rmatasial nacarainty cdote ralarad fa suante or
conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Association’s ability to continue as a going concerm.
If we conclede that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are Inadequate, to
modify ur opinion. CUr CONCUSICNS are based on the audin evidence obrained wp 1o tho date of gur
auditers report. Howewer, future events or conditions may cause the Association to cease o continue
A% 2 Qoing concer,




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

Deloitte. D e R S

March 31, 2025
ticta 2025 2024
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF s s
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE ACCUMULATED FUNDS & 11,685,651 12,600,946
SPECIFIC FUNDS 7 7.606.889 6,693,578

DEVELOPMENT FUND 271,432 271,432
15,564,172 10,655,956

Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont'd)

REPRESENTED BY,
(e} Evaluabe the owverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the i B
QISCHISUNES, N0 Whetner e fnancial STATRMents frepresent the UNderying ransaciions and events. in NON-CUREENT ASSETS
A S Rehiaves THE prsben iAo Property and equipment 8 7462,819 7,852,670
We eommunicate with the Executive Committea regarding, amaong other matters, the planned scape and RO 3 l: 1: 2 L1320
timing of the audit and signdicant avdit findings, Including any significant deficiencies. in internal contred that — 18,518,900 13,585,004
we Identify during our audit. CURRENT ASSETS
D from Corebrad Palsy Alliance Singapore School East
W0 188,
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements D.L.?mmwj Palsy Alliance Singapore School West ¢ R S
1 litigi ("School West™) ] 14,141
N-Qur epinion: Armaunt dua from Mesotry of Sasial and Famdy Dovelepmant
(a) the accounting and other records required to be kept by the Association have been propery kept in Ratcmm.} propaymints and doposts 15;) 436 u-:; I'ﬁ;';ﬁg
accordance with the provisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Societies Act, the Cash and cash auvalents 11 19.962 723 16,413,916
Charities Act and Regulations; and 20,996,965 21,129,920
(b))  the fund-raising appeals held during the period August 2024 have been carmied cut in sccordance with CURRENT LIABILITIES
Regulation & of the Societies Reguiations issued under the Societies Act and proper acoounts and other Othar and 12 1.157.897 1.175.574
records have been kept of the fund-raising appeals. Oue m:ﬁ:?ﬂﬁ c i of 5 I 5 NCSST) | ad Cimiia
During the course of our audit, nothing has come to cur attention that causes us to believe that during the oo it Mgl . i A
PeeE: Deferred grant 14 510,300 510,300
{a} the Association has not used the donation moneys in accordance with its objectives as required under 3,568,685 3,402,385
Regulation 11 of the Charities {Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and NET CURRENT ASSETS 17,428,280 17,727,535
(B} the Aecseiation hee nar complied with Thi sequirsmanta of Regulatian 15 of the Charities {Tnarintinne
of a Public Characte lations. NON-CURRENT LIABILIES
g REgctedl Regulgtions Deferred capital donations 15 6377206 7,045014
Leasa Mablities 14 -] 6117
ﬂf 12,375,008 10,656,783
:D-‘m N NET ASSETS 19,564,172 19,655,956
Fublic Accountants and INET ASSETS OF TRUST FUNDS 16 89,463 59,873
Chartered Accountants
Singapore
August 28, 2025

S BOCOMPANYING Mobes to financial stabements,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2025
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont'd)

March 31, 2025
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s e
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTAMCE SINGAPORE

3 g ! ;ﬁl STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
5 d g 4 3 Year ended March 31, 2025
!!j E E 2025 2024
i e ] %
E Operating activities
f Oparating defiat (91,784)  (1,082,392)
5 3| =l of property and equipment 1,276,411 1,238,231
i E 3 z 5 B Depreciation of nght-of-usa bsset 1,584,987 1,248,565
Amortisation of defermed capital donations (1,050,318) (1.,071,544)
- B o Proparty and equipment written off 12,205 =
!l i ! g = Grarts from MSF (6,534,118)  (5.857.367)
5 & 3 Recharge of TOL fees to School West (680,400)  (510,200)
aﬁ [rtorest incoma (251,448) {285,529}
: . Interest eopense 150,053 114,614
= EJ I il Oparating cash flows before movemants in workeng capital (5.884.412)  (5,205,722)
o &
giﬂ" Z i i 9 3 Due from Schoots 590,119 (472,698)
4z Dua bo NCSS [ SGE - 271,000
. Roceivalios, propayments and deposts (7,328) (89,926)
E L el Other payables and Bocrutd ExpEnses 22,323 17
E!I,. g ; P Cash usad in conrations 5279, 6.157,.729
- 3 frtsssst-racabied 267,989 264,357
s Ll Intarest paid 41,007 22,536
‘i}h E :& 5\ e Mot cash usad in cparating activitios S 052 316) (5545 508
O L Investing activity
i . Purchass of prOPOTY and SUspMEnt, NeprEsenting
] iizg,!'- E i g_l nat cash usad in imeasting activity {Note A) [516,354) {224,185}
L] ¥ i Financing activities
g | Capital grant noceivad from MSF 7,916,548 4,774,937
3 i B = Repoyments of leasa liakilites {795.071) (812,441}
&i £ #gz 8 Mt cash from financing activitios 7,117,477 3,962 296
N = Naet incrossa (decraase) in cash and cash eguivalents 1,548,807 {2,207.5397)
i g & = Cash and cash equivalants at beginming of yoar 18,220.9 20,438,539
ﬂl. 3 i ; 3| Cazh and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 11) 19,769, 18,
iz 3. g A 4% SR
ull‘ = = §‘ ks During the yaar, tha Association acguined property and equipmant amounting to $898. 864 (2024 :
:E:ZOJ:I (Mote 8), of which $282,510 (2024 : 5334,017) = funded through defermed capaal donations
2 i
Bl |
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

2.2

GENERAL

Corabxal Palsy Allinnce Singapora (the "Association™) (Charity Registration Mo, 00073 and Socioties
Rogistration Mo. 0283/1957WEL) was formed in 1960 under tha Socketies Act 1966 to risa funds and
to develop and mbintain welfsre and educational services for people with corebral paley in
Singapone. The Association i domiciled in Singapons with #2 registerad office and principal place of
oparation at &5 Pasir Ris Orive 1, Cerabral Palsy Contre, Singapore 519529,

Tha Association, tha Corebenl Palsy Alliance Singapors School East (tha ™ School Exst™) and tha Consteal
Paley Alliance Singapone School West (the "School West™) ane funded by donations from the genaral

A o The
Association should bo read in conjunction with the Schools as the results of the Scheols ane in &
saparate set of financial statemants,

The finananl statements s axprassed in Singapore dollars, which s the functional cusrency of tha
AESOCEBLRON,

The financisl statements of the Association for the year ended March 31, 2025 were suthortesd for
issum by tha Executive Commitbee on August 28, 2005,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

BASIS OF PREPARATION - Tha financial statemants have been prepsred in sccordancs with the
historical cost basis, except a5 disclotad in the matenal accounting palicy information balow, and are
drawn up in sccordance with the provisions of the Sociaties Act, tha Charities Act and Rogulations and
Financial Reparting Standands in Singapora [“FRSs").

Historical st i ganerally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchanga for goods.
and sorvees,

Fair value Is the prce that would b recetved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabdity in an ordarly
i regardiess of whether

statamants is determined on such & bass, axcept for leasing transactions that are within the scope of
FRS 116 Leases, and moasuremants. that have somae similasities to falr valie but are not fair valua,
such a% valua in wea in FRS 36 Impairment of Assots.

ADCPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - In the current financial year, the Association has

adopted all tha new and revised FRSs that are mandatonly effective for an accounting pariod that

beging on or after Aprl 1, 2024, Thair adoption has not had any material iImpact on the dischosuns
or on the amaunts meported in thesa financial statemants.

10
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

3

New and revised standards in future pariods

At the date of suthorisstion of thase financial staternents, the Association has not applied tha following
FRS proncuncomaents that have been issuoed but ane not yot offoctihva:

. FRS 118 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Staternents
. FRS 119 Subsidiancs without Public Accountability: Disclosures

Management anticipabes that the adoption of the new or revised FRSs, INT FRSs and amandments to
FRS in future penods will not have » material impact cn the financial statements in the paniod of their
inetinl adoption axceapt 63 below,

FRS 118 Presentation and Disclosures [n Financial Statements

FRS 118 mplsces FRS 1, carmying forwand many of the requiresmants in FRS 1 unchanged and
complemanting tham with naw regerements. In addtion, soma FRS 1 paragrachs have bean moved
to FRS 8 and FRS 107. Furtharmons, minor amendments to FRS 7 have beon made.

FRS 118 introduces naw requirements to!
" presant specifiod categores and defined subtotals in the statemant of profit or loss;

. provide disdosunes on managemeant -dafined parformance measures (MPMs) in the notes to tha
financial statemants;

. improva aggrogation and disaggregation.
Thaa amendments to FRS 7, &s well &s the revised FRS 8 and FRS 107, bacome effective when an entity
applies FRS 116, FAS 1168 requires retrospectiva spplication with specific transition provisions.

Is in the procoss of evaluating the impact on tha Association’s financial statomant in the
initind application period. Mansgoment doas not plan to aarly adopt the new FRS 118,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - WMWHMHMWHAWMtMm
fwmmmmwmtmmm provigions of the
nstrument,

Financial assats and financial [iabslities sre intiaily messured bt fasr valug. Transaction costs that are
dirgctly attributablo to tha scquisition or isswe of financial stsets and financial listilities arm added to
or deduded from tha fair value of tha financial assets or financial liabilities, #s appropriate, on initial
FOCOgRIton.

i1
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

T2

Mlmmmﬂdvmwsﬂmhmwmwmwmummh
Tollowing conditions and ane subsequantly maeasuned at amortsad cost

s thefinancial asset is hold within a business model whose objoctive is 1o hold financal assets in
order to collact contractual cash Mows; and

s tha contractual terms of the financial ssset Qive rieg on specified dates to cash fows that ang
sclely paymants of prncipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortized cost and effective inferest method

The affectise intarest mathcd s & method of calculating the smorised cost of & debt instrument and
of allocating intanest incom owr th relevant panod.

Tha affective inderest rato = the rate that eoctly discounts estimated future cash roapls {incuding
all fees and points padd or received that form an integral part of the offective interest rate, transaction
costs and othar premiums or discounts) axdluding expected credit losses, through the axpacted life of
tha debt instrumant, of, whane aporopniate, a shorter pariod, to the gross carmying amount of tha debt
Instrumant cn intial recognetion,

The armortiued cost of A financial sscet is the amount at which the financial sacet is massured a2 iniisl
recopnition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amoftisation using the affective
interest mathod of any difference betwoan that initial amaount and tha w’(ﬂm ; pdjusted for

any loss allowance. On the cther hand, ﬂnmemdnﬁ sssat is the amortised
mtnl'al'mmml mmmmm allewancs.

imhwmwwhmuimmmm instrumants maassurod subsequantly
at amortised cost, except for short-term balanos whon the effect of discounting is immatanial,

Impairmant of finaocial agsets

mmm:mummnmdmmmﬁmmmm-.
Thir amount of axpectod crodt losses is updated at each reporting date to raflect changes in croadt
risk since initial recogrition of the respective financial insrumaent.

& default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of & finencinl asset baing
cradit-impained at the neporting date or an actual default ocourming.

12
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2.3.1 Financial sssats Significant INCroage in erodit risk
Classification of financipl assets In assessing whithar the credt risk on a financial nstrument has increased significantly sace mnitial

recogniton, the Association compares the risk of a default occurming on tha financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the nsk of a default occurring on the financial instrument os at the date of
Imum?mmlnmuunqnhmm tha Association considors historical loss rates for each
category of dobtors and adiusts to reflect curment and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort,

Tha Association presumes that the credit nek on a financial asset has increased significantly si
Imﬂwtmwmmwpmmmmmmmmmmm
hirs. reagonabie and supportably information that demontrates othansis,

Thi Associabion assumes that the credit risk on a financal instrumant has not incraased significantly

sinc initial recognition if tha financial instrumant is determined to have low credit risk at the egonting

date. A financial instrument s detormined to have low crodt sk if (i) the financial instrument has a

hevr sk of dafault, (i) the bormower has & strong capacity to meaet its contractual cash flow obligations

in tha noar term thhlmw in economic and blsiness conditions In Iﬂthﬁwliﬂn

W.MHIFMW. ‘the ability of the bormower to fulfil ts contractual cash flow
igations.

I canmdil rivk s onk inresse) sipilcatly s initial veaspitian o 7 Une coedit greality of Ues
financial inttruments impooves such that thane i no longer a significant INcroase in credt rsk since
initial recognition, loss allowancn s maasured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Dofintion of dofauwlr

Tha Assoanation considers that default has occurmed whan information developed internally or obtained

Hmmmmﬂmhﬁ%:ﬂﬂwmmmm inchuding tha

w.lﬂﬁﬂmmh Asgociation o actions such as nealising security held
any).

Cradit-impaired financial assels

A financin] xsset is credit-impained wihen cne or more avents that have & detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurmed,

Write-off palicy

mwm»maﬁmmm&Mu-mmmmhm

mto .

off may still bo subject to enforcamont activithes undor tha Association's recovery procodunes, taking

|mmmmmmmmmmwmpm:um

Moasinement and recognitian of expedicd crodi losses

For financial assats, tho expected credit oes k= estimated as the difference botweon all contractual

cash flows that nmm:hwmmmwmmwuuhmmm

thea Associateon expects to receive, discounted at the criginal effective intenst rate,

If the Asscciation has measured the loss allowanca for a financial instrument at an amount egual to
Ifetime ECL in the previous repoting poriod, but determines ot the curment roporting dato thot thae
conditions for lfetima ECL are no longer met, tha Association messures thae loss allowance at an
amount ogqual to 12-month ECL at tha cument reporting date.

13
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

Darecogniticn of fingnon! assets

Tha Association derscogneses a financind asset only whan the contractual rights to the cash Aows from
the aszet exping, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially il the risks and rewards of

of tha asset to anather antity. If the Association nother transfors nor rtains substantially
all tha risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transfermed asset, the Association
Meopnoes (kS retained intorest in the asset and an asscciated lability for amaounts it may have to pay,
I tha Association retains substantislly all the risks and rewards of ownanship of a transfermed financial
assat, the Association continues to recognise tha financiyl asset and also mcognises o collaternfized
barrowing for the procssds recalved,

2.3.2 Financial habiites

&4

Financial listelitios of the Associstion am ciassified acconding to the substance of the controctual
mrangamants antend into and the definitions of & financial kadity.

Cthar payabios, soonued axpanses, amount dua to NCSS J SGE and dofermed job support schama grant
income ara initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently messured at amortised codt, uting
the offectine interest methad, except for shom-term payables whan the offect of discounting 1S
irenatecial

L josi 68 L gt

The Association demcopniued financial labilities when, and only when, the Assotation's obligations
ane discharged, cancalied or axpingd,

PROPERTY AMND ECQUIPMENT - Property and ogquipment am carmied ot cosl less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss.

Proparty and aguipmant costing 51,000 or less are written off in the year of acguesition,

wdwfwmpmuswmmammummwﬂHupmwu
Ihves of the sssets concermed. The principal annual rates usad for this purposs are

Loaseheld bulding . 13%
Fusmitune and equipment . 20%
Comptors : 30%

= 20%:
Offic equipment - 20%
Renovaticns - 10%
Rohabilitation equipment = 20%

The estimated useful Ives and depreciation method s neviewed at the end of sach reporting period,
with the effect of any changas in estimate sccounted for on 8 prospactive basis.

Tha gaén or koss Brising on disposal or retiremant of an item of property and equipment s determined
s tha diffarence botwoen tha sales proceeds and tha chmying amounts of the asset snd s recognised
in NCOMmE oF axpanditung,

Fully depracistad assets still in use ang rotaened in the financial statemants.,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

2.5 IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS - mmmammmwﬂrhw
ravians tha carmying amoents of its non-financial assots to determing whather thara & any indication
that thesa sssets have suffored an impairment loss. If any such indication axsts, the recovorable
amount of the asset is estimated in cnder to determine the extent of the impairment koss [ amy).
Whara it i5 not possibla to estimate the necoverabie amount of an indwvidual assat, the Association
estimates the recovarabla smount of the cash-ganerating unit to which the sssat belongs.

Recoverabie amount is tha higher of fair valuae less codts to sall and value in use. In bssessing value
I usa, the estimsted future cash flows B decounted to their present value using & pro-tax discount
rata that reflects curment market assessmants of the tima value of money and tha risks specific to the
astat for which the estimated future cash flows have not bean adjusted.

If tha recovierable amount of an asset (or cash-Denarating uit) is estimated to be less than its carmying
amiount, the carrying amount of the asset (cash-generating tmt) i educed to its moovarable amount,
An impairmant loss is recognised immediately in income or expanditure.

¥here an impaimment loss subseguant!y reverses, tha camying amount of the asset (cach-gonarating
unit) is incroased to the rvised estimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the axtent that the
inCrishged carmying amount doed not exceed the carmying amount that would have beon determined
had ne impairmant Inss baan recngnisad for tha acoat [cash-ganarating unit) in prinr yaas. A revecsal
of an impasiment loss B mecognised immadiately in ntome oF xpanddture,

2.6 PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Associntion has a present obligation (logal or
constructiva) as a result of & past event, it i probabla that the Associstion will be reguired to settle
tha obligaticn, and & refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

Tha amount ocognised as & provison i the best etimato of the condidoration reguined o satthe the
presant obligation at the end of the reporting paniod, taking into account the rsks and uncertainties

tha abligation. Whare a provision is moassunsd using the cash flows estimated to settle
tha present obligation, its carmying amount is the presant value of thosa cash flows.,

When soma or all of tha economic banefits nequined 1o settle & provision ane expacted to be recovered
from & third party, the meceivable is recognised 5% an sssat if it i virtuslly crtain that nembursemant
will by necaived and the amount of the receivabla can be maxsured reliably,

2.7 DEFERRED CAPITAL DOMNATIONS - Donations for the acquisition of property and equipment are taken
to tha Daferned Capital Donations Account and recogresed a5 incoma over the useful lives of the sssets
to match the depreciation of the assets purchased with the related donations. Donations recaived for
spacific purpeses are accounted on a cash basks.  This comprises govarmmant grants and contributions
retaivid from donors to construct, furnish and egquip the Association,

2.8.1 LEASES (AS LESSEE) - Tha Association assesses whether a contract is of containg a leads, ot inception
of tha contract. Tha Association recognises & night-of-use ssset and a comaspondng lasse listility with
raspact to all lease arrangamants in which it is tha lesses, mxcept for shot-term leases (defined as
loases with & lease term of 12 months o less) and loases of low value Bssets. For these leases, the
Agsocistion recognises the laaso payments &S BN operating axpanta on & sirssght-Ene basis over tha
torm of the lease unless sncthar systematic basis ks more ropresentative of the time pattern in which
economic banalts from the lossed assets are consurmad,
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025

76

T hoarsg nbility 15 initially méssuned at the poesent valug of the lebse payments that ar not paid at
tha commaencemant date, discounted by wsing the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot ba
readily datermined, the Association uses tha incremental Bormowing rate spocific to the lessoe.

e s linkality 5 presented o & saparate line in the statemant of financidl position,

Tha loasa labikty & subseguently measured by increasing the camying emount to refloct interest on
tha lease lisbility {using the effective interest mathod) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect
tthe laasa payments made.

Tha Association remadsuned the lease abiity (and makes & cormespondng adjustmant to the related
nght-of -usa asset) whenaver:

" Tha laase tarm has changod or thire i & changa in thi assessmant of exercise of a0 Gxenon
ogtion, in which case the lease labiity is remessuned by discounting the revised lease paymaents
uSing B revised discount rate; or

* A loasa contract is modified and the lease modification s not accounted for a8 b separats kaatae,
Im which casa tha lease lisbdity is remassuned by discounting the rivised foase paymonts using
& revised disoount rate.

Tha night-of-use asset the initial massuremant of the comesponding lease liabilty, lexse
paymants made 8t of the commaencement day and any initial direct costs. Thoy are
subsaquantly moassunnd &t cost loss acoumulated dopraciation and impairment lossas.

Right-of-use ascet am depreciated over the shorter penod of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset, Tha depreciation starts at tha commancamient date of the leasae.

Loasohold Lond - 20%
Tha right-of-use ssset ang orasonted &5 8 socarabe line in the statermant of financis! position,

Tha Association applies FRS 36 to determine whothaer a right-of-uso asset is impained amd sccownts
for any identiliod impadrment loss as described in the 'Property and Equipment” policy.

2.8 ELEMEIJAELES&ORJ Rantad incoms from oporating laases is recognsed on & siraight-ling basis ovr

tha barm of the refavant keasa. Initisd dinect costs incurmed in mogotiating and amanging an opeating
m;ummﬂmmmohmummmm a straight-ling bass
over tha lease term.

TRUIST FUNDS - Monies recaived for trust funds ane credited directly to the mespective triust funds”
financil statements.  [roomd and dxoonditung, assets and habilithes of trust funds an sogregated from
that of the Association.

2.10 ACCUMULATED FUNDS - Tho accumulsted funds are restricted for the oparations of tha respective

programmes. only, for tha bonefit of its intended chents. In kotoing with tha funders’/donces” intent
for the usa of tha monies, the funds will not ba transfered out of tha programma for other pUrposes.

Asiva gt | FIRANCAL YEAR 24725

2.11 SPECIFIC FUNDS - The funds comprise the cumulative operating surplus or deficit areing from the
specilic income and axpenditure scocunt.

Buiding Imorgvamant Furd

Tha buikdng improvemant fund was established in 1989 for renovaticn, upgrading and madntaining
the building of tha Association,

Burnifurs aod S oot Fund

mzwz.hwmmmewmﬁmmsmﬂme und wons combined
to form the Furnstuere and Egquipment Fund, This fund is used for the purchass of furmiture and
equipmant for the Association.

GROW Fund

Thiz fund was established in 1954, rmwmmmmwwmﬁm
for tha workshop are channalled to this fund. Tha fund is used for the genersl welfare of workshep
Lrnirspas.

DAC Fund

This fund is used to halp the financial neady clents undar the Day Actinty Centre {"DACT) to subssisa
thair transportation feos, programma fiees, purchasa of assistive rehabilitative aids and welfare needs.
ElLFund

This fund is wsed to help the financial needy children undar the Eary Intervntion (TE17) to subsidiee
thair fees, purchase of asaktive rehabildntive sids and welfare nsods.

S{off Tepining angd Weifare Fund

This fund s designated for staffl training which i one of the key componants for upgrading of ghlls to
ramain ndavant, and staffl waelfare which promotes stafl bonding and provides recognition throwgh long
sorvion awards and approciathon,

Erodect Fund

This fund helps to promote the awsnsness and the image of the Azscciation in general, induding public
education and Associathon, information

17
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
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March 31, 2025
Walfacs Fund
Thas fund s used with the objrctives of subsidsing needy children and workshop trainees for tha
mﬂmdnﬂcﬂmm:ﬂuﬁlmmmmlumlmmm rmincical

212

.13

of
and dental fees inclusive of the purchase of madicine and othar expenses for the ganeeal welfare of

E%

Thits fund is used for tha purpose of setting up an assistive technology clinic, os wall a5 to sssist the
fnancially neady cliants to purchase pssistive equipmant.

E

Thes fund is Lsed to halp entcurage donations and provida additional resources for sanice providars
in tha intermaediate and long term cara sector, It provides & dollar-for-dollar match for all donaticns
received under the GROMW and DAC programamas.

PROGRAMME DEVELOFMENT FUND - Programmas roceiving MCS5's [ 5GE's grant under a *Per Capita®
funng policy Ang Allowed 10 STAM & Frogramma Doveopment Fund. This

incorme retained by the Assocation and is computed based on 50% of unmestricted donations, or 5%
of total oporating expandiuny whichawar s kwer,

RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE - The Association recognises incoma whon it transfars
control of 8 product o service 10 8 customar,

Cash donations
Cash donations are recognsed on & cosh basis,

Grants from MSF, WCSS [ SGE and Tote Board

Grants necaived from MSF, NCSS / SGE and Tote Board are

on an ool basis, Any surplus
or dafict of funding will ba accounted for after it is fnalised w suthorities.

tha relevant

Sale of grods

Revonass is medsured based on the consideration specsied in b contract with & customar and excdudes
amounts collected on behall of third parties. The Asscciplion fecognises nivenua when it transfers
control of the goods to 8 customer,

Bendering of services
Revance from rendenng of services arg recognised whan the services ane providad.

Erpgramma foes
Programma fees ana recognisoed whan the senvicns sre rendaned,

18
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NOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

2,15

.16

Jemporary ocoupation license fes
Temporary occupation eensa fees am recognised as rental income on an scorusl bass in the penod
to which it relates,

Intacost ncome

Interast incoma i accrued on a tima basls, by reference 1o the principal cutstanding and at the
effactiva interest rata applicabla.

Expangiyny
Expondiun & sccounted for on the scorual basks.

RETIREMENT BEMEFIT COSTS - Paymants to defined contribution retiremant bonafit plans are chargaed
as an expense when employees have rendered the senvice entitiing them to the contnibutions.
Payments made to state-managoed retirement benefit schomes, such s the Singapong Central
Provident Fund, are dealt with as payments to defined contnbution plans whane the Associalion’s
mmm:hmmmfmm:mmnnaﬁmmmmw

EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employie entitiements to annual leave ame recognised whan
accrue to employess. A provision is made for the estimated lability for annual leave as & result
sorvices rendered by employets up to tha end of the reporting pariod,

it

RESERVES POLICY - mwwluwummmummwmwm
than & months projected recurrent oparating axpansas. from Accumulated Fund, and 12 months
projected axpenditune from Specific Fund,

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of tho Assodiation’s matenal sccounting poscies, which ane descnbed in Note 2,
managament is nequired to make judgemaents, estimates and assumptions about tha carmying dmounts
of mssots and liabilties that are not madily apparont from other sources. Tha estimates and associated
assumptions am based on historical cxpenence and other factors that ane considared to be rdavant.
Actual results may diffar from these estimates.

Th iestirnatos snd unded ying assumptions are reviawed on an ongoing badis, Rovisond to socounting

estimatos aro recognsad (n the pariod in which the estimate is revised if tha revision affects only that
paniod, arin the peried of tha revision and future periods if tha revision affects both curment and future

Critieal judgements in applying the Association’s material accounting policies

Managemaent is not aware of any critical judgoments that would have significant effect on the amounts
recognisad in thae financial statemonts.

15
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

MNOTES TO FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Key sources of estimation uncertainty The Assocdation’s cument credt rigk grading framework compnses the following
cabegorias:
Tha Asgociation dois not hove any key sources of estimation uncertainty ot tha end of the mpadting - = -
mmuhwawnmﬂmwlmmmhmmmﬁm Category  |Description Basis for fecognising expected
and labilties withan the next financial yoar, credit losses (ECL)

Pariorming | The coLotarparty as & & 1k of G805 Ard | L2-manth ECL
dowi not have any past-gue amosnts.

a4 FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISH AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
AFMOuUnt i 30 Ay Dast Ous or theds Ras Deen |Likebms ECL -
8)  Chtegocias of fnpecisl inerpmants » grdcant neeate n erodhd risk Singe intial (ot crada-impaired

recognition,
Tha following tabla sets cut tha financial instruments a5 at the and of the roporting penod: T = BT R PR A R T e
wvidénce indicating the atset & crdit-smpired
2025 2024 credzorsared,
$ § Cr:
Write ot Thate i3 evidente indaating hat the debtor i in |Ameunt k5 writhen off
Financihl passty severs Bnancisl Giculty and the company has
Tealisis proapect of
At amortised cost 20,872,250 21,027,199 iz sl
Financial llabilities Thae table balow detods tha credit quatity of the Association’s finoncisl assets as well as
FRBXIMUM axposun to oredt ek by credit riak rating grades:
At amestised cost 2,237,167 2,193,779 frtansd G Wt
Loase lisbilities 6,823,020 4,285,010 crode 12+manth of urmc:p Loss carrying
Bigis
$
b) FLFE]
The Astociation has limited exposuns to financisl risks, Thare has been no change to the i cTrioy
Agsociplion’s axposuna to the financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures Sehenl Wit 5  Performing  13mECL 558,191 . 598,193
thassa rigks.
Racervalien ard
(1) Cooce sk dapose 10 Performing  1dmiBCL 31,334 - 311,334
Tha Associstion has adopted procodunss in @dending crodit teems to recoivables and in
manitoring its credit risk. Tha Association is primarily funded via grants and donbtions and B
It pitempts bo andura sufficent lguidity at all times throwgh effickent cash management. 1t Amousic s feom
places its cash with creditworthy financial institutions and s subject to immatenial credt School Esst snd
lerss, School West 5 Parforming 12m ECL 1,000,352 = 1188312
Tha Association develops and maintaing its credit nsk gradings to cotegonse axpodures Amount due from
accordng to their dagree of sk of default. The Associption uses its own trading necords HEF Parforming  12m ECL 1,082,430 = 1082470
o raba s major eceivablos and other debtors. Race il
daposit 10 Parforming 13m BCL 347 541 - 342 541

Their ASS0CEtON Was axpoed to & concantration of credit risk with Nispect to amounts dua
from the School East, Schodl West and government sgances, which represaented 66%
{2024 : 87%) of totn! receivables ot the end of the reporting period,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTAMCE SINGAPORE CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HMarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
(i) lotorest chis riek Sipnificant related party transactions during the year was & follows:
Changos i intorest rates do not have a materisl impact on tha Association as its 2025 2024
Intenest-baaring asset only relbtes to fiod deposits and its interest bearing listality only $ §

ralatos to lassa Habilities., Furthar details of fixed deposits and leasa lisbilities ame disclosed
b Motes 11 and 14,

Profosssonal fees for services rendersd-Schoal East before GST 2,070,275 1,966,255
(i) Forpbon cumency rigk Professional feas for services nendened-School West bafore GST 19,951 -
Rochargs of TOL feos 1,360,368 1.186.141

Thar Association does not have sny sgnificont axposuns to fomsgn axchangd risk,

(iv)  Liguschty rigk

Liquidity sk k5 managed by matching the paymant and receipt cycle. Tha Association’s
oparations ard finonced mainly through net assets of trust funds.

Capital grants 5834118 5,857,368

Al financinl lisbilities in 2025 and 2024 are non-intenest bearing and repayable on demand

nrd:.rlwluiwlxnrfmmﬂnrrdufﬂunwﬂngmmd,mehmHlbﬂm T nemuneration of members of kiy managument during the year was s folows;
desciosad in .

2025 2034
3 $

v

Tha carrying values of financisl assats and financial labilities reported in the statemant of Short-term benafits 195,025 188,452
financial position approximate thoir faer values, due to the neiatively short-term makurity Fost-empioymant banefits 13,496 17,157
of these financial instnements, axcapt for leasa liabditkes disclosed in Mote 14, 208,521 205,639

€}

Number of mambars of Ky management with rémuneration within
The Association raviews its capital structure ot ket aonually to ensure that the Association will the beiow band durinig year ws 24 fallows:

h::nt:.ild Ham funds, P mmﬁ'mw f mu-zs} Bamunaration band
[ DrOgERTITE grants from
SGE, MSF and Tote Board, The Associstion's ovirall strategy remains unchanged from the $100.000 to $200,000 and abova® 20 12
provious Ginencial yoaar,
™ comprised of satary and bonus

5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Soena of tha ASsooabon’s raneactions and amrangomants are with a related party and the offect of

thasa on tha basis determined batwoeen the parties are reflacted in these financal statemants, The
balences are unsecured, intergst-fras and repayable on demand,

22 23
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025 g’i'ﬁ_gg ﬂEEg §
pe39 4441 33
6 ACCUMULATED FUNDS
RS 883 §
Accurnulated funds included MSF and NCSS / SGE funded programmies that are resticted for we n E 3.. i E 8 E f - 1 o
thir operations of the respective programmaes only. E " ] Lo 2
Ther assots hald under aach specific fund mainly compeica cash and cath adquivalents, E = E g | 4 E E i’
Accumulated funds ar analysed as foliows: = i isﬁ- g‘ TE g ; E 2 i
% 3
Genaral accurmulated funds 881,99 9,940,730 5} E §_ % % g E 2 ? g
Dasignated for El programmae 3,326,082 3,557,103 i " N i i &
] ] ¥ =
Designated for DAC programma 1,396,056 1,197,524 E§. 3 Ef § § 5 g E ;;.
Designated for GROW programma (3399)  (23,250) L s A 3
Designated for Rehabiltation Certre (762.372)  (762,372) i 153 :
Designated for Therapy Rehabiltation programme (1,230,427)  (1,290,556) Egé} - § g g I
Designated for Bayond Boundaries Chb 77,915 71,767 H
2,803,855 2750216 5 g E 5 § E E
Accumulatod funds batanca 11685851  12.690.946 "§' é ig g " g g g
psd| B83d | 3z 9
i3- 5 ¢ §53 | ¢
2 58 d | o3
TREE §98 | A3
B il 18
g?iﬁ‘ 2 g £
= n g d s zF 4
iETg g § : S Eg 3 :
s &
B =
g £
4 § Er-l
]
n q B L] 3
2 8 R f i; g i =
53, = i (i qlli
=E £ ] L s £ :
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Tha Association leases [and from Sengapona Land Authority, Tha lease term ks 3 to 5 years,

SRBER
hist b
0 | O

7,051 981
4,732 534

10 RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS AND DEPOSITS

168,295
108,571
102,721

024
5

92,430

153,753
124,715

Interpst recaivable from fixed deposts

65,271
445,262

65,151

436,049

2024

2025

5,236,647
10,177, 265
18,413,916

192 984
15 330 932

19,962,723
192 984
19 769,730

11,671,101

8,291,622

7

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

13

14

mfmmuWIanmm:Mnﬂis*uw amwlm:rw
annum with & tenure at 3 to 12 months (2024 : 12 months), {h}nﬂim ly comvertibla to
cash at minimal cost.

Fuood depcsits undaer plodpa am plediged to a bank as secutity for Bsuance of a banker's guarantos
prowided to the Association.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

2025 2024
b ] ]
Crher payables 691,030 517,682
GST payables - 21,065
BAccrund axpansas 506,567 636,627
1,197 697 1,175 574
DUE T MCSS [ SGE
2025 2024
$ k]
Balance at beginning of yoar 1,039,270 768,270
Prior yoar funding received during tha year . 271,000
Accruals on funding receivable - -
Balance at and of yoar 1,039,270 1,039,270
LEASE LIABILITIES
2025 2024
$ %
Maturity analysis:
Yoar 1 1,006,174 789,579
Yoar 2 1,516,474 680,400
Yoar 3 1,516,474 680,400
Yoar 4 1,516,474 580,400
Year 5 and bayond 1,817,755 1,871,100
7,373,351 4,701,879
Loss: Uinoarnad interast (550, 331) {412 869}
6,823,020 4,289,010
Analysed ps:
Currant* 821,218 677,241
MNon-currant EMIIBDZ 3611769

5,823,020 4,289,010

= In 2025, tha deferred grant includes advance laxie paymaents dinsctly mada by MOE for School
West promises mnsiiﬁm

8
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HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025
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The table bolow detads changas in tho Associstion’s Rablities ariting from financing activities, including
both cash and non-caeh changes, Lisbilitees arising from financing activities are thesa for which cash
flows wan, o futurn cash flows will ba, classified in the Associstion's statement of cash (lows & cash
flows from financing activitios.

— Nonecashchanges
Agril 1, Finpncing  Mow lossa Inerest  TOL pald by March 31,
plirs] eash flow cheition Sxpance 2025
§ $ § $ !'- §

Lease labiity 4,289,010 (799.071) 3,908 432 109,047
4,289,010 (799.071) 3,904,434 109,047

(680,400) 6,823,020
(680.400) _6.623.020

Non-cash ﬂr_v,%
April 1, Financing laasa ritaest March 31,

2023 cash flow pddition L] MOE 2024
H 5 H 5 5 H

Loy liakility 1428 628 B12 4481} 4601 345 92,078 1.020,600) 4389010

1,428 628 (612 441) 4,601,345 $2078  [1,020,6000 4249010

DEFERRED CAPTTAL DOMATIONS

This fund was set up in 2004 to record donations received and funds from MSF and MOE for the cost
m‘mmymdmnrmat&sMrmsbﬁwl.wmvmmﬂm.mm
will b amortised based on the estimated useful life of the property and equipment.

2025 2024
§ F)
Capital grant and donations received:
Balance at boginning of yoar 19,531,260 19,197,242
Adiditions:
= Furmiturd onvd oguipment 7.605 17,699
= Computers 24,527 4,581
- Office equipment 261 118,809
= Renovaions 232,171 111,397
= Rehab equipment 117,545 81,532
Balance at end of year 19,913,770 19,531,260
Accumulated amortieation:
Balance at boginning of yoar 12,486,346 11414702
Amoctsation 1,050,318 1,071,544
Batance at ond of year 13,535,564 12 486 246
Camying amount 5377208 1045014

29
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mareh 31, 2025

16

17

MET ASSETS OF TRUST FUNDS
Truss funds rpresent specific financal assistance provided by Lee Foundation,

2025 2004
§ 5
Balance ot begnning of year 56,673 74,927
Amount dshorsed 163,376 (197,996}
Amaunt oo ved 173 766 222 943
Balancs ot end of yaar 8
Raprasented by:
Cash and bank balsnoes #0463 90,573
MANPOWER COSTS
2025 2024
3 3
Costs of defined contribution plans includod in Manpower costs 1,527 357 1 1
FUNDRAISING COSTS
2025 2024
] $
Charity Dinnar avont 39,336 39,083

Fundraising coéts from tha Charty Cinndr avant represent approximately 13.9% (2024 © 8.76%) of
tha total gross recaipts from this event.

TAXATION

All regstensd and axempt chanties will anjoy sutomatic Inoome thx exsmption and chanties do not
nmad to fila incoma tax effective from Year of Assessmant 2008,

TAX EXEMFT RECEIFTS

T Association anioys & concassonary tax treatment winsreby qualifying donors ane granted 2.5 times.
tax deduction for the donations mada to the Association.

2005 2024
B 5
Donaticns for which tax exempt receipts ware issuod 1,136,581 1,269,885

% Al Bapodt | ARANCAL YEAN 2425

Deloitte.

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE
SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST

(Charity Registration No. 00073 and
Sociotios Registration No. 0283/1957WEL)

REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

FIMANTIAL TEAR FAES | Ansual Sagart

=l




REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTENTS

Statement by Executive Committea
Independent Auwdtor's Report
Statoemant of Financial Position
Statomant of Comprohansive [ncoma
Statemant of Changes in Funds and Reserves
Statemant of Cash Flows

Motes 1o Finandial Statemants

92 Asiva gt | FIRANCAL YEAR 24725

i0-38

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinksn of the members of the Executive Committes of Cencbiral Palsy Alllance Singapore School East
[the *School East™),

)

by

€}

L0}

NMMNMMEMMMMMMSWHMWHW

Mirststry i

and the Mwmmﬂwmummm,hummm
fnancial position of the School East as ot March 31, 2025, and the financial performance, changes in

Tufidd AAd fidefved 5Rd EA4R Nowd Of T SONSG EBSL M5 U RSN Y5 Ren SNO60;

the receipt, expenditire and Investrment of mondes and the acgquisition and disposal of adsets by the
ﬁg?&mmggﬂnwxhhumdmuMmmldhimmwMMﬁm“ﬂhvnMﬁﬂm
and the +

the donations and other receipts of the School Exst are used for Bpproved projedts and
purposes intended, and are in accondance with the of the Schaol East as nequired under
nmumm11auuuumuummmmudlnuu Regulations;

the School East has complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charitkes (Institutions of
a Public Character) Regulations;

mmmmmwmumwmmmmmmmn
accordance with the provisons of the Socicties Regulations enacted under the Socleties Adt, the
ﬂumuaﬁuﬁnﬂummmuuulnﬂsmﬁmﬁﬁhﬂhﬂdbrmuﬂmuwﬁﬁﬁhﬂuw

ot the date of this statement, theng ane reagonable grounds to beliewe thag the Scthool East will be able
to pay s debis when they fall due.

0N BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
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INDEPEHDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT TO THE EXCCUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financlal statements of Cerebral Patsy Alliance Singapore School East (the “School
Coak™}, which comprise the atotement of financial poaltion a3 at Morch 31, 2025, ond tho statomant of
comprehensive incomd, statement of changes In funds and resenves and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and nates to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting palicy
indormation, as set out on pages 5 to 38,

In gur opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn wp in accordance with the
provisions of the Societies Act 1966 (the “Societles Act®), the Charities Act 1994 and other relevant
regulations {the "Charities Act and Regulations®™), the rules and regulations i<ssed by the Ministry of
Education ("MOE"), the National Council of Social Service ("NCSS") and the 5G Enable (TSGE™), and Financial
Reparting Standards in Singapore ("FRSS") 50 as to give a true and fair view of the financial pesition of the
School East as at March 31, 2025 and of the financial perfermance, changes in funds and reserves and cash
floves of the Scheol Cast for the yeor ended on that date.

Basis for Opinian

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("55As7), Our responsibilities
under these standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Lirlements section of aur repart. We are independent of the School East in accordance with the Accoanting
and Corporabe Reguisbory Authority Code of Professions Conduct and Ethics for Public Acéauntants and
Accounting Entities (TACRA Code”™) tegether with the ethical requiréments that are relevant o our audit of
the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with thess requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinlon,

Infermation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Schoo! Management Committee s respansible for the other infoemation. The other informaticn compeises
the Statement by the Executive Commitbee, but does not include the financial statements and gur auditor's
riport thenton.

Qur apinion on the financial staternents does nob oover the other infarmation and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion therson,

In connecticn with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibllity is to read the other information
and, in deing S0, consider whether the other information is materiplly inconsistent with the financial
sthternents or our Knowledge obtained in the audit, or ctherwise appears bo be materially misstated.
1If, based an the wark we have perfarmed, we conclude that there is a maberial misstaternent of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repoet in this regand,

Dbt Tt LI Pt [ty o SADTY L] 0 08 0P b by uhD AT I BIROCos wrcier o Lmited Lty Fartraningn et fhapns TERY.

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST

Responsibilities of School Management Committee and Executive Committee for the Financial
Statements

Schoel Management Committes s responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Adt, the Charities
Act and Regulations, the rules and regulations issued by the MOE, the RCSS and the 5GE, and FRSS, and
for devising and maingaining @ system of INRemal accounting contros SUMcnT 1o provide 3 ressenabls
assurance that assets bre safequarded dgainst [o55 from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions
are properly duthorised and that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair
financial statements and to maintain accountability of asoels,

In preparing the financial statements, the School Management Committee is responsible for assessing the
Schopl East's abllity te continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going
concarn and using the going concamn bacls of acceunting unlecs the Bchaol Management Committea either
intends 1o liquidate the School East or to ceass operations, or his nd realistic alernative but to do 5o,

The Executive Committee is respansible for oversecing the Schoal East's financial reparting protess,

Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtaln redsonable assurance about whether the finoncial statements 85 o whaole are
frit from maberial misstaterment, whether due to fraud or érror, and 1o Bdee bn auditor's report that incdludes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance i3 B high level of assurance, but is not a guarantes that an auwdit
conducted in accordance with S5As will atways detect o material misstatement when ik exists. Mizstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material If, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasanably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As port of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise prefessional judgement and makntain professional
soephicism throbghout the sedit. We also:

{a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dee to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain awdit
evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion, The risk of not detecting
a matoral misstatemant reaulting frem franed ks higher thon for gna réaulting from errar, a3 froud may
invalve collusion, fargery, Intentional omissions, msrepresentations, or the override of internal contral,

{b} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant o the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the ciroumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinian on the
effectiveness of the School East's internal control.

{c}  Fualuate the appropriateness of acceemting pelicies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the School Mansgement Committee.




Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST

d}

(=)

Condlude on the appropristéness of the School Management Commitbee’s use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainly exists
refabed to awents or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Schoal East's abélity te cantinue
as a gaing concem. IFwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required Lo deaw attention
In our auditar's repart to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, If such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion, Our conclusions ane based on the audit evidence obtained up to
tha data of sur auditer's report. Howavar, fultura evants or conditions may causa tha Scheol Eastte
cease o continue as a going concamm,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, Including the
disclosures, and whether the financial stotements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with thie Executive Committes regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contred that
we identify during cur audit,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In gur opinlan, the accounting and other records required to be kept by the School East have been properly
kept in accordance with the pravisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Societies Act, the
Charities Act and Regulations and neies and regulations issued by the MOE, the NCSS and the SGE.

During the course of ouf audi, nathing has come o cur Atlentien that caused us to believe that during the

Yo

{a)

b}

i)

the receipt, expenddture and investment of monies and the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
School East have not been carried cut in accerdance with the reles and regulations issued by the MOE,
the NCSS and the SGE;

the: donptions and other receipts of the School East are nat uied for approved projects and purposes
intended, and are not in accordance with its objectives as required under Regulation 11 of the Charities
{Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and

tha Srhnnl Fast has ned complied with the requisements of Regulation 18 of the Chanties (Inshitiutinns
of & Public Character] Regulations.

Dateste X T 1

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapare

August 28, 2025
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
March 31, 2025

CURRENT ASSETS

‘Cash and cash oeguivalants

Cahar recsivables and YITHlS

Dt friom Cerebead Palsy Alliance Singapone School Wist
("School Waest™)

Total current Fssats

NOM-CURRENT ASSET
Equipmant

LESS:

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Dusd 1o Cargbral Paley Alliance Singapons (Adsociation™)
Cthor payabies and poorndd eepaes

Totad curnant [iakibtias

NHOMN-CURRENT LIABILITY
Daferred caprtal donations

WET ASSETS
REPFRESENTED BY:

FUNDS AND RESERVES

Genaral reserves
= MOE share
= NCSS Community Funding sharg
= Portion dua to School fees

Ring-fenced Performance bonus (under Joumneys of
Excallance packaga)

Spacific Donataons

Spacial Purposa Grants

Unrestricted funds

Programma devalopmaent fund

Mot assots of tnst funds

S CCOMpanying notes to financial statemants.

tiote

W un

10

13
11

12

2025 2024
s s
7,442,697 6,320,344
54,680 52,309
538 014 509. 783

8,035 391 5,882 436

859,603 934,124

597,216 1,221,671
586,701 553,129
1,163 917 1,774,800

—380,315 372,049
7,330,758 5,889 711

4,475,421 3,008,574
1,501,493 1,179,424

132,026 100,095
237,016 260,311
855,108 509,187
123,440 122,866
3,254 3,354
7,330,758 3,669, 711
20,500 16,250
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont'd)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
FFE anae
Genoral Gonaral Gonarat i
HOE and HOE and HOE and MOE and
HCSS |/ 201 HOSS WESS / S0 NESE
funding funding Tunding
g fevtal fr fotal Tt Dl For boasl
aperating [ 3L apaating Gther Gparating Drbar eparaiing Dithar
Mols espenditure  fueds  Total  expesdityes  fends Todal Bolc sppecdiverg  Gonds  Tolal  sependyry  Cends Todsl
3 1 4 * 3 3 * + * . * *
INCOME LIRS EXPENDITURE
Gannts from MOE and NCSS | SGE: Talgrwes, boswret, CFF and SOF
= Totil Cppraing & n e ndiure LRk " PAYLTEY 5,905 183 " L5805 I8) » MOE secsded tabching atall
- Sgeecial Edweition (SHED7) fonttuce Bunding Som gl
Francal Arshtance Schame Purpoe grist - HOE
EFRE) 1.0 - 1w 18,92 - 110X weccadment fand) T30, 5 - TRILINY 145537 - 245,500
= byl Mgl programeg ¥r 424 - ¥haM 33,74 L 1, » Tanrhisgy wtall 5057, T80 n LA-LEfes o] i BT% 300 v o BTS00
= Addgdl Gianl by Diptratgasdy v Soppumeey T AN " BT AT AT 080 - Lo 1
Fimanciat Ausitance [TOFAT) 7004 . 700 10,084 . 19% cosnract a8 (lewm) 100,734 . 100,724 [T e . w21t
« Pubbs tramagont vubedy 186 . 1 08 . 40 Sttt wtlare 80,08 . 60,08 0,170 + 0,170
= Saul raiming wole 12970 i 1T 4,801 ® A0 Fepodet B materuk b8 H - LB 25317 - e ke
= ASdmeaal R AAG Tl 18, T - 18750 i¥, 553 = 1755 Sarraped Tuncones & adfmde p -2 % n 105 008 103188 1 103 163
= High spedi grant [ H X ] - AT IV L T DeeprwCiaficn of equipment 45 T8 » TR TEL FaLoxa - 131058
- WO pacondmess B ® LIk o 0ay # LT epail & misabeAbsie 68 AN a 10 530 184,318 n I8 5
= Cpabrach lepohiesg he 3 KR " TELOTE R At " poi b Ui 135,997 ® LB LRT-H 111,780 - L )
« Culritulam Enhascement fund Commaniations 0, . 1,10 15,055 & 19,455
e e . T 4, 0 . 4,504 e L . L L36 . 1,569
= Addetituansl Curriwlym Prodeanional reba biRabon & othar
ME‘HH FasoF) I A - TIT Ly i, B30 - O30 Ve FRLUR Y a FALO RS Y LEDA AT v 3008 B
r = APRmApO AnmnEEy i wpE, [} [
Sttt Moo e Coma e T g o
[T} davwiopmant grast NS - (LIRS 109,900 . LR Datipaatet fend ATpansar;
* Suryt wppact g 2800 g 350 1,188 A o « WO fund 1423430 s LA2SAN)  LM0LITE . LM
~Enrkchemant Grat 200 ¥ L MAm 3 1 - DRt sty . 70,950 30,50 . sa810 0,810
= Prgviiaa of BdMm A mIARGET - - Lr ua.ny ® 118717 Ublation for costradt teaching
= '““"“{'_"“h_] [— 0,072 : mon: 04015 - 304,805
utiiabcn for SPOD FAS HED ] - 48 ORI - o0z
S G0 tTheea TR T T
- Cdusane grand god achiavamest T fek ehoal et
sk < S — = o e programmE £ . f0,448 10,803 . 19,903
- Gopertenny grast . 12,920 12,420 . 11,580 T DR T meny L Al gnlns A
- Skl :: .rr - m m L 0,800 S wapeadiune —LLEILAN)  LATRALD  QRIMA0  GLDFRMSE  LOILTOS L NTLGAG
= Skl = lideigs L A E 150,000 1R0.000
+ Amal pdprtmesty of HOL Mg Parpas [nameR).
grasts for paior pear {400,157} o (aD,117) &8, 540 . 48,340 """"“"mmw,
= Grasty redsired hrom RCSAFSOF 13 1,858 955 n i858, 851 23R n L EIRFLT [y p— 1 !I! E!I !!! “! 1 !!i E!: [I I:I !!I "I ﬂ! I:Ei m
= Mgl gt meati of NCESS
BGL grants for priod yeit 1" (20,598) s () 1,180 . 3,280
= Brisimbey of Social & Family
Dawilcpmant TMEE™) Gadtd
o VWO transgcet subiidies - A8 281 418 hal r Pl e TN
= MAL Tobe Bowrd fesd " foeXe i 0 0 P e e i Fo - el
« inselcited dorainssg thd = 5Td L1l ] " 16 Sl 18 843
+ Demighated desntine 14,47 - MIGE e . T R T
= Amsrmation of Seferied Chpetal
donations - 124,443 124,443 - BT FLIRE
- FSPitage credit shema . 265,701 45,780 . a1.197 81,197
= Mima Bl Ao QranLs - - P . . .
(-1t
= intereid impome L] M T ® TAan ILAN
= Hygalaneons Foome - LR B4 [ k& " A B ¥ 2o
= HAEmaTl sades = R bo ok " LR+ o, 58y
- Gehery . 14 14 . 430 a3
Total issome 13703838 LOA3AI) 1A TR A8 10,700,006 166 118

S CCOMpanying notes to financial statemants.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES

March 31, 2025
General Specific Special Programma
reserves  Donations Purpose U fcted o lop &
_iMote &)  (Wote1l)  Grants funds fund Total
L] % % % %
Balamce at April 1, 2023 51 H1 152,744 810,756 105905 32154 S211.000
Ret defici, nepretenting tatal
comprehentive loss for the year (764,268} 107,567 28,431 16,561 4 (S41,909)
Balance ot March 11, 2024 4374091 D011 S0 107 122 866 3254 5669701
Rt surplas, fepritenting total
comprehensive Incomme for the
year 1,737 047 (33,395%)  (54.073) 54 = LEGLDAY
Balance at March 31, 2025 5111540 237016 855,100 123440 3354 7330758

Hots A
General reserves
The Gandral resarves i nistricted for the school only, for tha benafit of its intended dients, sccording to the

funder’s intent for the ve of monles, mmwﬂmmnnﬂmmdmwmhmu
pwposas. The Reserves must not ba me-desipnated for othor purposes, unless approved by tha fundar,

HCSS
Community
MOE Funding
Share thare School Faes Total
# E] E) *

Balance at L April, 2023 1,630,000 1,391 000 160,257 5,038,361
Add: Nt Incoms L% e lreal 240,060 60,142 0,481,513
s Expanddurs 47 A
Balance at March 31, 2024 104,574 LATR A4 100,095 L ey e
Agd: Het Incomy 232628 1640309 181,27 11,055,224
Lass: Expencauie —(Z80709)  (1318.340) (140 245) {5317.377)
Balance st March 31, 2025 & ATHAT1 1,!'1_51,49!- 132 026 ﬁ,lll,'ilﬂ__

Tha General reserves (5 apportionad cn the following bases:

Funder's portion of reserves
. Sum af Funding prowided by fasder ower tha last 3 poars
B T e T T TR T

= Total programne reserves

Soa accompanying notes to financial statemants.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
March 31, 2025

Operating activities
Operating surplus {deficit)
Adjustmaents. for

qu-uuhuna!mm
Amertisation of defermed capital donations
Equpmont wiitten off
Inboress incom
Operating cash lows bafors movements in working capital

Cthar receivables and prepayments

Cua from School Wast

Dua to the Association

Cthar payables and sccrud oxpanses
Cash from (used in) operations

Interest recaived
MNet cash from (usad in) operating sctivitis

Investing activity
Purchasa of equipmant, represanting
it cash used in imvesting activity (Mote A)

Mat increasa (decreasa)) in cash and cash equvalants

Cazh and cash equivalents at Beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at and of yoar

2025 034
3 $
1,661,047 (541,309)
245,763 233,058
(124,443) (104,125)
- 717
[34.877) {22 431)
1,747 450 {435,094
27,056 (224)
{28,231) (406,455}
(624,455) 506,057
33,571 45,065
1,155,431 (290,651)
5450 8,501
1,160,881 (282 1500
(38, 528) (40,310)
1,122,353 (322.460)

6,320, 344 6,642 804

7,842 697

6,320,344

During tha year, the School East acquired equpmant of which $174,873 (Note 8) of which $136,345 (2024

: $65,290) is funded through deferred capitad

S CCOMpanying notes to financial statemants.




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

2.2

GENERAL

Coratral Palsy Alliance Singapore School East (the “School East™) (Charity Registration Mo, 00073 and
Societies Registration Mo, 0283/1957TWEL) s engaged in providing education, trairing in social
davalopmant, pra-vocational training skills and therapautic treatmant for spastic children, The School
Enst is domeailed in Singapons with its regitensd offics and principal place of operation at 65 Pasir Ris
Dvive 1, Carebral Palsy Centra, Singapcna 519529,

The School East and Cerebral Palsy alliance Singapore (the “Association”) are funded by donations
froem tha genaral public and supported by Ministry of Social & Family Davelopmant ("MSF"), Minisiry
of Ecucation (“MOE™) and their affilistes. Tha programs ane gimarally split up by age group, whirg
programs for students 7 to 15 years are run by tha School East, while all other programs. ana run
by the Assocation. Tha finoncial statoments of the School East should be read in conjunction with the
Association as the results of the Association are in & separate set of financial stalemants.,

Tha financial statemants ane axpressed in Singapore dollars, which is tha functional curmency of tha

The financial statements of the School East for the year endad March 31, 2025 were authocised for
ssue by tha Executive Committos on August 28, 2025,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING - Tha financs statemants are prepaned in sccordanca with tha historicsl cost
basis, axcapt af disclosad in tha accounting policles balow, and am drawn up in accordanca with tha
prowvisions of the Scoeties Act, the Chanties Act and . e nubes and regulstions ssued by
thay MOE and the NCSS [ SGE, and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapom ["FRSs").

Historical cost is generally based on tha fair value of the consideration given in exchanga for goods
and Sarvicos.,

Fair vl i6 tha price that would be recaihved bo s6fl an assoet or paid to transfer a abdity in an ordaesdy
trangaction botwesn market participants. at the mesturement date, regardess of whether that prica
s directly observabls or estimated using ancther valuation technigua. In estimating thae fair value of
an assat or o liability, the School East takes into account tha charntteristics of tha asset o liability
which market participants would tadae into sccount when pricing the assat or lisbility at the
maessuramant date, Fasr value for messuremant andfor dsclosure purpeses in thesa financial
statornants ks determined on such a basis, axcept for leasing trandactions that are within the scopa of
FRS 116 Leases, and mossuremants that have soma similasities to feir value but ara not faér valuae,
such as value in use in FRS 36 Impairment of Assels.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - [n tha cument financial year, the School West has
adiopted all the new and mivised FRSs that am mandatonly affective for an sccounting pericd that
begine on or after Apnl 1, 2024, Theer sdopticn has net had any material impact on the disclosures
or on tha amounts reported i Lhese financisl sTatemants.

10

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

2.3

Naw and revised standards in future pericds

At the date of suthorisation of these financixl statomaents, the Schaol East has not appliod tha following
FRS pronouncomients that have been issoed but are not yet affective:

- FRS 118 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Stalements
- FRS 119 Submidvanics without Pubbc Accountabilily: Disclosunes

Manapamant antiopabes that tha adoption of the new or revised FRSs, INT FRSs and amandmants to
I-‘R5|n future pariods will not have & matenal impact on the financial statements in the parned of thair
initind acdoption axcapt as balow,

FRS 118 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

FRS 116 replaces FRS 1, camying forward many of the mpuerements in FRS 1 unchangod and
complamanting tham with now nequirements. [n addtion, WFRSIWWNNHM

to FRS 8 and FRS 107, mmmmmmmms.?mm

FRS 118 minoduces M Fequiremants to!

. present spocified categones and dafined subtotals in the statement of prolit or loss

" ?ﬁd%mmdﬁnﬁﬁmm%ﬂnﬂumuhh
nasnct

. improve agoregation and deagonagation.

The amandmants to FRS 7, a5 wall a3 tha revised FRS 8 and FRS 107, becoma affectinvg whan an gntity
applies FRS 118. FRS 118 requines retrospactne application with spacific transition proviskons.,

mmuinhmﬂummﬁnlmmﬂmmmﬂﬁdm in tha
imtiad application pariod. Managemant does nol plan to early adopt tha new FRS 118,

FIMANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financinl assets and financial kabdities are rocogrisad on the statomisnt
of finencial position whan tha School East becomas a party to the contractual provisions of tha
nstrurmant.

Financial aisets and Minancisd Habilites are initially moasured o fair value, Transaction costs that ane
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabdlites ara added to
or deducted from tha fair value of tha financial assets or financial abidtaes, as appropriate, on initial
FRCOgQItoN,

1
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

MHOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025

2.1.1 Financial assets

104

O

Dabt instrumants mainly comprise cash and cash eguivalents, amount dua to School Wast, and other
MWMWMWMWNMWTMHMM:

" tha financial assat s hald within & businass model whose objectiva is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

L the contractual terms of the financial assoet Qive risa on spedified dates to cash fiows that ang
solaly paymants of pancipal and interest on tha principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and effectve inberest method

The effectiva interast method s & method of calculating the amortised cost of & debt instrumant and
of plocating intangst incoma cver tha relevant penod.

Tha affectie interest rate is tha rate that axactly discounts estimated futue cash mesipts (incleding
all fens and points pasd of receiied that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and othar premiums or discounts) axcduding upumuandtbﬁu.m.ﬂ:uuwlhd
thir dilt, ingtrumant, of, whane sppropniate, & shortor pariod, o the gross carmying amaunt of tha dabt
FEdTurnet o initial recogrition.

Tha amortisod cost of a financial assat is tha amount at which the financial sssat is moasured ot initial
mecognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the affective
intarest mathod of any differsnce betwoan that intisd amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowancs. On tho other hand, the gross camying amount of & financisl asset is the amortised
cost of a financial asset bafore adjusting for any loss allowanca.

Interest i recognisad using the effective interest method for debt instrumeants maasunsd
at amortised ooft, except for short-torm balanoes whan the effect of discounting is immatanial,

Imoarment of fnancial atcets

Tha School Exst racognises a loss allowancs for expacted credt lossas ("ECLT) on amount dua from
School Wast and other receivables. The amount of expected crodit kossos is ubdated at each reporting
diate to meflect changes in oredt risk since initial recognition of tha respectiva financial instrumant.

For all financial instruments, tha School East recognises lifatima ECL whan than has bean a signadfcant
incrsass in oredit nigk sinco initial recogniticn. [f, on the other hand, th credit risk on the financal
nstrement has not increasoed signdicantly sincg initipl necognition, the School East mossures tho loss
aliowanca for that financial instrumant at an amount ogual to 12-month ECL. The sssessmant of
whether ifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant incroases in the likelihood or
risk of » default occurming since inetisl recognition instead of on evidence of a financisl asset bamng
cradit-impained ot the reporting date or an actual default occurming.

12
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Significant incroase in crocit rsk

In sssassing whathaor the credit risk on & finencisd instrument has increased shgnificantly sinca intial
recogaition, tha School Enst compares the risk of a default cocurring on the financial instrument as. at
thay reporting date with tha risk of a default ocourring on the financial instrumant as st the date of
Mﬂl‘ﬂ?'mﬂ- In making this assessment, the School East considers historical loss rates for each
category of debrors and adjusts to reflect curment and forward-looking information that is available
without undua cost or affort.

Tha Schocl Enst prasumes that the credit nsk on a financial asset has increased signdficantly since
imetial recognition when contraciual paymoents ane mons than 30 days past duae, unless the companmy
has ressonsbie and supportable information that damonatrates otharwiss.

Tha School East sssumas that the crodit risk on a financisl nstrumant has not increased significantty

simoa initkal if tha financial instrurment is detarmined bo have low crodit risk at the reporting

date. A financial instrumant i datermined to have low credit rigk if (i) the financial imstrumaent has &

low resk of dafaul, (i1} the Bomowdr has 8 strong capacity to Mot 25 contractual cash flow obligations

i thes noar term and (M) sdverss changds in econamic snd busingss conditions. in tha longer term

ﬁh bat will not nocessanly, redece tha abibty of the borrower to fullil its contractual cash flow
gpations.

If crodit risk has not increased sipnficantly since Initial recogretion or f the crodt quabty of the
lmrdﬂmvmmwmmummmmh-mammmmmnm
instial recognition, loss aflowance B massuned at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

Dafintion of dofaar

The School East considers that defaul hes occurred whan information developed intermally or cbitained
from oxtemnal scunces. indicatas that the deblor s unlikely to pay its creditors, including tha School
East, infull without recouwnsa by the School East to actions such a6 realising secunity hald (i any).

Crodit-impairod financial asscts

AﬁWmumvlmuﬂw O OF More ovents that have a detrmantal impact on the
estimated future cash fows of that financial asset have octurred.

Write-off palicy

Thea School East wnzes off a financisl asset whan thar s information indicating that the counterparty
i in sovere financial difficulty and thare is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. whan the counterparty
has b placod under liguidation or has antensd into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assats written
off may stll ba subject to enforcement activities under tha Schoc! East's recovery

ity account legal advico wihare approprista. Any recovories made am recognised in income or
expanidi e,

Moasuroment and recognition of expoctiod credit fosses

For financip! assats, the wxpected crodit koss i estimated as the diference betwoen all contractual
cash flows that are duwa to tha School East in accordanca with tha contract and all tha cash flows that
i Seihool East axpects to necsive, discounted at tha oniginal effective intonest mte.

lmw&muﬁmmmrmmurwmmaﬁwwummmh
Watima ECL in the pravicds reporting paricd, but determings at the cument reporting date that tha
conditions for atima ECL are no longar met, the School East measures the lpss allowance st an
mmw;i—mmumwmmm

13
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

DRarecoanition of finaocial sssets

Thar School East demscognises a financial asset only whan the contractual rights to the cash flows from
tha ase0t axpire, or it transfoers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownorship of tha ssset to ancther antity. If tha School East naithar trarsfors. nor notaing substantially
all tha nsks and rewards of ownarship and continues to control tha transfemed asset, the School East
ECOQNESes |ts retained interest in tha asset and an associabed kabality for Bmounts it may have Lo pay.
If the School East retains substantially all tha risks and rowands of ownirship of & transferrod financisd
assat, mwmwmmmmrmmmmwammm
bormowing for the prooeods recsved,

2.3.2 Financial liabiities

2.4

106

Financial Mabilities of tha School East ame dssified according to the substance of the contractual
amrangaments entonsd into and the definibions. of a financial kability,

Mmmhmm.mmmammmmmmm

schema grant income are invtially moasured at fair value, and sre subsequently messured at
muﬂq!hﬁmwimmm&d umtwﬂm-tmmﬂuﬂmﬂ-ﬂmdm

Enrwuoniteen of foancinl (ot

Thea School East derscopnises financial [abilties whan, and only whan, tha School Esst's obligations
am discharged, cancefled or axpend,

EQUIPMENT - Equipment is statied st cost less accumulated depmeciation and any sccumulsted
impairment loss.

Equipmant costing $1,000 or less i written off in the year of acquisition,

Dapeacation of equipment is charged on a straight-line maethod over the expected useful lves of tha
assats concamed. The principal annual rates vsed for this purpose am:

Furniture and fittings - 20%
Computers - 0%
Cifice equpmeant . 20%
Ranovations. . 0%
Rahabilitation equipmant - 205

They astimated vsafid lives and depreciation mathod an roviewed st the end of aach meporting poned,
with the offect of any changes in estimate accountied for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss ansing on disposal of retimement of an item of equipment & detemmined as the
difference betweon the shles procesds and the carmying amounts of the asset and & recogniced in
BT OF BpRnERTLrE.

Fully deprecinted secets still in use afe retained in the financial statements.

14
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

2.5 IMPAIRMENT OF MON-FINANCIAL ASSETS - At the end of oach meporting pariod, the School East
revaews tha camying amewms of its non-financial sssets 1o daterming whether there i sy indeation
that thosa assots have suffered an impairmant loss. I any such indication odsts, the recoverabla
amount of tha ssot is estimated in order to determing the @tent of the impairmant loss [if any),
Whar it is not possiblo 1o estimate the recoverabie amount of an individual ssset, the School East
astimates the recoverable amount of tha cash-ganarating unit to which the asset belongs.

Rcoverabls amount is tha higher of fair value less costs to sall and value in usa. In assessing valun
in Lsa, the estimated futune cash flows are discounted to their present valkua Using & pro-tax digcownt
rata that reflects cument markot assessmants of tha tima valua of money and tha rsks specific to tha
wssat for which the estimated future cash flows have not been adjusted.

1f the recoverabla amcunt of an asset {(or cash-genarating unit) is estimatod to ba loss than s carmying
amount, the carrying amount of the assot (cash-gonorating undt ) i reduced to its recoverable amount..
An impairmant loss s ecognized immediately in incoma o axpanditun.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the camying amount of tha ascet (cash-ganarating
unit) ks incroased to the revited ostimate of its recoverable amount, but only to the extent that the
ncrenged camying amount does nob excoed tha carmying amount that would have boen determinesd
had no impairrmant loss boen mecognised for the sssot (cash-genarating wnit) in prior yoars, A revorsal
of an impairment loss is recopnissd immadiately in income or axpaenditure,

2.6 PMROVISIONS Provisons ore recognised when the School Eost hoa o present obligotion (legal or
constructiva) as & result of a past avent, it is probable that the Schood East will ba neguened Lo setthe
thir obligation, and a refiabie estimate can ba mada of tha amownt of tha obligation.

Tha amount mcognised as a provision is the bast estimate of the consideration required 1o settle the

lhmﬂmiummll“mwﬂm%m

Whan some o all of tha economic benefits neguined 1o settle a provision ane expacted 1o ba recovired
from @ third party, tho recelvable is recognesed a8 an asset if it is virtuadly cortain that reimbursemant
will be recoived and the amount of the receivable can be moeasunsd ralably.

2.7 DEFERRED CAPITAL DOMNATIONS - Donaticns for tha soguisition of equipmant ang tokon to the defermed
capital donations. account and rocognited 8% income over the usaful lives of the sssats to match
deprecistion of tha assots purchasod with tha rolsted donations. Donasticos monived for specific
purposes ang accountod on a cash basis, This comprises govemment grants and contnbitions recsived
from donors to fumish and equip the School East.

2.8 LEASES - Tha School East assesses whather & contract s or contains & lease, at inception of tha
contract. The School East recognises  right-of -usa seset and & cormesponding aase kability with respoct
to all lease arrangemants in which it is the lessee, except for short-tenm leases (defined as leases with
o loasa torm of 12 months or [ess) and lexses of low valud assets. For these leases, the School East
recognises the lease paymonts 83 an Operating expenss on a straight-Ene basis over the term of the
lexsa unless anothar systomatic basis & mor reprgsantativa of the time pattern in which aconcmic
benofis from the laased adsats are comsumad,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

.9

GENERAL RESERVES - This anises from thi go00ss monees not roquensd 1o ba refunded to th MOE and
tha MCS5 / SGE and from net opermting surpluses. generated and is restricted for the School East cnly,
for tha bonaefit of its intended clients, accomding to the fundar’s intent for tha vse of monies.
The Retarves will not be transforrod cut of tha School East for any other purposes. Tha Resenes will
also not ba me-designatod for cthar puposas, unless approval & given by tha fundar,

2,10 SPECIFIC FUNDS - Tha funds comprise the cumulative operating surplus or defict anging from tha

2.11

specific income and expenditure sccount, Donations received for specic purposss. are accounted for
on a cash basis. Thae specific funds ane wtilsad in accondance with its intended purpose. Amounts mot
whilised are actumulated in the speafic funds,

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS - The funds comprise donations received that can ba utilised in areas where
funds arm most nesded, ot the dacetion of tha Scheol Management Committes and the Executiva
Committos.

2.12 PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENT FUND - Programmes recaiving NCSS [ SGE grants under a “Par Capita®
Carvelopmant

funding policy arm allowed to stat a Programma Fund. This mpresants tha portion of
incoma netained by the School East and was computed based on 50% of unrestricted donations, or
58 of total operating axpenddura whichaver is lower,

2.13 TRUST FUNDS - Monles received for trust funds ame crodited directly to the respective trust funds'

2.14 RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE - Tha School East recognises incamma whon & transfors

o8

controd of & product or servida 10 o Customan,

Cash donntions

Ranvonus i madswred based on thi consideration spocifiad in a contract with a customen and axdludes
pmounts collected on behall of third parties. The School East recognises revanua whon |t transfers
control of the goods to & customaer,

16
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

.15

16

Bandering of services
Ravanue from rendering of services are recognised whan the sandoes ane provided.

Schogl fees
School foes aro recognised on an accrual basts in tha panod to which it relates.

Ioterest incom

Interest incoma is accrued on o tima basis, by mferonce to tha principsl cutitanding and & the
offective interest rate applicable.

Exprggurg
Expenditure is scoonted for on the sccrual basis.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Paymants to delined contribution retirement banefit plans ane charged
25 an expinss whon employess have rendered the services entitling them to the contributions.,
Poyments mode to Mote monoged retirement benefit schomea, such oo the Singopore Centrol
WFuﬂ,ulthhnmmﬁlmdmmmmuMEmi
obligations undar tha plans ans eguinvvalent to those ansing in a dafined contribution ntirement banafit
plan,

mmmﬁm-mmwmmﬂmmmm
accrua 1o employeas. A provision s made for the estimated Hability for annual leave as & result of
sanices renderad by employses up to tha end of the reporting pariod.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the apphcation of the School Enst’s accountang poboias, which are dascribed i Note 2, the School
Managermant Committed i naguired to make jdgemants, estimates and sssumptions about the
carrying amounts of sssets and [abibties that sre not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and sssociated assumptions am based on historical axporience and cthor factors that am
considered to be relevant, Acusl results may differ from thess estimates,

estimates aro recognised in tha pariod in which the estimate s revised if the revision affects only that
pariod, o in tha pariod of tha revision and futune pariods if the revision affects both cument and futuns

Critieal judgements in applying the School East's accounting policies

wmwcmsmwmﬂMfmmpMmmmmmM
the amounts recognisad in the financial statements
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS KOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2025
Key sources of estimation uncertainty Tha School East's curment credt nek grading framework comprises tha following
CHLDOOrsES!
Tha School East doas not have any kay sources of estimation uncortainty at the and of the mporting
partod that have & significant risk of causing & material adjustmaent to the carrying amounts of assets Category |Description Basis for recognising
and liabilities within tha naxt finandial year, =
Parforming [The counterparty has o low rsk of defasult [ 12-month ECL
and diogs not have any past-dus amownts.,
4 FIRANCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
i Doubtful  [Amount is > 30 days past dua or there has |Lifetima ECL -
@) seres of foanodl Inenaras boan a signdficant increase in credit risk  |MOL credit-impained
The fellowing table sets cut tha financial instremants as ot tha end of tha reporting perod: sinca initial recognition.
2025 2024 In Gofault |Armount 15 >90 dbys past dud or there 18 |Lfetime ECL -
s E] evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaéned
Financial assets credit-impaired.
AF Emortised cost ANDLA%E . EEEAGad Winte-off | Tham 15 evidono indicating that tha Amount 16 written off
e e m“mm“mmvm

tha company has no realistic prospect of
Financial liabilities |"W““"f

AL AMoTisad 0osL 1,156 664 1,752 760

The tabla balow details the credt quality of the School East’s financial pssets as well a5
maniminm axposuna 1o credit sk by oredt risk rating grades:

(bd

Thix Schoal East has limited axpoturs to financal riks. There has boen no changas to tha Schoal m '] —— mﬂ Eoieh “":ﬁ
Exst’s axposura to tha financal risks or the mannar in which it manages and maeasures thesa Hote raging idgtima FCL amaunt slamance amaunt
righs, ] ] [
Fiirid
() Crechensk
Arnaunt diss from
Tha School Exst has adopted procedures In adending credt terms to rcsivables and in School West §  Peforming  1ImEQL Sx0,014 = 04
it m%m uqum-,- oo tln'n:ﬂm.nphv:ﬁﬂ-! gm Otherrecaintls ¢ Pwipming  12mEQL 40515 : 525
It ploces its cash with oreditworthy financial insttutions and ks subect 1 immatorisl crodit
loss, 024
Although tha School East’s oredit axposurd 5 concentratod maimty in Sngbpore, it has no Armaant due from
sigrificant concentration of credit risk with any singla recanvable or group of recaivables, Sthoo! West 5 Performning 12m ECL 509,783 . 509,783
The School East develops and maintsins its credit rick oradings to categories exposuns Bt Tacibvithi: o 06| (Peclotik. | T ECL S : 231k

acconding to their degrea of risk of dafault. Tha School Exst uses its own trading micornds
o rate its major recoivables and other debtors.

18 19
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
()  Loterest cate risk 5 RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS
Changes in interest rates do not have & material impact on tha School East #s it doos ot Soma of tha School East's transactions and arrangemants s with reisted parties, Cerebral Palsy
hava any interest-boaring liskilities and s interest-baaring asset only relates to cash a2 NIWQmMﬂmwmpﬁrﬂmmwmuﬂth
bank. thasa on the bacis detormened batwean the parties am reflectod in thase finencial statements, Tha
balances ane unsecurned, interest-free and repayable on demand.
(M} Forsign curmency risk Significant related party transacthons during tha year was as (oliows:
Tha School East dors not have any significant axposurs to foreign axchanga risk, 2025 2024
5 |
() Licuicity risk Oecupational therapy 581,831 502,918
Umidwmkhnwugdhymﬂmgthmm“mdm‘cdmcmﬂnm&ﬂ's W’“ ;;;::g :E,;ﬁ
oprations are financed mainly through net acsets of trust funds. Spasch and languaga tharapy 557,315 575,350
All finpneind liabilities in 2025 and 2024 ane non-interest boaring and repayable on demand Soinl work sarvices 181,172 250,632
o dut vithin one from the end of the reporting pasiod, Assistive Technology Hub 128,877 -
b Centra of Excellence - Trans D 20,143 =
Total Professional fees inclusive of GST 2,276,743 2,129,149
TOL fees mdating to short-term leases rechanged 679,968 675 B4l

Truy carrying vahums of fimarcial suaets and financial Eabeities ropoted o the statemnt of
finpncial position approximata their fsir values, dua to the rdativaly short-teem maturity

of thesa financial instrumants. Professional foos refered to the alliod health professionals from tho Association that provided
mehabilitation services to School East.

(c) Capital mansoemaent polics and obsctives
Tha School East raviews its capital structur at least annuadly to ansura that the Schodl East will

b able Lo continuae as & going concarn. Tha captal structune of tha School East comprnises madnly A Tolicnws:
its gendral resarves, funds and grants from MOE and NCSS f SGE. Th School Ent's overall has camusiacation of X fowy combmguenant chucog Ftie yae iy i
strategy memains unchanged from the pravious financal year. i e
% 3
Short-term banafits 152,013 185,261
Post-ampleyment banalits 9 12,062
202,591 197,333

Number of members of key management with rentmaration within tha balow band during the yaar
was bs follows:

Banumeration band
£100,000 v $200,000 and abova® 3 3

*  Compnsad of salary and bonus

20 21
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

MHOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS KOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
L] CASH AND CASH ECUIVALENT %  OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES
2025 204 2025 024
E £ § %
Cash at bank 6,192,697 5,070,344 Foes received in advanca 25,778 22,020
Fixed deposits 1,250,000 1,250,000 Due to MOE 1,475 1,475
7442 697 6,320 344 Cxhar payables 302,714 185,719
Acorued axpondes 256 734 343 915

585,701 553,120

The fixed deposds baar intersst rabe batwean 2.18% to 2.65% (2024 : 2.20% to 3.05%) per annum
and have maturity dates on April 29, 2025 and July 22, 2025 respoctively (2024 © May 20, 2024 and

July 22, 2024}, 10 DEFERRED CAPITAL DONATIONS
This fund was set up during the year endad March 31, 2014 to record donations and funds recelved
7 OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS for the cost of equipmant, which will ba amortised based on the estimated usalul Ifa of tha egquipment.
2035 2024
5 s 2025 2024
5 5
Cthar receivables 20,427 20,882 Danations. recs ved:
Foos in armoans 11,098 9,636 Balanca ot beginning of year 1,403,866 1,374,871
Propayments 14,155 21,791 Additions:
54 G0 53309 ~ Furnstura and fittings - 13489
= Compitars 86,041 20,263
= Offic guapmspnt 5,637 31,538
& EQUIPMENT « Rohat: eguipmoent 43 667 -
Disposals {3,632) {36,295}
Balanc at and of yaar 79 03 BE6
Cost:
Arapal 1, 7023 447 596 373,150 451,628 937140 05,119 2423,7172 Aturtnalptod amortisation,
Aganan: 0,50 10,263 32,030 H 11568 105,600 Baiance at beginning of year 1,031,817 928,378
Cespeornat = 133, 830) {57703} 1 = [50,533) AmortEation 124,443 104,229
At March 31, 3024 476,227 359,623 436,764 937,140 219,087 2438041 Disposals - (650}
Addians 5,301 86,041 14,696 . 66,635 174,873 Eatance at end of year 156 0318
Cuzpotat = 165.304) (80 549) ~ = (345830}
o e B i i Earmying amount 350,319 372,049
Accumubated depreciation:
At Apdil 1, 7023 175,997 325,497 286,905 402,235 34165 1,706,069
Depraciation 51,755 0,432 46,955 92,430 I2.485 232,058
Dapossh - (785%)  (#6.351) . - (54,210)
At March 31, 2024 327,742 326,070 289,589 494,865 664651 1504717
Depreciation 50,311 19,303 43,612 92,537 40,000 245,763
Drpotals - (61,214) (80,288} - «  (142,207)
At March 31, 3025 378,053 183,459 252,913 87,203 106,651 1,608,279
Cafrying amaunt:
AEMarch 31, 2025 103,675 S0.531 117,950 349,91 168,071 555,603
Az March 31, 2024 148,455 31,553 147,175 442,475 162,436 934.124
22 23
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

The assats held undar each fund maindy compnisa cash and cash equivaslants. The utilisation of spacific

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
funcis are ristricted for the intended purposes of th respoctive funds.
Tha Specific Funds ane described below:

March 31, 2025

This fund partains to donations mceived for renovation, upgradng and maintaining the bukding

faciitios,

This grant partains to donations recehved for school functions or events, such as graduation day, racial

harmony day, childran’s day and sports day.

Thiz fund is used to enhanos the educational content of programmes (o train teachors to support
students with spocial neads. Donatkons givan maknly for taching materials, resources, squipmant or

toaching aids.

This fund s used to halp tha financially needy students in subsidising thair foes, transpoet and wollsre

niads. Donations given mainly for the wolfare of pupils.

This grant ks used mainly for enmchmant programmeas, soch ae special aet instructors, sports sctivities,
such as hiring of swimming coaches, track and flield coaches and scouting activithes, &5 wall as

This grant I to provide funding for the School Management Committea o adminster DFA

(.. trangport allowances and maeal cowpons) 1 Bantfit SINgaponaan students who &0 not meat tha

auaslifying enteria for tha SPED FAS, s wall & provide additional sdsistance to thosa on tha SPED FAS.
This fund pertains to donations. received from the public for transportation fods for studants. This i

for transportation by private transport.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
MOE Training Votes Fund MO SPED FAS
This fund is used for stafil trasning which is ona of tha kay componants for upgrading of skills to remsn This fund is to provide needy studants in SPED schocts with waiver of school fees, fre uniforms and
relovant. totbooks,
MOE Opportysnety Fund MOE School Maal Progrmmsy

Ona time off grant given by MOE. It is meant to level up ennchmaent opportunities. for students who
are Singapom Citizen from lower incoma households.

MOE High Meds Fund
This fund is to provide SPED Schools with additional resources (o support students with exceptionadly
high nbeds upon approval by High Noeds Grant Pandl,

HAC Tote Fund

mrwwmtowmmwmw{mmwwm}wmc-ﬂss
[Autist in School Schema) programma. Under AER, & sims to provide all students with access bo quality
oants aducation mmmmmmﬁm Undar AISS, it aims Do provide suppor
mmmmmmgrﬂmmummmmwmmm
arts oducation program mes to meot the needs of the School East and students.

Suppnt
The ICT Equipmant and Services Grant provides the School East with funds for IT equipmant and
IT-relatod serices.

MOE Cysnnudum Enhancamant Fund (CEF)
This fund ks wsed for school-based intistives or activities related to curriculs and co-curricular

This fund s used to provide schools with additional resourcas to nafine thair curmculurm in alignment
with tha SPED Cumiculum Framawork.

Childran's Charitias Agsocintion Fund

This fund is primarily used for the purchasa of moblility/equipment aids for s in the School East and
to defray the cost of specialised equipment purchased by financially neady students.,

28

This fund is to provide SPED FAS students aged & to 20 years oid with disbursemaents for meals.

MOE Public Transpors Subsady
Thig fund is to provide a subsidy of $10 per month (or $120 per year) to gach SPED FAS recipient who

declares that he/sha takes public transport to tha School East, for as long as thay am enrclled in the
School,

MOE Secondmant Flingd

This fund is used to mimburse the School East for the differontial between actual costs of MOE-
seconded principal/teachors, based on MOE's salary packages,

MOE Contret Teaching Resources

Ta mmwmmmmmmmmﬁmw
Diploma in Spocial Education (DISE), Advanced DISE and Managemant and Leadership in Schools
coursas, s wall as staff who ame sway on MOE Masters Scholarship,

MOE S3W Stpet Up Fung

Thes fund is weed to support the SIW implemantation efforts in Phase 3 and 4 SPED schools through
tha hiring of ona Job Conch per school.

MOE Pasent Supoort Groug

To enable SPED schools to enhance the level of parental engagement and crganise pamnt-rolated
Bctivitiis on & regular basis.

BOE Endehmant Grang

Thiz grant is used mainly for enrichment programmees for obtaining resources and squipment to banaefit

29

FIMANTIAL YEAR FA25 | Ansual Sipot 121




TE

TOL'TTL [FEET = SZOT "IE WM 1R uERE
TFELFS) (] (9E9F 1) AU puUada (Bl
[CFT] 7 + SERLSNE PuR sHpddns (A

E (erE'02) = sasUsdye BuLILRIGod (8l (Al

= e {91L'9) e eoyIs

- - foze) soemxal (il

' = (009’2} Ap|sane saay joouds )

L o gty |

. : 5 ©E381 JOSISSIN PPV

6I0'1E KL EI'IT =dRId 30w PPY

966 TS Tae'ES 905°E PIOT 'LE Ui 10 B3RS

- [ELTA] TEEaer By b |exeL
. [zo&"&r] - sssubds Biweifoid (B (A
i £ £ ume jeoyas (i
- - [S¥E) aemEal )
£ % [zaz) Ap|sgne saay jebyIs )
* = {o9c's) SRS TR
- - SET'F BB DSISSIN PRV
L90'86 PAL'EE £50°L SdR2J I00 PPY
5T6'9Z9 azt'os 90£°0 EZOT T vy 30 Bounjeg

§ § £
AU AL EIBOdg SYd aad5
JUBUPUOIRE BB (00435 EL T
Ll F0W
SZOZ 'TE Yaiel
SLNAWALYLS TYIINYNIY DL SALON
LSWE TOOHDIS FHOdYDNIS IDONVITTY ASTVd TWHaguad
0E

+ T * + ZLRR SEOT 1L Yoy I8 sdue|Eg
(ecaaza [ CTCT] oo eLt) ] {8ee's) urg|puades (eey

B - - - - TUBNEITIR HIOM G 00 Apngs

TBIUBIBYUGS SRELIBAD T [E30] "Sdoifrte pEEe (60YIS U vopRdiiues (RA
lecg'aze) - - - 405 pue 447 "spanuog “ssuees (1A

a - (oos'621) s - Bunseg g wswdo@ase Jns (4

= {9co'an) - = - juaedojpap puostayoid siegiee Joeddns o Sanased o asegung (Al

£ ] & * (Bzs'¥) SRIBRORE [FMaAauow a0 ()

x - - (] - woedsural {1

- - - - [T saay jeeu3s )

EIUSERy TS

BLY'STR BEL'S1 BRL'62T L Ll Sdreatl 300 PR

% zoE'l 1t -1 4 95L°% $TOT 'TL YMEw I8 2IU8|RE
TEo5 cit) [EETETR TEET £11] ToEZ] Tros &) By puBdEs [E36L

- (413 - " - EIUBUFRIIR N0 g AL Apns

BIIBIBIICD SRIEIBAC T [BD0| "ROOUS{IGM DREE] [S0LIS Ul BIRIIIRS  [HA
(zeg’sie) - - . 405 pue 47 ‘shenung ‘seumes  (1h

. . less'sne) . . Guimes g wewdesee JEs (A

& (or'at) i - . Jrdoj@sap Rumssyoud s1agIem 3poddns oo Sannasa jo aseyung (A

- ¥ b % el AT |l A e g (i

:: b - {06z} - wedsugsl  {n

* 2 & 4 [02s’T) e i e

TR TERa

LT £55°41 Lob' e 07 S456'E1 98] IO ppY
= LEF'T BBT'EL = FIE'E EZ0T “T 1ndy 38 2ou|eg

5 _ % ] H 5

pung pun pung Apisgns EIERED

spaay yiH  agoh Buuies)  ajop Bupiiesy  Jodsuey)  JuRlD Enuuy
0K |JrunRippy HS Higng 0N
J0M ELTY) 30W

LSMO|I) S8 EDEAIEUR JOLLING DY USS SpUN JISEE U J0 NpUSde pus st SuL

STOT ‘TE YneW
SINAWALYLS TYIINYNIL 0L S3L0N

Aotavad ezt | FURANCIAL WEAR 24725

AS¥3A TO0HIS FHOdYONIS SONVITIY ASTVd TvHaayad

122



EE

SLF T 7]
TGETEL) - TEGL &r1) (TioeaL)
- - TEOT EFL) .
[oet'cz) A : < *
- - - {120°c8z)
- LHYELT
. - rob'E0L
DET'ET - . .
54611 ELA TS ite
ToETwE) - TSECEE) - TEEE POE)
ToET¥e) = = - *
- - {9EL ") (Zg1'guz)
- - {Es9'ac)
- - TE6'E6
- - - - ES%'9E
0ZU'¥E ooa'tt FATS 18 * ooz'591
Sék [E4 814 i
L L £ £ §
FILIT) prEmY FET T P wRIInDEaY
JUBLYILUT  UOERAGUUL i py 4N BES MIS [AHIERET
30H PUEMY JOYIERL  J0 UDISIADIS I0m PO I0M
Buipuezsing fBuiyoeay
ADS/SEIN FERTEST]
-20M
it
L5k fogi’s) DETL = LIFOT
[T Th5L el (BE0 o¥) {007 LIE) LLBE T3}
- g [T D] -
(Ep0'T) = = = =
- (ot ') {gzotap) -
. - - [981"01£) .
- - - - {£5E'2w)
(625" T)
- - - - POE'LT
005’2 94'%9 0%E'1S 0OF'LZE 913
L' Bee'l PEE'PS
[T TEE058] T55r Bl (083 BIL] [OEE T3]
- - - TP1705) -
(00s"z) = s
= {ge'ag) = 5 -
- w* [EC g FUEE 2 1E) i
= - = 5 {690 k)
F F - {toz's)
- - - - pIL0S
5811 Lt DOEOF DSi'eeE FOE'PS
#1E'T oBE'SL ({13] - 13
5 § = H 5
T dnoan Jumin Jusin EERT] 433
yoddng SRALRS pUR  JamoduRyy A0 IO
Juaiing Juaidinby 13T - Wein
3I0M 191 -3uess  juswdojaasg
Juswdojasag 13T 30M
131 30K

STOT 'TE Yoiep 18 BoUEg

Bnypasdxg (no]

3oL (i

a3|A18% S0 P (RUossald (0
FOURMCYR ¢ EAURES 1
EIEUEIT

SR 3510
SpuBdng 3513
sdica J0u PRy

FTOT 'TE YuE 3¢ Bousmg

BnypusdxD (EoL

EEIERE T TR T TV R (T
SEIURMORE g Sapees  (n
asuadig Dulyxeal jaed [
IRy el

FBMEIE SEPUBERE 3SIQ
sBunyiea) jminy
Rdie2s 30 PPY

£202 1 ||y 30 B3uepg

STOE ‘TE YIEl
SINAWALYLS THIINYNIS OL SALON

ASWE TO0OHIS FHOAVDNIS 3DNVITTY ASTVd TVHEI¥3D

STOT 1T yuwy 38 o3um|eg

aurg|puadse (e

430 o3 sysuRal (4

SHUARIE JuDIRg (A

sAcUAdNE AAAS PUE WALKINDa PUR sasuadea Jamoduewl 10 (Al
23305 sbssdup) s ()

(5yo0g "SR YueaERs ' 0a) sAUN0EA) [RUAIIW jo aseyung (1
£aMAIBSE jo aseyng (|

L e |

50 it SyELe ]
SR8 300 PPy

PTOT 'TE Yt 0 B eg

B PUBCXS |30

30 o0 SSURIL (14

EBOIANIR SUBIRg (A

sasUadaD SI0IMRS PUR Wawdinba pue sasuadia Jamodusw 13 (A
BB Joveiniu feaew (I

[=qo0q "SELMeW YuRaEy B0 ) s20IN0S [RUSIRW JO aseyng (1
SBMAIEE J0 BsRng ()

EIEIBERY TR

300 WG] SBSURIL
s3] 300 EPY

EZOT "1 (lchy 3@ BouR|eg

STOE 'TE yaiepw
SINIWILVIS TYIINYNIL OL SILON

Aotavad ezt | FURANCIAL WEAR 24725

1SV TO0HDS FHOdVIINIS IDNVITIY ASTVd TVHEIEID

124



CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
13 MET ASSETS OF TRUST FUNDS 16 TAXATION
Trust funds repeosant spacific flinancial assistance provided by Lo Foundation. Al regatend and axempt charities will snjoy sutomatic incoma tax eamption and chanties do not
nead to file incoma tax affective from Year of Azsessmant 2008,
2025 2024
5 5
17 TAX EXEMPT RECEIPTS
BaSvoon ok hagiiaing o Jaee et i) The School East enjoys » conoessionary tax trastment whereby. qualifying donors aro granted
Amount dsbursed (46130) (37411 St Secdion i Sw o o o the Shost Yt
Balanca at end of year, representod by cash and bank balances 20,900 16,250 2025 2024
$ %
13' GRANTS FROMNCSS/SGE Donations for which tax axempt receipts wire ssuod 21,965 22712
PR W— L W—
$ § Breakdown of tax deductible and non-tax deductibie donations:
Total oparating expanditures 1,342,014 2,195,186 2025 T074
Transition planning co-ordenator = 36,151 'y 5
Project Tech Booster - 21,274 Unalicnad danntinng
Fiund potstion for School baders, Admen & Support staff 202, 889 -
Supplementary manpower cost 114,002 - Tax dedictible donations 10 12,050
Annual pdpustments for prioc year —{18,596) 33350 Non-tax doductibla donations 584 4,912
—l540,309 3,377,961 574 16,962
14 DONATIONS Designated donabions
2025 2024 Tax deductibla donations 21,935 10,662
P 5 MNon-tax deductibia donations 325,760 157,516
Designated donations recsived during tha year an made up of 347,695 168,178
+ Programma enhancanmisnt {17,340) 110,612
= Transport subsidies 34TAT0 10,162
= School East functions 17,223 500
= Children’s charily sssociation - 32,504
= Building and facilitias improverment B 14,000
247 655 168,175
15 MANPOWER COSTS
2025 2024
5 %
Cost of defined contnbution plans included in manpower costs S92 935 949 674
34 35
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL EAST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
18 MONTHLY PURIL ELIGIBLE FOR FUNDING 19 MONTHLY FURIL ENROLMENT FOR INTERNATIONAL PUPILS
Mumbaer of Internaticnal pupils ane dofined as those who are not of Singaporean Citizon [SC) or Parmansnt
Imternational Ruesickoreos (SPR) status, and who do not pay concessianary rate of school foes.
Number of Pupils Number of Pupids  Pugpels Paying
By Digabality By Desabality Concissionary Mumbar of Numbar of
Group - Multiple  Group - Multiple  Rate of School Intornational Intarrnintionad
Disalnitios Cxsabslitios Fons Pupils® Pupifs®*® Total Nurmber
(6-11 yoars old) (12-17 years old) (6-11 yoars old)  Total Number {6-11 yoars cld) [12-17 yoars old)
FR IS SC/PR IS [Note © of Students (&) [] e} = (&) + (b)
a [[31] 3 B) + (D) + (€
Apeil 1, 2024 1 - 1
Apnil 1, 2024 147 113 - 260
2024 A -
May 1, 2024 (Note A) 148 13 . 261 Yo 2024 diote ) ’ :
June 1, 2024 145 13 > 261 Mne 1, 2024 1 s 1
July 1, 2024 145 13 - 262 luy 1, 2024 i . i
August 1, 2024 150 114 - 264 Bugust 1, 2024 | - i
Saptambar 1, 2024 150 114 - 264 Saptembar 1, 2024 i - 1
Octobar 1, 2024 150 114 - 264 Ocrober 1, 2024 i . N
MNovember 1, 2024 151 114 - 265 Movarmbor 1, 2034 1 z 1
Decambar 1, 2024 151 113 - 264 C 1, 2024 1 1 1
1, 2025 (Mote B) 171 112 - 83
gt o) Jerusry 1, 2025 (Nete B) ' = 1
Fabruary 1, 2025 17 112 . 283
Fabruary 1, 2025 1 - 1
March 1, 2025 173 112 - 285
March 1, 2025 1 - 1
. bicte:
(A} As May 1, 2024 wes & public holiday, the number of pupils on Agril 30, 2024 was used for pupil
arrodmant on May 1, 2004, (A} As May 1, 2024 was a public holiday, the number of pupts on Apnl 30, 2024 was usad for pupil

anrcimant on May 1, 2024,
(B) As Janupry 1, 2025 was a public and school holidays respectively, the number of pupds on ) A
Decembar 31, 2024 was used for pupd enmcimant on January 1, 2025, (8) As lsnuary 1, 2025 was a public and school holdays respectively, the number of pupils on

Docomber 31, 2004 was usod for pupdl ennciment on January 1, 2025,
{€) Internationsl pugls who ane paying tha concessionany rates of school fees (Singapone Pormanant
Resident feo rates) under the 2 years grace paricd, *  Intenstional students who ara children of employmant pass holders, shillod workors or
diplomatic staffs.

o International students who are not children of employment pass holders, shilled workers or
diplomatic staffs.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL EAST Deloitte
MHOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS s

March 31, 2025

20 SALARIES, BOMUSES, CPF AND SDF

Allled Professionals o
Ceha profgssionalsf Teaching staff 114
Support Scall 17

21 FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES

Thare ane no fundmaising activithes for the year ended March 31, 2025 and 2024,

23 INVESTMENT

Thare ane no invested funds recsived from MOE and 5G Enable for the year ended March 31, 2025

and 2024,

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIAMCE

23 RING-FENCED PERFORMANCE BONUS (UNDER JOURNEYS OF EXCELLENCE PACKAGE) SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST
{Charity Registration No. 00073 and
2025 Societies Registration Mo. 0283/1957WEL)
k]

Ealance st the beginning of tha year . REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Add: Recaipts
Funding for Ring-fenced Porformancs Bonut 510,413 ¥YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

Adpstment for Pricr Yoar

Less: Expanditure

Parformance Bonus Payouts for Penicd FY2024/2025 (774,273}

Ewnlance t the end of the year (263,860)

Dalicit eovaned by Funding for School East's Total Oporating Expandiura 263,860

Mot Balance =
38

FIMANDIAL TEAR F4ES | Ansual Sepan 131




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST

REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTENTS

Stavoment by Execulned Commattod
Indopendant Audtor's Report
Staternent of Financial Position
Seaternant of Comprehansiva Incoma
Statomnaent of Changes in funds and reserves
Stotermaent of Cash Flows

Mot b0 Financial Statemants
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST

STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the spinian of the members of the Executive Committee of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore School West
(the “School Wist™),

&)

b}

<)

d)

&)

the Minancial staternents of the School West S seb out on pages 5 to 37 ane drawn up in accordance
with the provisions of the Societies Act 1966 (the “Socketies Act™), thie Charities Act 1994 and ather
relevant regulations {the “Charities Act and Regulations™), the rules and regulations issued by the
Ministry of Education ("MOE"), National Council of Social Service (*NCS57) and 5G Enable ("S5GE"),
and the Finandal Reporting Standards in Singapord S0 a5 o present fairty, In all material respects, the
financial position of the School West as at financial year ended March 31, 2025, and the financial
perfarmance, changes in funds and reserves and cash Nows of the School West for the financial year
then ended;

thie recelipt, expenditure and investment of monies and the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
&hwmm the year 15 in accordance with the rules and reguistions issued by the MOE, the
NCES a P

the donations and other receipts of the School West are used for spproved profects and
pumpases Intended. and are in accordanoe with the obiectives of the School West s neauired under
Reguiation 11 of the Charities (Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations|

the School West has complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities (Institutions of
a Public Character) Regulatinns;

the accounting and gther records reguired to be kept by the School West have been praperly kept in

accordance with the provisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Sacleties Act, the

C\‘S&rmes Act and Regulations, and the rules and regulations Issued by the MOE, the NCSS and thae
3 and

at the dabe of this statement, there are redsonable grounds to belicve that the Scheal West will be
able to pay its debis whan thay fall dus,

O BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

August 28, 2025
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

Wi have audited the financial stabements of Cercbral Palsy Allance Singapore School West
{the *School West™), which comprise the statement of financial position &s at March 31, 2025, and the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes In funds and reserves and statement of cash
flaws for the year then ended, and notes ta the financial statements, including material accounting palicy
infarmation, as set out on pages 5 to 37,

In our opinion, the accompanying financial staterments aré properly drawn up in accardance with the
provisions of the Socleties Act 1966 (the “Societies Act®), the Charities Act 1994 and other relevant
regulations (the “Charities Act and Regulations™), the rules and regulations Bsued by the Ministry of
Education {"MOE"), the National Council of Social Service ("NCS57) and the G Enable (“SGE™), and Financial
Reporting Standards in Singapore ("FRS5") 50 as to glve a true and fair view of the financial pesition of the
School West as a1 March 31, 2025 and of the financial performance, changes in funds and reserves and cash
flaws of the School West for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinien

Wi conducted our audit in accordance with Singapare Standards on Auditing ("55457), Our responsibilities
under these standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibiities for the Awdit of the Financial
Statements section af aur repoert. We are independent of the Schoal West in accordance with the Accounting
and Corposate Reguiatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant (o our audit of
the financial staterments in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities in accordance
with these requiremants and the ACRA Code, We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to pravide a basis far aur opinian.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Schopl Management Cormmittes is responsible for the other infermation. The ather informblion comprises
the Statement by the Executive Committes, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon,

Our apinkan on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibllity Is to read the other information
and, in doing S0, consider whether the other information is materially ingonsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge abtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
oy U won B v Dawe e T e, wvie Consclude that, theve i a materisl oeisstalemmenl of this gthe mfuomation,
wie are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repart in this regard,

DOkt & T 1L B Bty s, UL 14 Ly fare o Eagrn o Top Lemsted sty Farmreshge Act (hagres TRBA.

Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST

Responsibllities of School Management Committee and Executive Committes for the Financial
Statements

School Manogement Commitee ks responsibie for the preparation of fnancial saements that give o true
and fair view in aocordance with the provisions of the Societies Act, the Charities Act and Regulations, the
rulies and regulations msued by the MOE, the NCSS and the SGE, and FRSs, and for devising and rmaintaining
a system of internal accounting cantrols sufficient to prowide a reasonable assurance that assets are
safeguarded against loss from unauthorised wse or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and
that they are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to
migntain accountability of assats,

In preparing the financial statements, the School Management Committee i responsible for assessing the
School Wiest's ability to continue as a going concern, discloging, as applicable, matters related to going
cancar and using the going concern basis of accounting wnless the School Management Committes. either
inpendas o llqullﬂi'[ﬁ e SCnool West oF 10 Oease aperathons, or nas no MEalisOc alternanve DUt To 4o 50,

Thiz Executive Committee Is responsible for oversecing the School West's financial reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Cur objoctives are to obtain reasoenable asswrance about whether the finandal statements as a whele are
free from material misstatement, whether die to fraed or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high bevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an awdit
conducted in accondance with 5505 will abways detect o material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
CAR An5e IRom Iraud or errgr And are considenred maternal iF, manedudiny o n e aggrogate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the econpmic decisions of usérs taken on the bagis of these finandial
statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with S5As, we exercise professional jedgement and maintain professional
scepticism threughout the audit, We also:

(o) ldentify and 0ascas the riska of materiol misstotement of the fAnancial stetements, whither dug te
fraud or error, design and perform audit proccdures respansive o those risks, and oblain audit
evidenoe that is sufficient and appropriate (o provide a basis for cur apinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentatians, of the override of internal control.

{b) Obtain an understanding of intarnal contred relevant ta the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of cupresting an apinion on the
elfectivences of the School West's internal control,

{c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimetes and related disclosures made by the Schood Management Committes.




Deloitte.

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST

Auditor's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {cont'd)

{d}

(e}

Conclude on the appropriateness of the School Management Committee’s use of the gaing concem
badis of acddunting and, bastd an the dudit evidende obtained, whathar 4 mabaral undertanty dasts
related to evients or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the School West's ability to continue
as a going concemn, [f we conclude that a matertal uncertainty exists, we are required bo draw attention
in Bur auditar's repart to the related disclosuerss in the financial statements ar, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions ane based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditer's report. Howewer, future events or conditions may cause the Schoal West to
cease to continue AS & going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial staterments represent the underlying transactions and ecvents in
a manner that achleves fakr presentation.,

We communicate with the Executive Committes regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incleding ary significant deficiencies in internal controd that
we idantify during our sudit.

Raeport on Other Legal and Regulatery Requirements

In our opinion, the seesunting and ather records required to be kept by the Schosl West have been properly
kept in accordance with the provisions of the Societies Regulations enacted under the Socleties Act, the
Charities Act and Regulations and neles and regulations issued by the MOE, the NCSS and the SGE.

Dupring the course of cur audit, nothing has come to cur attention that caused us to believe that during the

year:

{a)

L]

{c}

the receipt, expenditure and investment of monies and the acquisition and disposal of assets by the
School West have not been carried out in accordance with the rules and regulations issued by the
MOE, the MCSS and the SGE;

the donaticns and cther receipts of the School West are not used for approved projects and purposes
intended, and aro not in accordance with its objectives as required under Regulation 11 of the Charities
{Institutions of a Public Character) Regulations; and

the School West has not complied with the requirements of Regulation 15 of the Charities {Institutions
of a Public Charatter) Regulations.

Dbt X ke 1

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants

Singapore

August 28, 2025
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL WEST

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
March 31, 2025

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash eguivalants

Ctivir nacdivablis and prapayrmisnts

Dua from Congbeal Palsy Alliance Singapone ("Association™)
Total current assets

HON-CURRENT ASSET
Equipmant

LESS:

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Dusa to Cemnbral Palsy Allisnca Singapore School East
{"School Eaxt”)
Cehar payabies and Sooried nxpontes
Aanuount dus to Coralbral Pally Allanc Singapons (CASsocation”™)
Total current lwailities

NON-CURRENT LIABILITY
Dalermed capital donations

NET ASSETS
REPRESENTED BY:
FUNDS AND RESERVES
Ganaral ressnes:

- MOE sharg

= MCSS Commurety Funding shara
= Portion due (o School fees

Reng-fenced Performance Bonus (Under Journays of Excollenca
Packaga)
Unrastricted funds

bt assats of trust funds

S BOCOMPANYING Notas 1o financial statements.

Moty

oo a

10
10

32

i1

2025 2024
$ 3
1,255,965 877,588
233,164 207,775
- 28,115
1,489,120 L111 878
08 039 72
535,101 509,783
273,282 202 496
12,524 .
B4, 904 712 375
392 162 223,115
970,592 625,656
661,272 i, 745
123,646 4,864
33,190 4,064
94,719 480,110
57,165 50,873
1,000 1,000
G970, 992 525 656
25,929 10,500




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL WEST

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont'd)
Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2025
Apil e mm an““h-
Year B (date Sepoektionl to Vear aaded [datn of Incorparation) to
b 2834 —_— e AL AT
| Genaral
Gendeal Ganeral
u'&'-"lu Ngl"b;\l fund fundy
MCSS JEGE MOL and MOE and
ot w‘ﬂ NCSS JSGE MCSS /500
i SO e i e o for otal for totat

s s s . s B i iy SERIE |
E L3 ! ] i *
] LESS EXPINDITURE

L HOL s WNCEE Salasies, boauses, CFF and SOF

5ot - MOR paocoed baaching H1aT

= Todal expprating o1 penure 3,017,132 . LMATANE 545 688 . 55, Mumﬁn;w

- Traasion : g E c ! BT parpose grant -

;Tg':wuqlgﬂn-;-‘ D7) My o L. ; i e dm et lusd | 547 236,719 - 218,718 FITR ] - FITRL ]
Fimpmrial Ais nisnce « Taatheg Walt 1,140, 0% = 10,0 1,121,769 = LAZLTER
Schame (FAS) 1480 ; 1,450 1 i b - Suppart stall SILTH . 631,73 480,147 - a7

Syl mtdl programoe 215 . ans .0 = LB ] = Al Frofptiasl SELo0d = 12904
. ﬂm‘:mlﬂ i S0l wetlare 18,807 - 18,007 12,380 - 13,180
Beray ™™ i Comtract VLAl « Bxum 34,101 . 3,201
Astinlande { CFR LRE] . LR 57 5.47 s Fritd = o] P i i

= Pubiar trarspat fubady 1 : . ki t bl Srmol unctaos b 4o med 0,056 - w058 15,384 - 15,186

- Sl tralaing vole 7003 . 70 w7 - FERLE] Oeprecation of squipment 7 151,354 - 130,354 6,714 - 64,714

- Asdtieasl bRIng viae £,155 b 4,185 1009 . Lo0S Raepav b marlessnoe 250, T s ¥, T 160,503 = 180,532

« HiGh meeds grast 12,007 © 1607 #3003 . 003 L T x Than i . g

- HODE sccandmask fand an,850 - S5530 EE, 600 C B2 MAHERT 8L A Lowr ] Laowr Lore = Lecw

E""“‘““’.‘"“ . 130,683 . 130603 Frofessions] rekandnaton b oiker

- Cwrraslim Enhasrama vt L] 106,475 - 104,474 115,306 - LS ]

A it 123m ' Az 150 v i WG anA N vt . #7015 7,818 . 1, 32,602

ment Fusd T Bes ] = L) L0, 400 s 10,300 0, X0
L0 v LS00 [ L] E [ ] Desigaabed fund oupesses:

=0 = MOE faadl o1y = L7 nron = apdh
Lommuncations - Qe fands . AT0, 247 430,147 . 3095 ]
Serelpment grant 4,100 . 4,100 45,083 - 5,083 i cion of 4 aresancaed frad - * ] > L. .

N P 2,509 . 2500 2003 . 200 SR T o Sl et - y d . : :

= Frovisica of admin mansger = 2 ¥ e G B2 b Utdhabion for SALD FAS LTz - LR+ - = -

« MOE Eanchment arant 4410 . 440 5130 . 150 Dilhamn for schood meal

LRt grans for Temporary d Erogramme 0047 - L 1,00 - 1,000

e e e o 00 $16.300 e O wnpnditute P 1 IS S A L R V.. | N | 1. '

R vemant hses ; “:m “:.'m ; %000 1,000 ; =

ALt ] - -

- Opporteaity grast . 9,580 540 . 16,540 16,840 bm{r;-rphh repredentisg

= byl Tt = heetul . 18,537 18,87 . LX-TH 012 lnﬂd-rh-"llulm.'r. 376,093 (s 35338 BED)  eae  eIiese

- fabeced foes - fotaign - #9540 FIBD - 4,540 4,060

'mugm" o 12 551,192 551,191 255,843 255,643

- Miistry of Socul & Famey : " ¥
ml‘ i B 15 T, * A AR

= B Tobe Beoard fusd . 16,434 1AM . 5,120 51m

- Unbcleting $oas Do 16 . . - . 1,000 1000

- Devnated donations 1, 16 . 7345 TS . 776,004 776,004
CapLi ity ] . 5,50 80,532 . m517 81T

= FRESWagh ohedl itamy & 1,473 BLETY # 5.0 LR ]

- HnceRan o granty . 1S 21818 . 52,624 51

Oty Inccmt

- HuoeRinboe Poome . FLET 18518 . 5,504 LT3

- M . 3428 L8 . 3378 3178

Tatal insomn CAALOS LISAFOS  SEOTPE0 LATTO8A LASXENS 4141000 S04 Becompanying rotes to financal stalemants.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL WEST

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS AND RESERVES STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended March 31, 2025 Year ended March 31, 2025
General Spacific Special Programims Financial pariod
reserves  Donations  Purpose  Unfestricted developmant from Agnl 1,
_._I‘.Hg?_,‘_til_tﬂ'n! 10} m;m ﬁ?h I'P‘Ld “;EI_ 2023 (data of
Your anded incorporation)
Balance at April 1, 2023 B - March 31, to March 31,
LA GF RRePS Nt - 2025 2024
it surplus, ipritanting totsl - #
comptahentive incoma for the Operating activities
Yt siots i iDL SUATE oo el L5 Opearating surplus 345,336 625,656
Balance at March 31, 2024 93671 ADO,118 50,87 1,000 - BasA%6 Adjustmisnts for:
> o : Copraciation of equipment 150,940 66,714
Mt surplas, mepritenting total Amortisation of defemed capital donations (88,532} (28.616)
Comralieniive Moome for the Oparati fhows bafore movements in 407,744 663,7
yoar _zases ey e 2 . s g i S s
. Other recevables and prepayments (25,389) (207,775)
Balance at March 31, 2025 218, 4,719 STI65 1,000 S0
: = . - Dua to School East 29,318 509,783
Dusa from the Asscoption 38,636 (26,115)
Hote A Other payabies and Bocruod axpenses. 70,786 202 496
Cash ganerated from cporathons, roprasanting net cash
General reserves from oparaling Belivities 521,095 1,142 143

Tha genaral resarves ks restrictod for tha school only, for the banafit of its intanded chients, according to the
funder's intent for the usa of monsss. The reserves will not be transfermed out of the School Wost for other
purposas. Tha resacves must not be m-desipnatod for other purposes, unless sppmoved by tha fundar,

Balance at April 1, 2023
(xdate of incorparation)

Invasting activity
Purchasa of quepmant, Masressnting
not cash used in imvesting activity (Nota A)

(143,118) {264,155)

HCSS
Community Mt incroasa in chsh and cash aquivalants 377,977 577,988
Funding Cosh and cash egquivalents at beginning of year 877,988 -
Cazh and cash equivalents at end of year 1,255 965 !?T.BBI;

Hote A
Add: Nt Income 663 684 255,643 41,786 53,118
Cuiring the year, School West scquired equipmaent amounting to 401,697 (2024 | $514 886) (MNota 7) of
s Expanditure (00541}  (370.779)  (37733) @ (B69,643) which $258,579 (Mote 9) (2024 : $250,731) & funded through doferred captal donations.,
Balance at March 31, 2024 6, T4 14,864 A054 L=V Fs]
Acd: Nt Income 3T AR 551,392 150,621 3,719,145
Balance at March 31, 2025 661,272 133 646 33,190 818,108

The ganeral resarvas is apportioned on the following basis:

Funder " s portion of reserves
Swow of Fumading f did by frosdior awar o laat § pass

T af Tfik] peritde dmma (ndamma Fudivwad diwr Lisn Fdar 3 pors

Sen sccompanying notes to financial statemants,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

2.2

142

GENERAL

Corstral Palsy Alllance Singapony School Wast (the “School West™) (Chasity. Registration No. 00073
and Societies Regstration Mo, 0283/1957WEL) is engagod in prowding education, training in social
davelopmant, pre-vecational training skdlis and therapoutic treatmant for spastic children, Tha School
West is domiciled in Singapone with its régistersd officn and principal place of operation at 64 Jurang
‘Wast Streat 52, Sinpapora 649297,

Tha School West and Cerebral Palsy Allisnce Singapore (the “Association”) are funded by donations

ganirally split up Dy age group, wihing
programs for students agad 7 to 16 years asra run by the School West, while all other programs ane
run by the Associabon, Tha financial statemants of tha School Wast should b rsdd in conjunction with
tha Association & the results of the Association are in & soparate sof of financial staterments.

The financial statemants ane axpressoed in Singapore dollars, which is tha functional curmency of tha
Schood Wast,

The financial statemnents of the School West for the year ended March 31, 2025 were suthocised for
ssue by tha Executive Commithos on August 28, 2025,

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

BASIS OF PREPARATION - Tha financial statements have beon prepared in sccondance with tha
historical cost basis, axcapt as desclosad in the material sccourting policy information balow, and ama
drawn up in accondancd with the provisions of the Socetes Act, the Chanties Act and Reguiations, the
mmwwwhmmmm;mmmmem

Hgtonical cost is gonerally based on tha fair valut of tha consideration given in exchangd for goods
and Serices.

Fair valua is the price that would be recoived to sell an et or pasd to transfer & lisbdity in an ordorly
transaction batween miarket: participants at the moessuremant dato, regardiess of whether that price
i directly obsarvabis or astimated wsing ancther valuation technigua. 1n astimating tha fair valua of
an asset or & labiity, the School West takes into account the charactenstics of tha asset or habilty
which market participants would tala into pccount whan pricing tha asset o liability at tha
masturemont date. Far value for mesturement andfor decloture pumpeses in these financial
statomaents ks dotermined on such & basis, except for laasing transactions that am within the scopa of
FRS 116 Leases, and messuremonts that have some similaities to fair value but ane not faer valus,
such as value in usa in FRS 36 Impainmant of ASSots.

ADDRTION OF MEW AND REVISED STANDARDS - In the cument financial year, the School West has
adopted all the now and revited FRSs that am mandatonly effective for an sccounting panod that
beging on or after Apnl 1, 2024, Thesr adoption has not had any matenal impact on tha dsclosures
oF on the amounts reported in thase financial statemants.

10
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL WEST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

2.3

Naw and revised standards in future pericds

At tha date of authorisation of thasa financisl statemonts, the School Wast has not appliod tha following
FRS proncuncomients that have been soed but are not yet affective:

- FRS 118 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Stalements
- FRS 119 Submidvanics without Pubbc Accountabilily: Disclosunes

Manapamant antiopabes that tha adoption of the new or revised FRSs, INT FRSs and amandmants to
I-‘R5|n future pariods will not have & matenal impact on the financial statements in the parned of thair
initind acdoption axcapt as balow,

FRS 118 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

FRS 116 replaces FRS 1, camying forward many of the mpuerements in FRS 1 unchangod and
complamanting tham with now nequirements. [n addtion, WFRSIWWNNHM

to FRS 8 and FRS 107, mmmmmmmms.?mm

FRS 118 minoduces M Fequiremants to!

. present spocified categones and dafined subtotals in the statement of prolit or loss

" ?ﬁd%mmdﬁnﬁﬁmm%ﬂnﬂumuhh
nasnct

. improve agoregation and deagonagation.

The amandmants to FRS 7, a5 wall a3 tha revised FRS 8 and FRS 107, becoma affectinvg whan an gntity
applies FRS 118, FRS 118 requines retrospactne application with spacific transition proviskons.,

Managamant is in the process of evaluating the impact on the School West's linancisl statemant in the
initiad application pericd. Management dogs nol plan to sarly adopt the new FRS 118,

FIMAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial kabidities are recogrised on tha statomant
of financial pesition whan tha Schodl Wast becomas a party 10 the contractund provisions of tha
ELUTINg.,

MMamwmm.um.mwmammle that are
dirgctly attnbutabio to the acquisition or ﬂﬁrmummdfmmruhmmmdw
nrmmfmmml‘-r valug of the rmmlmarmumuwm on kntisl
necognition,

11
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL WEST

MHOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025

2.1.1 Financial assets

144

O

Dabt instrumants mainly comprisa cash and cash equivalents, amount due to Association, and other
MWMWMWMWNMWTMHMM:

" tha financial assat s hald within & businass model whose objectiva is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

L the contractual terms of the financial assoet Qive risa on spedified dates to cash fiows that ang
solaly paymants of pancipal and interest on tha principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and effectve inberest method

The effectiva interast method s & method of calculating the amortised cost of & debt instrumant and
of plocating intangst incoma cver tha relevant penod.

Tha affectie interest rate is tha rate that axactly discounts estimated futue cash mesipts (incleding
all fens and points pasd of receiied that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and othar premiums or discounts) axcduding upumuandtbﬁu.m.ﬂ:uuwlhd
thir dilt, ingtrumant, of, whane sppropniate, & shortor pariod, o the gross carmying amaunt of tha dabt
FEdTurnet o initial recogrition.

Tha amortisod cost of a financial assat is tha amount at which the financial sssat is moasured ot initial
mecognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the affective
intarest mathod of any differsnce betwoan that intisd amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for
any loss allowancs. On tho other hand, the gross camying amount of & financisl asset is the amortised
cost of a financial asset bafore adjusting for any loss allowanca.

Interest i recognisad using the effective interest method for debt instrumeants maasunsd
at amortised ooft, except for short-torm balanoes whan the effect of discounting is immatanial,

Imoarment of fnancial atcets

Ther Schodl Wiist recognites o [oss allowance for expected credit losses [TECLT) on amount dua from
Asgocistion and othor recoivables, The amount of expected credt logses ks updated at oach reporting
diata to reflect changes in oredit risk since initial recognition of tha respectiva financial instrumant.

For all fnancial instruments, the School West recognises ifetima ECL whan there has bean & signadfcant
incraase in crodit nisk sinco initial recognition. If, on the other hand, tha credit rigk on the financal
instrement has not increased signeficantly since initial recognition, the School West measures the loss
aliowanca for that financial instrumant 8t an amount ogual to 12-month ECL. The sssessrmont of
whether ifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant incroases in the likelihood or
risk of » default occurming since inetisl recognition instead of on evidence of a financisl asset bamng
cradit-impained ot the reporting date or an actual default occurming.

12
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Significant incroase in oredit risk

In mssessing whathar the cradit risk on & financial instrumaent has increased skignificantly since initial
recognition, the School West companes the risk of & defult ccdurring on the finaencial instrument as
ot the reporting data with tha risk of a defadt oocurmng on tha financial instrumant as at the date of
nstial recognition. In making this assessmaent, tha School West considers historical loss mates for each
catogory of dobtors and adjusts to reflect curmnt and forward-iooking information that s avadlabie
without undua cost or affort.

Thar School West prasumes that the crodit risk on a financial sssot has incressed sipnificantly sinca
imstial recognition when contractual payments ane mona than 30 days past due, unless the company
has reasonable and supportable information that damonstrates ctharwise.

Tha School West assumes that the credit risk on & financial instrument has not increzsed significantly

sinca initial recognition if the financial instrurment s determm inod to have how crodit rsk at the neporting

date. A financial instrumant ks detarmingd to have low cradit risk if (i) the financiad instrument has a

low resk of dadaui, (i) the bormewer has a strong capacity to meat 25 contractual cash flow obligations

mmwwmmd{mjmmwmmﬁcmwmmmmmwm

:u?r but will not nocessanly, reduce the ability of the borrower Lo fulfil its contractual cash flow
igathons.

I credit rigk has not increased sipnificantly since initial recogrition or i the cradit quality of tha
finonciol instruments improves auch thot there i3 no lenger o Mgreficont increass in credit riak sinoe
instial recognition, loss allowancn & massuned st an amount equal to 12-month ECLs,

Definition of defaur

Tha School West considors that default has ocourmed whan information developed intarmally o obtatned
from axtemal sources indscates that the deblor mwmwmnmm:mﬂw
Wiast, in full without recourse by the School Wist to actions such as roalising security hald (if any).

Crodit-impaired financial sssets

A financisl asset 5 crede-impaired whan one of more avents that have o detnmantal impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset hove octurmed.

Write-off policy

Tha School Wiest wites off 8 financial asset whin thens is information indicating that tha countarparty
b in govers financial difficulty and thers is no realistic prospect of recovery, 8.g. whan the mm
s boon placed undar bguidation or has entensd into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial sssets
mwwumwﬂmmmmmwm;wmm
o aocount legal advica wihene approprste. Any recoveriss made am recognised in income or
axponditung,

13
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

Moasuroment and recognition of cxpoctod crodit osses

For financal assats, tha axpected cradit loss s ostimatod a5 the diference betwoon all contractual
cash flows that ane dus to the School West in acoordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
thay School Wisst expects to recoive, discounted at tha onginal effective interest mie.

I tha School West has measuned the loss allowance for a financial instrument st an amount egual to
HmB:LlnhmrmﬁmeMdﬂuﬂmuhm“mmdﬁuMh
Wlﬁﬂ!lmﬂlmmhﬂﬂ'mﬂlumwmmh allowanoe Bt &n
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date.

Dorecooniteon of finaocial assets

Tha School Waest derecognises a financial asset only whan tha contractual rights to tha cash flows from
the assot gxping, or it transfors tha financial assot and substantially all the risks and rewards of

of tha asset to ancthar entity. [f tha School Wast naither transfers nor retains substantinlly
all the risks and rewards of ownarship and continues to control tha transformed assat, the Schodl Wisst
nicognises its retained intarest in the asset and an associsted Kabsiity for amounts it may have to pay,
I tha School Wast retains substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership of a transfarmed financial
MWWWﬂmmwmhMﬂnﬂmw.ﬂmlm!m
borreawing for tha proceeds received,

2.3.2 Financial liabilities

.4

146

Financial linbibties of the School West are classified scoording to the substance of the contractual
arrangamants entemd into and the definitions of a financial Eability,

Amounts dua Lo the Association and School East, other payables and scorued exporsos and deflormed
Hob support schama grant incoma ara initially messured at fair valug, and an subsaquently measured
ot amortised cost, usang the effoctive interest method, mooept for short-tarm payables whaen the effect
of distounting is immabarial,

Lececoonition of finsodial linhibties

Thar Schaol Wiest derecognises financial liatalities whan, and only whan, the School Wast's obligations
aro dischargad, cancolled or oopored.

ECUIPMENT - Equipmant is stated st cost jess accumulated depreciation and any accurmulated
Impairmient lods.

Equipmant costing 31,000 or lass s writhen off in tha year of scoguisition,

Dapeacaton of equipmant is charged on & straight-ling method over the expected useful lnnes of the
assats concermad. Tha principol annual rates used for this purposs ane:

Furniture and fittings. - 20%
Computers - 20%
COifice equpmant - 20%
Ranovations . 10%
Rahabilitaticn equipmaent - 20%

14
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL WEST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

2.5

2.6

2.7

Tha estimated useful lives and depreciation mathod are reviewed ot the end of each reporting pancd,
with the effect of any changes in astimate accountad for on & prospactivi basis.

mgﬂnwlmmmmmwuﬁwammdmumum
diferonce batwoeon the ssles proceeds and the camying amounts of tha asset and is recognised in
ncoma of axpanditune.

Fully depeociabed assats st in use ame ratained in tha financial statemants,

TMPAIRMENT OF NOM-FINANCIAL ASSETS - A the end of each reporting pencd, the School Wast
rivews tha camying amounts of its non-financial assets to determing whether there i sy indcation
that thoss assets hove suffered an impairmant loss. If any such indication axdsts, tha recoverable
amaunt of tho asdot is estimated in order to determing the extent of tha impairmant less (if any).
Wharn it s not possibla to estimate the recoverabio ameunt of an individual ssset, the School West
astimates tha recoverable amount of tha cash-panarating unit to which tha asset balongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sal and valua in use. In assessing value
in s, the estimated futune cash flows sre decounted to their present vake Using & pro-tax digcownt
ratn that reflects cumant market sssessmants of tha tima value of money and tha rsks specific to tha
sssat for which the estimated future cash flows have not been adjusted.

I tha recovarable ameunt of an asset (or cosh-gendarating unit) is astimatod to ba less than its carrying
BMmount, the cormying amaunt of tha pasot (cosh genarting unet) & reduced to it3 Mcovsrable amount.
An impairmant loss s necognized immediately in income o axpandituna,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, tha camying amount of the asset (cash-generating
urit) is increasod to tha revised estimato of its recoverable amount, but only o the axtont that the
incrapsod CTYIng BMOoUnt does Rot axcesd thi carmying amount that would have been determined
had nd impairmant loss boen recopnised for the asset (cash-genarating unit) in prior yoars, A revorsal
of an impairment bess i mcoonicad immaedataly in incoms o axpanditune,

PROVISIONS - Provisions are rocognised whaon tha School West hes & pressnt obligation (legal or
constructiva) as & result of & past evant, it is probabla that tha School Wast will ba required Lo settla
tha obligation, and & radiabla estimate can ba mada of tha amownt of tha obligation.

The amount rcognized &5 & provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settla the
prosent cbligation at the ond of the reporting panicd, taking into actount thi risks and uncartaintios
sarounding the obiigation, mamﬁmhm‘uu‘dmzihmhmmmm
the present obligation, its carmying amourt is tha present valun of thoss cash flows.

Whan soma or all of the economic banafits neguingd b6 Sotthe & Provision ane sxpectsd to ba recowred
from a third party, the receivable is recognisnd &% an asset If it is virtually cortain that reimburssmant
will b received and tha amount of the receivable can be measunsd ralably.

DEFERRED CAPITAL DONATIONS - Donptions for tha scquisition of eguipment snd token to tha
Deferred Capetal Donations Account and recognised as incoma over the usoful hves of the assets to
match depreciation of tha sssets purchased with the related donations. Donations received for specific
plrposes are accounted on a cash basis, This comprices governmaent grants and contributions received
from donors to fumnish and equip the School West,

15
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2.9

LEASES - Tha School Wist assesses whather 5 contract is or contins a koase, &t inception of the

st recognises a nght-of-use asset and o laasa kability with
respact to all leasa arrangements in which it is tha lessos, mocept for short-term leases (defined as
leases with a lease tesm of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the

GENERAL RESERVES - This arisas from the axoess monies not meguined to be refunded to the MOE and
the NCSS [ SGE and from net operating surpluses genarated and is restrictod for the School West
only, for the benafit of its intended dients, according to the funder's intent for the usa of monses.
Thetr resarvis will not bo transforned out of the School Waost for any othar purpests. The reserves will
aleo not be re-dessgnated for other purposes, unless aporoval i given by the funder.

2,10 SPECIFIC FUMDS - The funds compase the cumulative oparating surplus or defst ansing from tha

.11

specific incoma and axpanditure account. Donations recaived for spacfic purposes an acoounted for
on & cach basis, The specific funds are vtilsed in sccordance with it intended purposs, Amounts ot
whilised ara accumulated in the specific funds.

UNRESTRICTED FUNDS - Tha funds compnse donations received that can bo ulilsod in aras whing
fundls am most needed, at the descretion of the School Managemes Commitioe and the Executive
Committo.

212 PROGRAMME DEVELOPMENT FUND - Programmas recolving NCSS § SGE grants under o “Paer Capita®

funding policy ara allowsd to start a Programme Dovelopment Fund, This represents the portion of
ncoma retained by tha School West and was computed based on 50% of unmestricted donations, or
5% of total oparating exponditung whichaver is lowar,

2,13 TRUST FUNDS - Monies recoived for trust funds are cradited directly to the respective trust funds'

financial statements., Incoma and axpenditure, sssets and kabilithes of trust funds are segregated from
that of tha School,

2,14 RECOGNITION OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE - Tha School Wist rcognisas incoma when it transfars

148

control of a product or sorvica (o & customa .,

Ciash QOnations
Cash donations am mcognised on a cash basls,

Srants from MOE aad MCSSISEE

Grants recatved from MOE and NCSSISGE amm on an accrusl basls. Any surplus or daficit
of funding will be accounted for after it is finalised with the relevant authorities,

16
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.16

Snte of goods

Ravanua i mossured baced on the considerstion spacified in & contract with a customer and axcludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The School West recognises rvenug whan it transfers
contrel of tha goods to & customern,

Bangering of seryices
Ravanua from rendaring of services are recognised when the sarvices are provided.

Sthool feeg
School fees ara rocognised on an sccrual basts in tha pariod to which it redates,

Loterest incom
Inberest incoma s acorued on & time basis, by mfarencsd o the principal cutstandeng and at the
offisctive interast rato applicatéa,

Exgsogturg
Expanditurs is sccounted for on tha accrual basis,

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS - Paymants to defined contribution ritingmaent benafit plans ane changed
a5 an experss whon employses have rendered the services entitling them to the contributions.
Paymants madae o statde-managed retiremant benefit schomes, such as the Singapora Central
Provident Fund, ang daalt with 2 paymants to defingd contribution plans whire the School West's
obligations under tha plans are equevalent to thosa ansing in s defined contributon retirement banedit
plon,

EMPLOYEE LEAVE ENTITLEMENT - Employea entithamaents to annudl leave and recognised when thay
Bocrua to employeas. A provision s made for the estimated liability for annual leave as & result of
sarvices rondered by employets up to the ond of the reporting pariod.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the School Wisit's accounting palicies, which ang described in Kote 2, the Scheal
Managemant Committes = reguined to make judgements, etimates and sesumptions about the
carrying amounts of assots and labifties that are not readly appament from other sources. Tha
astimates and associated sssumptions an based on historical axperence and cthor factors that s
conshkiared to ba relevant, Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

Tha estimates and underying assuemptions any roviewod on an ongoing Lasis. Rovishons to accounting
estimates are recognised in the pariod in which the estimate is mvised if the nevision affects only that
paricd, or in tha pariod of ths revision and future pariods if the rovision affects both cument and future
pariods,

17
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Critical judgements in applying the School West's accounting policies
School Management Committen s not awam of any critical judgmants that have significant offect on
tha amounts recognsed in the financial statermants,
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Th School Wost doas ot have any key sowces of astimation uncortainty at tha end of tha reporting
pariod that have a significant risk of causing & matarial adjstmaent to the camying amowunts of assets
and liabilithes within the next finsncial yoar,
FINAMCIAL INSTRUMENTS, FINANCIAL RISKS AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
(o) Categoces of finaocisl instruments

Tha following table sets cut the financial Instrumants a5 ot the and of thi reporting parod:

2025 2024
£ 5
Financial assots
Al amoctised cost 1468718 1,105 140
Financial liabilities
AL amortised cost 816 284 707,254

(b)

Tha School Wast has lsmited aspogure to financial ricks. Then has boon no changa to the School
m‘sww:mfnwu rishs oF thiy marnes in which it manages and masiuns thise

(1) Crods mel

The School Wast has adocted procedures in @xAending cnodit terms 1o ncaivabies and in
manitoring its credit nisk. The Association is pramarily funded via grants and donathons mnd
it attemots to ensure suffickont hquidity at all times through efficient cash mansgement.
ﬁ:mmmmmmmwuwwmmwmt

Although the School West's credt exposure is concantrated mainly in Singapora, it has no
sigreficant concantration of crodit sk with any singla rocsivable or group of receivables,
Tha School Wast develops and maintaing its credit risk gradings to categorise exposuns

according to their degroa of risk of default. Tha School West utes its own trading records
to rabe its major recaivables and other dabtors.

18

i

(i}

Tha School West's cument credt risk grading fmawork comprisas tha following
COLOOOEES

Category |Description Basis for recognising

Parforming Tha counterparty has o lew rsk of default | 12-month ECL
and dogs not havwe any past-dua amounts.

Doubtful  [Amount is > 30 days past dua or there has |Lifetima ECL -
bonn & significant incroace in credt nsk ot Crocht-impained
since initial recognition,

Tn Ofouic  |Amount is >00 doys past Oul or there 15, |Lifetime ECL -

evidence indieating the assel is cradt-impadrad
cridit-impained,
Wnte-off | Tham 15 evicance indicating that tha Aot 15 wrnten off

dabtor i in sevene financial difficulty and
tha company has no realistic prospect of
|rwnvu'r,

Tha table below datails the credit quality of the School West's financial sesets as wall a3
MANEMLT Gxposune to credt sk by credt nsk rating grades:

Trvternad Gross Mt
cradit 12 -maingh or CTying Loss CArrying
N i 77 &
E] % ]

1025
Amaunt dus from

Ll toi -] Paafperning 1Im ECL -
Othar receivabies & Padfoerning 12m ECL 133 164 = 233,164
2034
Arnaunt dus from

AiSodutian 5 Parfodrming 1dm BCL 26,115 - 26,115
Othar rooe vables & Parfodrning 1dm ECL 107, T = FLEA ]
Lrerest rate risk

Chasngas in intorest rates do not have & material impact on the School West as it does not
by inordst-boaring liabidlities and 2s interest-bosning assat only rolates to cash ot

Eoosion currency ek
Tha School Wast doas not hava any significent exposure to foregn axchanga risk.
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(iv) Liguichty rish
wanmuwwmmmwmmm Tha School Wast's Tha remunaratyon of membars of key managament duning the year was as follows:
oparations are fingnoed mainty through net sssets of trust funds. L
Al financial liabilites in 2025 are non-interest baaring and repayabie on demand or dus 3 3
within ona yaar from tha end of the reporting parod,
Short-term banafits 214,008 200,473
Post-amploymant banafits 1
236,719 211,539
The carrying vahues of financial assets and financial kabslities reported n the statement of
I;-Inmu:wmn sppraxmate their fair values, dut 10 the relativedy shorl-Term matunty by Bl ) et ey ok
Banumaration baod
{c) Capital manacement policies and ohiiectives SO NE0 S, rd e < E
Tha School West reviaws its capital structurae 8t least snnuadly to ensure that the School Wast *  comprsed of salary and bonus
vﬁﬂhﬂlﬂtmwﬁmuamm.ﬂ?uﬁulmdhmmm
mainty it ganeral neservs, and grants from MOE and NCSS [ SGE.
3 QOTHER RECEIVABLES AND FREPAYMENTS
2025 2024
5 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS % $
Soma of tha School Wost's traneactions and arrangomants ang with related parties, Carbral Palsy Othaor recelvables 12,543 =
Allianos Singapon Headguartars and Corsbral Palsy Allisnca Singapore School Exst, and tha affect of Sundry deposits 158,500 198,500
thase on the basis determined botwesn the parties are reflected in these financisl statemants, Tha Foes in aears 1,310 2,137
balances are unsocunod, interast-fres and repayable cn demand. Prapayrmants 20,411 [Pl ]
233,164 207,778
Significant related party transactions during the yoar was &4 follows:
| . W— ¥ IPMENT
F; 5 iy Flamitur Cifice Fuahals
and
[}
21,746 2,946 e Y . v )
Balarce at Aged |, 2023
DRiret recharge {dats of o) . ) i . d
Sppoch & Languags therapy and sudiclogy sarvites 197 - Additions — T4 330550 80637 170425 S14 800
Cantre of Excelinge-Trans-disciplinary by Dr Mythra 20412 - ArMarch 31, 2024 26,274 120,550 Bo,637 1B ALE F14,805
Additiens 9,560 87,084 15938 265,105 401,697
Services from School East At March 31, 202% 35,854 316,634 116,585 447,830 F16.503
AT Hub serviea 11,081 3,960 Accumiiated dopreciation:
5!"3& E'ﬁ Balarce ot Agrid 1, 2023
{date of incorpodaton) - = i t:z m‘;l i -
Deprecistion (3.941) (33,583 ; 714
Professional fees referred to the alled health professionals from tha Association and Schood East that At March 31, 2024 (3,941} ;;3,;!53;. E’,‘;ﬂq 123, 306) (714
provided rehabilitation sendces to the Schoal West, Cepreciation {6,325) (52,2730 (19,315 {73.027) (250,940)
AtMarch 21, 2025 {10,365 (A5 BE6) 126,250} 195.233) (317.554)
Carmying Smounts
AL March 31, 2035 15588 0778 30,266 353,297 698,929
AL March 11, 3074 PR < 7 & - I { [ 7., ) T365] 156,219 448,172
20 21
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B OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

Feas roceived in advanca
Other payabies
Acorued axpanias

9 DEFERRED CAPITAL DONATIONS

2025 2034
] )
§,620 5025
137,412 78,915
137,350 118,556
273,283 202 496

This fund was sot up during the year ended March 31, 2024 to record donations and funds rocoived
for tha cost of equipmaent, which will ba amontised based on the estimated useful life of the squipmant.

Donations received:
Balance ot baginning of yaar
Acdddticns:

= Computars

- Officy sl prvint

= Rishablitation egupment

= Furmsturg & fittings
Balance at and of yeor

Accurmulpted amortisation:
Balance st baginning of yoar
AmMorTEaton
Batance at ond of yoar

Carrying amount

2025 2024
5 5
250,731 -
54,547 34,398
12,185 L |
184,447 169,840
7,400 -
28,616 -
2 28,6
117,148 28,616
392,162 222,118

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025

SPECIFIC FUNDS

10

HOE
BPED PAS
2

ACHF
3

F

MOE IET
Fund
s

HAL Tobe

Board Fend
%

MOE High
Fund Fu
s Yy

MR
Training Yote  Oppertunity

mMOL

411

5450

#1035 510 40,003

18,040

7 ALT

M7

[dats of Incorporation)

e recelved from MOES

Balance at Aprell £, 2023
HCRSIFGMAL Tobe Board

{i14,538) (56,160}

139,503)

(8,480) (63,835} 5,120}

(1,855}

i

Expaaditure

%

411

zar

2,518 1,045 0,360

5367

I,

TATL

L5

519

5,387

Balance at March 35, 2034

54,100 oI

16,431

7,001 #1055 9,560

oars

Grae received from MOES
MCSEILGE{ AL Tota Board

{30,250}

{10851) 133,562) 14851} (8,560) (126,077} (14,233} 163.291) {46,222y (54,500} (1,742)
!!EJJ

(5.200)

|

B

1] 26507 1

2,200

2200

5,810 [488)

{1,678)

|

total compreh ersee IRcome
fior tha yaar

it dtrplt reprEenbing

155

e ave

23

340

5,038

Balance at March 31, 3035
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The a20ts hald under each fund mbinty compaiss cash and cash equivatonts, The utilisation of spacific
funds am restricted for the intended purposes. of tha respective funds,

Thee spacific funds aro dedoribed babow

Building and Facktias Imorgyemant Fund

mlﬂmmwmmfwm,wﬂmmmmm
e,

School Funclions Grant

This grant partaing Lo donations reosved for school functions or evants, such as graduation day, mcial
harmony day, children’s day and spocts day.

!

fund £ used to anhance the educational contont of programmes to train teachers 10 support

MOE Training Yotes Fund
This fund is used for staff trasning which is one of tha key componants for upgrading of slolls bo romasn
relovant,

MOE Coporumty Fung
One tima off grant given by MOE. It i meant to level up ennchment opportunities for students who
bra Singapora Citizen from lower incoma housaholds.

MOE High Weads Fund

This fund is to provide SPED Schools with sdditional resources to support studients with axcaptionally
high neads upon apgroval by High Needs Grant Fanal,

BaL Tobe Fund
This fund pertains to NAC funding either through NAC-AEP (Arts Education Programma) or NAC-AISS

studants with special needs. Donations givan mainly for teaching matenals, resources, equipment or {mnnkhodsmjmmm it adms to provice all students with socess to quality

poaching aids. arts oducation programmaes through tha School West. Under AISS, R aims o provide suppot,
colloborotiona batwean achools ond proctising Singopore ortists, ond wiiters to co devolop customised
aris education programmas to maet the noeds of the School Wast and students,

Buoll Weifars Fund

This fund & used to halp tha finsncially needy students in subsicksing thair fees, transport and welfare
noads. Donations given mainly for tha wolfare of pupils,

such a5 special art instructors, sports activities,
thos, &t wall b

ol

This grant s o provide funding for the School Managemant
{9, transport allowancos and med! coupans) 1o benefit Smgaporsan studants whe do not moeot tha
qualifying criteria for the SPED FAS, as well as provide additional assictance to those on the SPED FAS,

Trnpspoet Subsidy Fund

This fund pertains to donations necenved from the public for transportation foes for students, This k&
for tranapostation by private transpoit.,

Asiva gt | FIRANCAL YEAR 24725

Professional bo support tenchers in the implamantation of ICT-snhanced
mmwmﬂmsmmnﬁuthmmmwmnww
IT-rolated sonioes.

BOE Curnculum Enhancemant Fund (CEF)
This fund ks used for school-based initiatives or sctivities relsted to curriculs and co-curricular
davalcpmant and raform,

This fund s used to provide schools with addstional mecurces to refine thair currkoulum in slignmaent
with tha SPED Curriculum

Children's Chaeitios Assecintion Fund

This fund is primarily used for tha purchase of mobality/equipment aids for ua in the School Wast and
o defray the cost of specialsed equipment punchased by financially needy students.

27
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This fund i to provide noady students in SPED schools with waiver of school fees, froa uniforms and

taxtbooks,
daclanss that he/sha takes public transport to tha Schocd Wast, for a3 long as thay am enrolled in the

This fund is used to reimburse the School West for the differential betweon sctual cots of

MOE-secondad principalteachenrs, based on MOE's salary packages.
To meimburse schocls which engage contract teachers to cover teaching duties of stalf undergoing

DCiploma in Spacial Education (DISE), Advanced DISE and Management and Leadarship in Schools

courses, 8% woll as staff wha ane away on MOE Masters Scholarship.
This fund &5 utod to support the S2W implemantation offorts in Phase 3 and 4 SPED schools through

tha hiring of ona Job Coach per schocl,

To enable SPED schools to enhance the lovel of parental engagemant and crganiio parant-rlated

This fund s to provide & subsidy of $10 per month (or $120 per yaar) to aach SPED FAS rociplent wha

activities on & roguiar bass,

This grant ks used mainly for enrichmant programmiss for obtsining resources and equipment to banalit
28

This fund is to provide SPED FAS students sged & to 20 years old with debursemaents for maals.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL WEST
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025

165

285 223 EEE : ;
g (=1 (=) L wn (o i~ F ) BT 3
§- %89 z. 584 g PR 3.2 2
e
3333 5l 35348 : i
W m: SRgA M m m m Tl Hen | - @s m
g =
B
2 : g i
: : m :
: : y
m ; w 2 :
e ]
- ; 3 3 :
m - - . a
:y ¢ M : mm ; m j ¢ :
; g0 H 235 f
: 22
“o3x 2 3 m = m
: m $i5 3 m 282 i
k- <
m .m ] m g £ m g m = Mwm B 3
1 T doF R
3 &
- = it b4
ZE
Ty SZOF "1E YR Ye EUReD
TZBL TFE) ZorT) TPeg0e1] Sirpusdse ey
TEBLTRES = 3oL (M
J Lzop'td ‘ BRI AIEE SB0 PUR RUSEERald (W
: (e SBOURMO|[ B SRS (N
4 4103 sameale g samEs )
~ SRR ]
= 0T5'ER BHIERD| B ISID
- - R R puadas 3510
falies ote'e sdjesas 304 (pey
PO "TE YEH 10 2R
Toigaee 1] (0L &) aunypuadxa jezog
EIEE T 300w
fosz’zh ESajams Jae puD EusEcagnly (9
g 3 sauRmaje g eEs (i
Lo e gy |
- AuRmofR fSpUELs 3510
3 = SHUNERIL WY
SIE'EBEE"T oEE'E BB 30 Py
% [Leonypindiaou) jo 3ep) £207 ' udy @ a2uReg
5 § £
RS FTLIT) Bujipeal
03dS Mau JRUEIRUE e 30H
L0 e ELT PIRMY SBUIERL 0 UDISIAGIY  MES 30W
IEUsHESURIL
30

STOT "TE UeW
SINIWALYLS TWIINVNIS OL SILON

153M TO0HDS FHOMVENIS IDNYITIV ASTVd TvHEIHID

164 Al Bapodt | ARANCAL YEAR 2425




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL WEST

HOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS KOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2025

15 TAXATION 20 MONTHLY FUPIL ELIGIBLE FOR FUNDING
All registored and axempt chadties will enjoy automatic income tax momption and charities do not Numbae of
naad to file incoma tax effective from Year of Assescmant 2008, Internaticnal

Mumber of Pupils Number of Puplds  Pupils Paying

By Cesabality By Disability Concessionany
16  TaX EXEMPT RECEIPTS Group - Multiple  Group - Multipls Rate of School
‘ Disabildtios. Dizabilities ) Foes.
Tha School West anjoyd & contossionary Lax twmmmmwm 6-11 yoors old) (12-17 yoars old} (5-11 years oid)  Total Number
2.5 times tax deduction for the donations made to the School Wist, SCIPRYIS SCIPRAS {Hote ©) of Students
2025 2034 3] (3] (3] (o) + (B) + [<}
] %
Apeil 1, 2024 30 23 . 53
Donations for which tax eoempl receipts wend sued 14,333 7,500 May 1, 2024 (Note A) 0 23 h 53
Breal o T Sk e el P b et i catiras: June 1, 2024 3 23 . 5d
2025 2024 Moy 1,2024 3 23 = 54
5 ] Bugust 1, 2024 31 24 - 55
Unsolicitad donplions
September 1, 2024 n i3 . b
Tax deductible donations - -
Man-tax deductible donations = 1,000 Octobar 1, 2024 i 5 - 56
- 1
— Newambaer 1, 2024 k' 25 . 56
Desgnated donations
December 1, 2024 3l 25 - 56
Tax deductible donations 14,333 7,500 Janusry -
Mon-tax deductibla donations 10,423 T66 504 B Sl o 31 k2
34,756 776,002 February 1, 2025 7 i . 55
March 1, 2025 ar E . 64
17 SALARIES, BONUSES, CPF AND SDF
Number of staff positions Full tme oguivalent [ecka:
Allied Professionals 9
Ceing professionals) Tasching staff 3 (A} As Moy 1, 2024 was a public holiday, tha number of pupls on April 30, 2022 was used for pug
Support Stall 15 anrolmant on May 1, 2024,
(8) Asm:. 2025 was a publc and school hobdays respactively, the number of pupils on
18 FUNDRAISING ACTIVITIES Decamber 31, 2024 was wad for pupd enveimant on Jarnuary 1, 2025,
Thare are no fundraising activities for the yaar anded March 31, 2025 and 2024, (€}  [Internationsl pupils who sre payeng the concessionary rates of school fess (Singapons Permanant
Rasident foa rates) under the 2 yeors orace paniod,

19 INVESTMENT

Thare are no irvested funds recaived from MOE and 5G Enable for the year ended March 31, 2025 and
2024,

V66 s masn | vt T840 24025 FIMANCIAL TEAI B4/25 | ansudl gt 16T




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE SCHOOL WEST CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE SCHOOL WEST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS KOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025

21 MONTHLY PUPIL ENROLMENT FOR INTERNATIONAL PUPILS 22 RING-FEMCED PERFORMANCE BOMUIS (UNDER JOURNEYS OF EXCELLENCE PACKAGE)
International pupils am defined a3 thote who are not of Singaporean Citizen (5C) or Parmanant 5

Residence (SPR) status, and who do not pay Concssionany rate of school foas.
Balance at tha begnning of the year

mmwmﬂ mwmﬂ“ Add: Receipts
' Pupils® ’ Pupils®* Total Mumber Funding for Ring-fenced Performancs Bonus 103,838
(6-11 years old) {12-17 years old) of Studants Adjustrment for Price Year &
b = (5] + Less: Expenditure
= o v Parformance Bonus Payouts for Period FY2024/2025 301
ApERA, 2018 ' t 2 Balanca at tha and of the year (197 252)
Dafict covared by Funding for Schoal Wist's Total Cparating Expenditure 197353
May 1, 2024 (Nota A) 1 1 2 et Balance =
Jung 1, 2024 1 1 2
Judy 1, 2024 1 1 2
August 1, 2024 1 1 2
Septembar 1, 2024 1 1 2
October 1, 2024 1 1 2
Newermbar 1, 2024 1 1 2
Decembar 1, 2024 1 1 2
Jonuary 1, 2025 (Pacta B) - - 2
Fobrunsy 1, 2025 - F 2
March 1, 2025 - 2 2
biote:
(A} As May 1, 2024 was a public holidny, the number of pupils on April 30,2024 was used for pupil
ennciment on May 1, 2024,

(B) As January 1, 2025 was o public and school holidays nesobctively, the numbor of pupds on
Decembar 31, 2024 was used for pupl enrcimant on January 1, 2025,

- International studerts who are children of employmont pass holders, shilled workors or
diplomatic staffs.

**  Intermational students who sra not children of employment pass holders, skilled workers or
diplomatic staffs.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Executive Committee of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore
{the “Association”), the statement of comprehensive income and statement of resenves (the *Statements”) of
thir Goadwill, Rehabilitation and Oocupational Waorkshop (the *Workshop®) for the year ended March 31, 2025
are progarad in all material regpacts, in accerdance with the basls of sccounting described in notes ko the
Sratermnents and provisions of the Societies Act 1966 (the "Socdeties Act™) and the Charities Act 1994 and other
relpvant regulations (the “Charities Act™).

'ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Ms fvanne i
Honorary T

Date; Augist 28, 2025

172 Aotavad ezt | FURANCIAL WEAR 24725

- Dttt & Tonxhe LLP
i Freiy b TRREITTILA
Deloitte. o
OLK Dgwerocmen &
#3300
Srgipded DEEE
Tet +65 6204 BIRE

Fax; 465 6535 6166
e S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CERERRAL PALSY ALITANCE STNGARORE

GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

Opinion

We have audited the statement of comprehensive income and statemant of resenves (the "Statements™)
of the Goodwill, Rehabilitation and Occupational Workshop (the “Warkshop®) for the year ended March 31,
2025, and the notes to the Statermants, including material accounting policy information, as set out on
pages 5o B

In our opinion, the Statements of the Workshop for the year ended March 31, 2025, presents fairly n sl
material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the Statements,

Basis for Dpinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ["S5As7). Our respansibilities
under those standards are further described in the Avaibor’s Responsibifibies for the Audit of the Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Workshop in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Reqgulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entites
["ACRA Code®) tegethar with the athical reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the Statemants in
Singapore, and we hive fulfilled cur gther ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the ACRA Codie. We believe that the audit evidenos we have obtaingd is sufficient and appropriste to provide
o basls for our epdmion,

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

Wi draw attention to the notes to the Statements, which describes the basls of accounting. The Statements.
are prepared to assist the Workshop to meet the requirements of reporting to the National Council of Social
Bardcs ("HNCSET) f §G Enable ("SGET) and Minigtry of Social pnd Family Davelepmant ("MEF™). Az & rocult, tha
Statements may not be suitable for another purpose. Qur reéport i intended Salely for the Workshap, NCSE /
SGE and MSF and should not be distributed to parties other than the Warkshop, NCSS / SGE or MSF. Our
opinion s not madified in respect of this matter,

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Managernent s responsible for the other informatkan. The other information comprises the Statement by the
Exeoutive Committes, but does not inciude the Statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Qur epinlen an the Statarmente dast nat convar tha athar infarmation and we do nat exprose any ferm of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In conngction with our audit of the Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, In
GO S0, CONSHIGT WRELNET tRE OLREF MTOrMANoN = MAtenany INCONSISLENT wWIth INe SIATEMEnts or our
knowledge obtained in the awdit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to repart that fact. We have nothing to report in this reqard,

e & Foicha 12 v Bty o, TRRLLOTIRR i B it vind Sy BAeriiop repisend i Sonbainn et W Lomaid Lialiiy Ferymangs 1 shanes BB




Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND QCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

Responsibilities of Management and Executive Committes for the Statements

Management ks responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statements in accordance with
the hasie of accounting described In the notes to the Statements, and such internal cantral as managemeant
determings B necessbry to enable the preparation of the Statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar.

Do pezpaging U Stalennenls, ismagenmed bs vespesibde v assessing U Workshop's ability o wontioue
a5 @ going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relabed to golng concern and uging the going concem
basis of accounting unless mansgement either inbends to liquidate the Workshop or b cease operations, o
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thiz Executive Commitbes is responsible for overseeing the Workshop's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Stabements are free from material
migstatemaent, whether due to fraud or arror, and to issue an auditor's report that incdledes our opinion.
Reasonable asgurance i & high level of assurance, Bbub is not & guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with S5As will always detect a material misstatemant when [t exists, Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are conskdered material i, individually o in the aggregate, they could reascnably
be expected to influence the soonomic decisions of users taken on the basks of these Statements,

Ag part of an audit in sccordance with 55As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
SCAPCESM NFOUGNOUE tNE AUGIT. W 150!

{a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
errar, design and perform audit procedures responsive to thase risks, and obtain audit evidence that
i3 sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting & material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve
collusten, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(k) Obtain an understanding of internal conteed relevant to the sudit in erder to design sedit procedures
that are appropriabe in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinign on the
effectivensss of the Workshop's internal cantrod,

{c) Evaluabe the appropriatencss of accounting policies wsed and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropeiatensss of management's use of the going cancern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Waorkshop's ability to continue a5 a going concemn, If
we conclude that a materal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditer’s
report W the related disclosures in the Statements or, if such disclosures are insdequate, to rmodily
our opinion. Our conclusians ane based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditar's
raport. Howenrar, future events or conditions may cause the Workshop bo cease to continue as a going

concorm,

Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAFORE
GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

(&) Evalpate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Statements represents the underlying fransactions and events in a manner that
achleves falr presentation,

W cunnitate witl Uie Exevutive Comenites pegarbig, anrmgg ullne nalbers, Use planmed scegs and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant deficiencies In internal controd that
we identify during our audit.

Dleste 3 Toveeer 2

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
sangapare

Auqust 28, 2025
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

GOODWILL, REHARILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2025

INCOME
Primary [ncama
= 5G Enable - Tote Board Sodal Servica Fund (TBSSF)
= 5G Enabla - Ministry of Socal ard Family Davelopmant ["MS5F7)
Specific donations

176  ana Bzt | FURANCAL. YEAR 24725

2025 2024

3 5
276,881 276,896
864,730 87,938
53,990 24,044
60,819 50,172
22,905 56,445
59,669 44,924
46,506 12,634
191,317 149,396
1,606,817 1402499
531,712 413,061
59,043 86,513
129,282 110,354
11,918 6,267
2,050 66
4,564 4,291
4,490 3710
5324 2,333
191,317 149,396
31,255 33,317
66,807 67,201
50,490 22,459
21,964 6,095
233,033 243,557
48,184 134,654
9,305 B,309
2,074 2,758
2972 1,666
2,420 1,355
1,012 1,250
9.578 B434
574 1,593

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont'd)
March 31, 2025

Sacurity senvicns
= Maintenance of land & building
Total expanditure

Operating surplus, representing
LerLal ir

JF] Tor Lhe year
Transfors from spocfic fund
Surplus payable to NCSS [ SGE and MSF

2025 2024
5 3

9,559 8,394

- 2,149

4,612 3,650

33,892 28,230

7 6,229

11,735 11,294

34,023 23,099

1,551,164 1402499

55,653 .
{35,802) 110,609

{19,851)  ({110,609)

FIMANTIAL YEAR FA25 | Ansual Sipot
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

GOODWILL, REHARILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

STATEMENT OF RESERVES
March 31, 2025
Accumulated Workshop
fusred fund Total
§ 5 ]

Balanca at Apnl 1, 2023 (133,859) 571,880 437,981
Oparating surplis, mpresonting

rotal compnehansiv incoma for the year 110,609 {110,609) -
Balanca ot March 31, 2024 (23,250) 461,231 437,581
Oporating sumius, reprasanting

total comprahansiva incoma for tha yoar 15,851 35,802 55,653
Balance ot March 31, 2025 {3,399) 497,033 493 634

L I - Rr— Bzt | FURANCAL. YEAR 24725

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

GOODWILL, REHABILITATION AND OCCUPATIONAL WORKSHOP

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Tha statement of comprehensave income and statement of reseres are prepaned based on matenal accounting

policy information bolow which are in accondancs with the historical cost basis and pro drawn UD in Bocordancs

muﬂ?whu m-_?u:.mm-'mm Act™) and tha Charties Act 1994 and other mbavant regulations
. At

1.
2.

!.'l

Cash donations ane recogresed on a cash basis,

Grants recesved fircmn Mationsl Counal of Socinl Service f 56 Enabla and Ministry of Social and Family
Doveloprmant are recognised on an accrial basis,

Combral Palsy Alllancs Singapore recognisas incoma whan it transfers control of 8 good or rondars
SrvioR L0 B CLSIOMmEr,

Programima foes are recogrised whon the services ans rendaened,

Cxpanditure relotes only to cpercting axpenses incumed in the running of the pregromme end ore
recognisad on an accrual bass.

Tha sccumulated fund s restricted for the operations of this programma only, for tha benafit of its
intended chents. In keoping with the funder’/denors’ intent for tha use of tha monkes, the funds will not
ba transfermed out of tha programme for other purposes.,

Thie Workshop fand was ostablished i 1984, Incoma denved frem the workshop projects and cash
wittfara

donations for the workshop am channadled to this fund, The fund i to ba utifised for tha gonaral
of workshop trainess.,

FIMANTIAL YEAR FA25 | Ansual Sipot
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinlen of the members of the Executrve Commiites of Cerebral Paliy Alllance Singapore
(e “Associason ), U Matermens of comprehermine (nouTse snd statermens of reserves (Lhe " Siaterens )
of the Beyond Boundasies Club for the year ended March 31, 2025 are prepared in all material respects, in
accordance with the basis of accounting described in notes to the Statements and provisions of the Soceties
Act 1955 (the “Societies Act™) and the Chasities Act 1994 and other relevant regulations (the “Charities Ad”).

O BEMALF OF HEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

August 28, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR™S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB

opinion

Wie have audited the statament of comprehensive income and statement of reserves (the “Statements™) of
ther Boyond Boundaries Club for the year ended March 31, 2025, and the notes to the Statements, including
material accounting policy Information, as sat out an pages 5 ta 7.

In gur opinian, the Stabements of the Beyond Boundaries Club for the year ended March 31, 2025, presents
fairty, in all material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes o the
Statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted cur audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing ("55As7), Our responsibilities.
under those standards arg further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Aodit of the Statements
section of our réport. We are independant of the Bayond Boundarses Club in scgordance with the Accounting
and Corporate Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities ("ACRA Code”) tegether with the ethical requirements that are relevant o our audit of
the: Statements in Singapore, and we have fullilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ACRA Code, We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and
approprisgte to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

Wiz drany attention to the notes to the Statements, which describes the basls of accounting. The Statements:
are prepared to asgist the Beyond Boundarics Club o meet the requinements of reporting 00 the National
Couwnol of Social Service ("NCS57) / 56 Enable ("SGE”). As a result, the Stabements may not be sultable for
another purpese. Our report ks intended selely for the Beyond Boundaries Club and NCSS f SGE and should
nat be distribubed to parties other than the Beyond Boundaries Club or NCSS / SGE. Our opinion is not modified
in respect of this matter,

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor’s Report Thergon

Management |& responsible for the other information, The other infermation comprises the Stabement by the
Executive Committee, but does not include the Statements and cur auditor’s report therson,

Qur opinion on the Statemants dees not cover the other infoemation and we do not cepress any form of
axjurands conclulien thercon,

In connection with our audit of the Stabements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, In
doing S0, condider whether the other information is mateédially inconsisteént with the Statéments of our
knowledge cbtained In the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we
have performad, we conclude that there i5 a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
o repart that fact, Wis have nothing ta repart in this regard.




Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB

Responsibilities of Management and Executive Committee for the Statements

Management is respengible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statements in accordance with
the bacie of accounting described in the notes to the Statermnents, and for such internal contred ac
management determines is necessary to enabde the preparation of the Statements. that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

If prepanng e SLAlements, MANAgGEMEnt 15 FESPOnRSIDIE fOr A55EE0ING he Beydnd Bounganes LIUD's abinty
to cantinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unbess management either intends to liquidate the Beyond Boundaries
Clubh nr to ceace nperatinns, or has nn realichic alternative bt bo dn s,

Ther Executive Commithes is responsible for oversesing the Beyond Boundaries Club’s finandal reporting
ProCess,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Qur objectives are to obtoin reasonable assurance about whether the Statements are free from material
migstatement, whether due to fraed or errer, and to issue an auditor's report that indedes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is o high level of assurance, but is not & guardntes that an awdit conducted in
accerdanos with 33As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstalements can arise
from fraud or error and are considerad material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to inflsence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Statements.

As. part of an audit in accordanoe with S5A5, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
sceplicism throughout the audit. We also:

(@} Identify and a33c3d the rishs of material misstatement of the Statements, whether duc to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to these risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from I'raud s hlgher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve
collusion, forgery, Intentional omissions, misrep ations, or the gverride of internal control,

(B} Obtain an understanding of intermal contréd relevant to the audit in order to design sudit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumetances, But net for the purpogs of axprogding an opinion ¢n the
effectiveness of the Beyond Boundaries Club’s internal control,

{c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polides used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, It any, and related ¢SCI0SUNes made by managamant,

{d} Conclude on the appropristencss of management's wee of the going concern basis of dccounting and,
hazad an the andit svidencs abfained, whathar 2 matarial oreadainty avicke ralakad Bo ovanie or
conditions that may cast significant doulbt on the Beyond Boundaries Club's ability to continue a5 a
goeng cancern, If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requined to draw attention in
our auditor's report to the related disclosures In the Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
10 MGGy GUr pinicn, Our conciusions are based on the audit evigence obiained up Lo the dage of our
auditors repart, Howewver, future cvents or conditions may cause the Beyond Boundaries Club to cease
1o continue 85 & going concerm.

Deloitte.

INDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB

{2} Evaluate the cverall presentation, structure and content of the Statements, including the desclosures,
and whether the Statéments represents the underlying transactions and évents in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicale with the Executive Committes regarding, among other matters, the planned Scope and Bming

of the audit and significant audit findings, including any stgnificant deficiencies In internal contred that we
identify during dur @wdit.

Dot N Trche of

Publéc Accountants and
Charterad Accountants
Singapore

August 28, 2025




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT OF RESERVES
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Accurnilated
20:5 21!‘24 i
INCOME *
Grants from Hational Countil of Social Sarvica ("NCSST) /

SG Enatle ("SGE7) 96,997 5,373 T S
Alumni sales 41,207 20,245 Oporating deheit, representing total comprohansive loss for the yoar (16,223}
Total incoma 136,204 115,618 iy e

Bainnce at March 31, 2024 71,767
EXPENDITURE
Manpowar ki rolated costs Oparating surplus, representing total comprohensive income for the year §,148

= Salaries and related costs 69,693 55,977

- Cealt wellard 300 93 Balsnce 8t March 31, 2025 77,915
Ganeral and adminstrative QXpOnSes

= Misoollnrncds REpnGe 5448 5,908

Eupplies and matenals 591 1,726
= Uphaop & matntananos 630 =
= Replscament of aguipmant 980 -

- Professional rehablitation foss 1,009 676
Programma/Fropect axponses

- Alurmnl gxpanss 5130 12,557

= Bayond boundaries dub activity aponses 48,375 34,904
Total expenditune 132 056 131 841
Operating surplus (deficit), representing

total comprahensive income (loss) for the year 6,145 (16,223}
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b e Deloitte
BEYOND BOUNDARIES CLUB .
MHOTES TO THE STATEMENTS

March 31, 2025

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Tha statemant of comprafwnsiva ingoma and statement of reserves am propaned based on matorial accounting
policy information below which &re in bocordanod with the historical cost basis and ane drown up in docondance
with the Socseties Act 1966 (the “Societies Act™) and the Chanties Act 1994 and other relevant reguistions
{tha “Chanties A"),

1. Cash donations ang necogrised on o cxsh bagis.

2, Grants recoived from Nationsl Council of Social Sorvice / 56 Enabla and Minestry of Social and Family
Devalopmaent ane recognsad on an accrusl bass.,

3. Corebral Paloy Allisncd SINGDpore recognises incomé whan it transfers control of a good or rendars

SONVioE L0 B CustodTear, CERERRAL PALSY ALLTANCE STNGAPORE
(Charity Registration No. DOO73 and
4.  Programme fees ara recognesed whan the services ans rendened, Societies Registration Mo, 0283/1957WEL)
5.  Expenditure relabes o oparating expenses incumed in the running of the programme and are
mmmﬁm = o SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON

EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM
& Tha sccumulated fund s restricted for the operations of this programme only, for the benafit of s
intended clisrts, In keeping with the fundar/donors” intent for the use of the monies, the funds will not STATEMENT OF COMPREMENSIVE INCOME
ba transfemed cut of tha for cthar
Fr i AND STATEMENT OF RESERVES

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2025

ae
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE CERERRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAFPODRE
EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Exeoutive Cormmittee of Cerebral Palsy Alliance Singapore
{the *Assaciation”), the staternent af comprehensive income and statement of reserves (the “Statements™)
CONTENTS of the Early Intervention Continuum (“EI7) for the year ended March 31, 2025 are prepared [n all material
racpacts, In accardance with the bactk of accounting describad In notes 1o the Statements and provicions of
the: Societies Act 1966 (the “Societies Act”) and the Charities Act 1994 and other relevant regulations

(the "Charities Act™).
BAGE

Statemant by Bdstutive Committes 1 N BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Indepandent Auditor's Report z-4

Statemant of Comprehansiva Income 5 i TR
W

Statement of feseros 6

Motes to the Staternents 7 “
Mé'l'uun
Honorary T

Date: August 28, 2025

™
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

Qpinlon

Wi have audited the statement of comprehensive income and stabernent of resences (the "Statements™) of
the Earty Intervention Continuum (CEL”) for the year ended March 31, 2025, and the notes to the Statements,
including material accounting palicy information, as set out on pages 5 to 7.

In our opinion, the Statements of E] for the year ended March 31, 2025, presents fairly, in all material
respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the Statemeants.

Basis for Dpinion

Whe conduched opr audib in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing [("S5A57), Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Avdifors Responsibilities for the Awdit of the Stalemants
section of our report. We ane independent of EI in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate Regulatory
Authonty Code of Frofessional Conduct and Effvics for Pubdic Accowntanis amd Accouniing  Enfities
("ACRA Code”) tegether with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Statements in
Singapore, and wie hve fulfilled our other ethical respongibilities in accordance with these requirements and
tha ACRA Codfe W halisus that tha asilst suiancs we have shitainar ic aafficisnt and appecgriate b poouids
& basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

W draw attention to the notes to the Statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statements.
are prepared to assist El to meet the reaulrements of reporting to the Mational Coundil of Social Services
["RCSS") f SG Enable ("5GE7) and Ministry of Social and Family Development ("MSF7). As a result, the
Statemants may not be suitalile for anather purpage, Dur repart i intended solely for EL, RCSS [/ SGE and MSF
amd shoukd net be distributed to parties other than EL, NCSS ¢ SGE or MSF. Our opinion is not madified in
respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management |5 responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committes, but does nat inchede the Statemants and our auditor's report thereon,

Qur opinion on the Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form af
assurance conclusion theseon.

In connectian with gur audit of the Gtatements, our responsioilty is to read the other information and, in
doing 50, consider whether the other information k= materially inconsistént with the Statéments or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the wark we
hawe parfaremed, weoeanclids that thare i a material misstatament nf this ather infaemation, we aee reqiired
to repart that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

CARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

Responsibliities of Management and Executive Committee for the Statements

Management ks responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statements in accordance with
the bacls of ascownting deseribed In the notes te the Statements, and for such internal cantrel as
management determines i necessary to enable the preparation of the Statements that are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or ercor.

In prepaning the Statements, management ks responsible for assessing El's ability to continue as a going
concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and wging the going concern bagis of
accounting unless management aither intends to liquidate E1 or bo cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to doogo.

Thie Executive Committes is responsible for oversesing EN's financial reporting process,

Auditer's Responsibllities for the Audit of the Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Staterments are free from material
misstatemaent, whether due to fraed or error, and to Issue an auditor's report that incledes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, buf is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
acoordance with 55As will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from frawd or ermee and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influgnce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Staterments.

As part of an awdit in accordance with SSAS, we exercise professional judgerment and maintain professional
scepticksm throughout the audit, We alsa:

{a) [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsiva to these risks, and obtain asdit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a matesial
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from errar, as frasd may inolve
collusian, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the evarride of internal contral.

(b} Obtain an understanding of intermal controd relevant to the audit in order to design awdit procedures.
that are appropriate in the circurmnstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of EI%s internal controd,

{c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates, | any, and refated disclosures made by management,

(d) Conclude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based an the audit evidence obtained, whether 8 material uncertainty exists relabed to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on EI's ability to continue as a going concern. If we canclude
that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclogures in the Statemants or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinian.
Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's report.
Hewener, future gvents or conditions may cause EI to cease to continue a% a going concern,
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EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

March 31, 2025
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
2025 2024
EARLY INTERVENTIOMN CONMTIMULIM S 3
INCOME
Grants
&) EvAIBES thé Svarsll préseatalion, Mructuré BAA CHREEAL OF the SEAEMENS, ineluding the ddeloture = National Councll of Social Sarvica {'HCS5") / 5G Enatle ("SGE") 1283684 1,120,484
* and whether the Stfmmm represents the underlying ransactions and events I?'r a manner thg = Ministry of Socal and Family Davelopment ("MEFT) 4,785,708 4,036,995
achieves fakr presentation, Donations
= Spacific donations 13,597 146,539
We communichte with the Exedutive Committes regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and Foas and chargas
tirming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that = Early [ntervention Continuum (“EI7) 455 706 357,323
we identify during our audit. - SGE for transport subsicies 233,155 254,090
= Miscallandous grant/inama - -
Total incoma 6,774,850 5,945,434
Tlee B, Tk o EXPENDITURE
MEnpCe B redalod OoSRs
Pubdic Accountants and = Salaries and relstod axponses: 4,161,395 3,588,724
Chartered Actountonta - Madical, insurancs and wolfan expenaos 30,569 25,144
Singapore = Training and relsted exponses. 568,494 4aT110
Ganaral and sdminestrative axpanses
= Communications 3673 3,692
= Insurance 3649 =
PaRAR ey 2o - Audt foss. 9,558 11,722
» Professional rebabibitation foos 2,134,274 1,820,899
= Transport changs 2,495 1,455
« Suppiies and materials 26,581 27,572
- Replacement of equipment -
= Misoall ous BXpanses 74,589 69,621
= Parent Support group pantas 2,024 2,500
Uphoonp mnd utilitses.
= Maintenants 108,623 106,805
= Uinilities 130,554 112,685
Jct apanses
= SGE for UAniport axpantes 233,155 254,090
= Public educaticn campagns 58211 17,875
Urtilisation of spacific donations 106,823 108,041
Total enpenditung 7,099,007 5202935
Oparating deficit, representing total comprahensiva
loss for the year (324,247) (257,501}
Transfers from (to) specific fund 93,226 (35,497)
Deficit recoverable from MCSS [ SGE and MSF 231,021 295,998
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM EARLY INTERVENTION CONTINUUM

STATEMENT OF RESERVES NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Accurmidlstod El BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
fund fund Total
% 5 F The statemant of comprahansive incoma &nd statamant of resenves ara prepaned basod on matonal accounting
policy information below which arg in sccordanon with the historical cost basis and ang drawn up N stcordance
Balance at Apdl 1, 2023 3853101 916,245 4,796,346 with the Sccotks At 1966 (the “Societies Act™) and tha Chamties Act 1994 and other relevant reguistions
(the "Chanithes A",
Cparating daficlt, npresanting )
total comprohonave loss for the yoar (295,598) 38,497 {257,501} 1,  Cash donations an recognised on & cash basis.
Balance at March 31, 2024 3,557,103 954,742 4,535 845 2. Gronts recolved from Mational Council of Social Service [5G Enoble and Ministry of Social and Famely
Dovelopmant &n recognised on an soorual basis,
Cparating dafict, mpresenting
tetal comprohensive loss for the yoar (231,021) (93.226) (324,247} 3. Cembral Paisy Alliantg SINGopors recognises. intoma wihen it transfers control of & good of rendors

sorvice (o b customar,
Balance at March 31, 2025 3,326,052 861,516 4,187,598

5, Progmanmri loes o ivagased wing | Ung bam vices aow re el

5. Expenditure relates only to operating expenses moumed in tha running of the programma and e
recognised on an accnual badis,

6. Tha scumulated fund & nestricted for the opeations of thes programma ondy, for tha benafit of it
intencked charts. In kioging with the fundardonors’ intent for the use of the monies, the funds will net
b transfiermed oot of tha programma for othar purposaes.

7. The speafic fund is used to halp the financial neady children under Early Intervention Contimuum to
subsicksa thoir fioos, purchaso of assistive rehabditative sids and wolfare noads.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
HEADQUARTERS
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Execulthoe Committes of Cercbral Palsy Alllande Skngaporc
(Ehe "Assocision”), the statement of comprehenshve income (the “Statement™) of the Headguarters for the
year ended March 31, 2025 are prepaced in all material respects, In ascordance with the basis of sccounting
described in nobes to the Statement and provisions of the Socicties At 1966 (the “Socleties Ad™) and the
Charities At 1994 and other relevant regulations (the “Charities Act").

OM BEHALF OF MEMAERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

August I8, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

HEADQUARTERS

Dpinion

We have audited the statement of comprehensive income (the “Statement™) of the Headquarters for the
year ended March 31, 2025, and the notes to the Staterment, including material accounting palicy infarmation,
AL Lo8 AUl Of PAGES 5 B S

In our ¢pinion, the Statement of the Headquarters for the year ended March 31, 2025, presents fairly, in all
matarial seopects, inoarcardanes with the hasss of arcannting deorribed in the nateg fo the SEarsmaal

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards an Auditing ("SSAs7). Our responsibiities
under those standards are further described in the Awgitor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement:
section of our report. We are independent af the Headquarters in accordance with the Accounting and
Corporate Regulatory. Authority Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and
Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code™) together with the ethical requirements that are rebevant o our audit of
the Statemeant in Singapore, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with thesa
reyuiremes gl Une ACRA Cude, Wir Defbeve Ural Ui audit evideowe we have wldaiimn) s sullicit and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

We draw attention to the notes to the Statement, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statement is
prepared to sssist the | lesdquarters to meeat the requirements of reporting to the NMatonsl Council of Social
Senvice (TNCS57) [ 5G Enable ("SGET). As o result, the Statement may not be suitable for another purpose.
Our report is intended solely for the Headguamers and NCSS [/ SGE and should not be distributed 1o parties
other than the Headguarters or HCS5 / SGE, Our opinton is not medified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is respansible for the other information, The other information comprises the Statement by the
Executive Committes, bul does not include the Statémant and our auditor's répart theréan.

GOur opinion on the Statement does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thersan.

In gennpsticn with sur audit of the Statement, sur recpencibildy I6 16 read the ether infermatian and; in
doing 50, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Staberment or our
knowledge obtained in the awdit or othenwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we
have parformed, we conclude that thare is 8 material misstatement of this other informatian, we are required
to report that Fact. We have nothing to repoet in this regard,
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IMDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

HEADQUARTERS

Hesponsitlities of Management and Executive Commitbes Tor the Statemant

Management i5 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statement in accordance with
thie hasls af accoumting described in the nobas to the Statemant, and for such inbernal control a5 management
determings is necessary to ¢nable the preparation of the Statement that is free from material migstatement,
whether due to fravd or errar.

In preparing U Stateml, ndmagenmnil s oespeasilhe fur assessing e Headguarnben s abiiity b oontinue
&% a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and wsing the going concern
basis of accounting unless manbgament gither intends to liquidate the Headquarter or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thie Executive Committes ks responsible for overseeing the Headguarter's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statement

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statement s free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and Lo issue an auditor's repart that incdludes our opinion,
Reasonable adfurance is a high bevel of assurance, bub is nob & guarantec that an audit conducted in
accordance with S5As will always detect 8 material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise
from fravd or arrer and are considerad matarial if, indsidually or in the aggragate, they could reaconably
be expected to infleence the economic decisions of users taken on the basks of this Statemant,

As part of an audit in seoordande with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
SCEPTICISM IAFOUGNOUL The AUdIE. We aise:

(a) [dentify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the Statement, whether due to fravd or error,
detipn and perform audit proacedures respongive B thase risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide & Dasis far our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud ks higher than for one resulting from error, as frasd may imalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(b} Obtaln an understanding of internal contred relévant to the audit in erder to design sedit procedures
that are appropriate in the crcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Headquarter's internal contral.

[c) Evaluate the appropriatencss of actounting policies used and the reasonabieness of accounting
estimates, if any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropristeness of management’s use af the going concern basis of accounting and,
based an the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Headguarter's ability to continue a5 a godng concermn,
If we conclude that & material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditer’s
repert o the related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to modily cur
opinton, Owr conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor’s
raport. However, fulure evants or conditions may cavee the Hosdguarter to ceate to continue as 2
geing concern,

Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

HEADGUARTCRS

(e} Ewvalsate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Statement, Including the declosures,
and whether the Statement represénts the underying trangactions and events in & manner that
achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with the Executive Committes regarding, amang other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, Including any significant defickencies in internal contred that
wi identify during our audit.

Tigbte, X Torsbi- 2F

Public Accountants and
LAAMEned Addbulitants
Singapore

August 28, 2025




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
HEADGQUARTERS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2025

INCOME
Grants:
= Mational Councl of Social Service ("HCS57) f 56 Enable ("SGE7)
= Commumity silvor trust funds from NCSS [/ 5GE
= Tamporary Oocupation Lcencs [“TOL") fee (rom Minstry of Social and
Fasmily Davalopmant (“M5FT) and Minstry of Bducation ("MOE™)
= Tote Board
= Miscalinnecus grants.
Deanations:
- donations
= Transfor to Cerebral Palsy Alllancae Singapons School East/
Corobral Palsy Alliance Singaspons School West funds
= Urrestricted donations
AR - chharitiet copnbility fund brsning grante
Amcrtization of defermed capital donaticng
Mambarship fods
Waoa crodit schema
Interast incoma on bank deposits
Charity Dunnar income
Event Colloctions
Internad servioes rondansd
Megcellanaoys income
PECT supsarvipion incom
Total incoma

204 s Bzt | FURANCAL. YEAR 24725

2025 2024
s 5
- 39,968
742,997 £53,349
1,520,476 834,978
453,680 327,614
109,327 5
1,071,168 557,647
- (639,610)
908,865 812,724
- PR ]
1,050,318 1,071,544
275 278
487,147 32,531
251,448 285,529
282,912 445,939
3,328 199,216
210,581 142,687
37,531 32,256
178,484 152,126

7,328,537 5,151,746

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
HEADQUARTERS

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (cont'd)
March 31, 2025

EXPENDITURE
Manpower and relsted costs:

= Salares and related axpenses

= Maodical, insuranoe and welfare oxponsas.

= Tradning and related axpenses

= Commurications

= Insuranca

= Akt foos

= Transport changes

= Supplies and matenals

= Acvrtisarmnt (pansas

= Bank charges

- Doprociation of proporty and oguspmeaont

= Depreciation of night-of-usa assets

= Rplacomant of equipmont

= Mescallaraous axpenses

= Bguiprmant witton off
Uplmap and utibthes:

= Maintanance

= Motor vahicle axponses
Lrilisation of spacific funds
Lnilisation of unnestricted donations
Charity Dinnar axpenses.
Tote Board ~Charity Dinner
Intorest on lease listslities
PECT supaervishon axpentsas
GST Expanse
Activithes) Campasgny Pulblic Education
Evant Expansa
Total avponditurs

Operating surplus (defict), represanting
Tolal comprehensive Incoma (loss) for the yoar
Transfer (to) from spedfic fund
Daficit recoverable frem RCSS [ SGE and MSF

2025 2024

5 b
2,120,262 1,502,185
93,573 53,607
44,890 70,310
8,462 6,827
24,071 31,469
6,500 5,608
3,163 3,316
33,294 38,502
5,139 6,300
1,376,411 1,238,231
1,520,476 834,978
6,651 1377
119,390 65,645
12,205 .
100,410 80,620
6,354 8,724
801,515 516,687
42,572 45,604
39,336 39,083
156,410 127,383
148,902 94,138
598,413 450,615
3,728 9,260
5,527 22,951
T.187,654 __ 5.063,63L
140,883 {801,885)
{1,012,643) 15,301
786,584

871,766




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE -
pssiel Deloitte.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT
March 31, 2025

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The statemant of comprehansiva income s prepared based on material sccounting policy information
batiow which ana in accondasncs with tha historical cost basis and aro drown up in sccordanca with the Socdeties
At 1966 (tha “Sockties Act™) and tha Charities Act 19594 and other relovant regulstions (the “Chantios Ad”),
1. Cash donations arg necogresed on a cash bosis,

2. Grants mosved from MNational Councl of Socal Service [/ 5G Enable, Ministry of Soclal and Foamily
Danvelopment, Tole Board and Ministry of Education ane recognised on an accrudl bases,

3. Corebral Palsy Allianod SINQapors recopnises incoma whin it transfies ontrol of & good oF renders
SENVEDE U0 B CUSIOmarnr.

4, Expenciure relstes only (o oparating expenses ncurmed in the nunning of the Headquarters and are
recognisod on an scorudl basis.

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
{Charity Registration No. 00073 and
Societies Registration No. 0283/1957WEL)

SPECIAL PURPOSE REPORT ON
REHABILITATION CENTRE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AND STATEMENT OF RESERVES

YEAR EMDED MARCH 21, 2025




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
REHABILITATION CENTRE

SPECTAL PURPOSE REPORT ON REHABILITATION CENTRE o P Coi

In the opinign of the members of the Executive Committes of Cercbral Palsy Alliance Singapore
CONTENTS {the "Assaciation”), the statement of comprehensive income and statement of resoives (the "Statements”)
of the Rebabilitation Centre (the “Centre”) for the year ended March 31, 2025 ane prepared in all material
respects, in aocordance with the basts of accounting described n robes to the Statements and provisions of

PAGE the Socketies Act 1966 (the “Socleties Act™) ond the Charities Act 1554 and other relévant regulations
(the "Chanties Act).
Statemant by Executive Committes i
Independent Auditor's Rapon 2-4
5 OM BEHMALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
Statemant of Comprohansive Inooma EvEC e

Mobos o the Statormonts Fd

August 28, 2025
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INDEFENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

REHABILITATION CENTRE

Opinion

Wiz have audited the statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves (the “Statemaents®) of
the Rehabilitation (the “Centre™) for the year ended March 31, 2025, and the notes to the Statements,
including material accounting policy information, &% Sob out on pages 580 7.

In cur cpinion, the Statements of the Centre for the year ended March 31, 2025, presents fairly, in all
material respects, in accordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the Statements,

Basis for Opinien

Wi conducted our oudit In occerdance with Singopare Stondorda on Auditing ("5543%), Our reaponaibilitica
under those standards arg further described in the Avditor's Respansibilities for the Audit of the Statemants
section of our réport. We ane independent of the Cenfre in accordance with the Accounting and Corparate
Regulatory Authority Code of Professional Conduet ana Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities
{"ACRA Code™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 1o our audit of the Statements in
Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibliiities in accordance with these requirements and
the ACRA Code. We belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a hasis for our apinian.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

Wi drasy attention to the notes to the Statements, which describes the basis of accounting, The Statements:
are prepared to assist the Centre to meet the requiremants of reporting to the National Council of Soclal
Sendces ("NCSS™) f £G Enable (PSGET). As o refult, the Stabements may not be suitable for another purpose.
Our repart is intended salely for the Centre and NCSS [/ SGE and should not be distributed bo parties ather
than the Centre or NCSS f SGE. Our opéinicd is not modified in respect of this matter.

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor’s Report Therson

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the Statement by the
Cxecutive Committes, but does not induede the Statements and gur auditor's report thercan.

Qur gpinien on the Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the Statements, ocur réspansibility is to read the other information and, in
daing =0, consider whethar the other information is materially Inconsistent with the Statements o our
knowlerge shtained in the audit or otharwise appears to be materally misstated. If, hased on the work we
have performad, we concluda that there is a material misstatemaent of this other information, we are required
to report that fact, Wiz have nothing to report in this regard.

Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

REHABILITATION CENTRE

Responsibilities of Management and Executive Committee for the Statements

Management |5 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statements in accordance with
the basts of accounting described in the notes to the Statemants, and for such nternal contrel as
managemant determines s necessary to erable the preparation of the Statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In prépanng the Statéments, MANagement 15 responsinie For SESCERINgG THE LEntrd's alaity 1o continee as a
gobng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the gaing concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to Bguidate the Centre or to cease operations, or has no
reabictic alternativs bt boodn sn

The Executive Committee is respansible for overseeing the Centre's financip! reparting prociss,

Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Statements are free from material
misstatement, whether due to froud or error, and to lssue an awditor's report that includes cur opinion,
Reasonable afsurance 5 a high level of assurance, but & not & guarantee that an avdit conduched in
accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstaternent when it exists, Misstaternents can arise
froemn fraud o errod and are considersd matedial if, individually or in the sggregate, they could reasonabily
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Statements,

As. part of an audit in accordanoe with 5545, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
soepticism throughout the audit. We also:

{a) [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
crror, deaign and perfonm audib preccdurss reapongive te these risks, and obtain sudit cvidenes thot
is sufficient and appropriate to provide & basis for our opindon. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting foom error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional emissions, misrepresantations, or the overrsde of internal contred,

(b} Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the awdit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
affectivonads of tha Contra's internal contral.

{c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polickes wsed and the reaspnableness of accounting
estimates, If any, and refated disciosures made by management,

(d} Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concerm basts of accounting and,
based on the sudit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exists related to events or
ennditinng that may cact aignificant danbt an the Cantre's ahility o oantinas ag a going Macecn 1F e
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requiced to draw attention in our auditor's repon
to the related disclesures in the Statements of, if such disclosures ane inadequate, to modify our
opinipn, Our condlusions are based on the awdit evidence obtained up to the dabe of our auditor's
TEROIT. However, fUlure g¥ents or Conditions may cause the Cengre 10 CEase [0 CONGnue as @ going
CONGEMm,




Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
REHABILITATION CENTRE

{B‘} Evaane the gverall Pfﬁﬂm SITLICTUNE &Nl CONTENt of Uhe STaTeMsnTs, mudlng The disciosurnes,
and whether the Statements represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation,

Wi communicate with the Executive Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the dudit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal controd that
we identify during our audit.

%k%ﬁ

Pubdic Accountants and
Chartared Accountants
Singapare

August 28, 2025

212 Aotavad ezt | FURANCIAL WEAR 24725

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
REHABILITATION CENTRE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2025

INCOME
Rechargs of rehabilitation axpantes

EXPENDITURE
Mangower and related costs:
= Salories and related oxpendes
= Madical, incurancs and walfare expentes
= Training and rolated axponsaes
Ganarsl and adminstrative axpenses:
= Communications
= Irsurance
= Ayt foes
Transport chargoes
Suppiies and materisls
Replacernent of equipment
Miscallanecus axpenes
Upkeap and utilithes:
= Maintenamnon
= Utilities
FrogramimayProject xpanGes:
= Public education/campaigns.
Intornal services rendensd axpondes

Totml axponditung

Operating surplus, representing
total comprehensive surplus for the year

2025 2024
% L 3
5 210,448 4,820,067
4,737,220 4,386,911
31,700 34,530
102,125 59,802
3,949 3,988
4,184 2,732
13,328 11,828
787 1S
B2,924 43,37
5,838 5,793
48,745 54,250
70,585 81,939
23,114 19,254
(2,065) 3,789
108,147 81,060
5,210,448 4,820,067




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
REHABILITATION CENTRE

STATEMENT OF RESERVES
Mareh 31, 2025

Balance at Apnl 1, 2023 and March 31, 2024 and 2025

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

REHABILITATION CENTRE

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Tha statemant of comprehansive income and statement of resorves am prepared based on matenial
sccounting policy information balow which ang in accordancs with the historical cost basiz and arg drawn up
in pooordancs with the Socheties Act 1966 (the “Socaties Act™) and the Chanties Act 1994 and other relovant
rogulations (tha "Charfties Act”).

1.

Cash donations ana recogrised on o cash bass.

Grants received from National Coundl of Social Service / 56 Enabie and Ministry of Soclal and Family
Devvidopenant ara recogrised on an sccrul basis.

Carebral Palsy Alliance Singapore recogreses inoome when it transfers control of a good of menders
sErvice to & customer,

Programma fees are recopnised whaen the senices an rendered.

Expendture relates only to oporating expanses. incurmed in the running of the progresmme and ane
rpcognised on an socrusl bags.

Tha sccumulated fund ks restrictod for tha operations of this programme only, for the banafit of as

intended clients. In kesping with the funders'fdoncrs’ intent for the usa of the monses, the funds will
not be transferred out of the programm for othar purposes.
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE D e L1,
eloitte. sy
DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE oUE 2

LEus ]
STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Tel 45 BX24 E2ER
Faoc +4i% 6518 6166
e SIS IR
In the ooinien of the members of the Executive Committee of Corebral Folsy Alliance Sincacone
(the “Association™), the statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves (the “Statements*) INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
of the Day Activity Centre (TDACT) for the year ended March 31, 2025 are prepared in ol matenal respects, CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIAMNCE SINGAPORE
in accondance wilh the bass of accounting descoribed in noles to the Statements and provisions of the
Sccleties Act 1966 (the “Soceties A”) and the Chanties Act 1994 and other relevant regulations (the DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE
“Charities Act™).
Opinion

W have audibed the statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves {(the "Statements™) of
the Day Activity Centre ("DACT) for the year ended March 31, 2025, and the notes to the Staterments,
including material accaunting policy information, as set aut on pages 5 to 8.

OH DO AL OF MCHMORS OF THIC

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE In our gpinien, the Stabements of DAC for the year ended March 31, 2025, presents falrly, in all material

respects, in sccordance with the basis of accounting deseribed in the notes to the Statements.

-

Jj{ Basis for Opinien

Wie enndurted mar aedit in accordance with Singapnre Standards an Auditing ["S54s%). Our responcihilitees

under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Staterments

section of our report. We are independent of DAC in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Br Janke Regulatory Autharity Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants and Accounting Entities
Chisdrman FACRA Code™) together with the cthical requirements thot are relevont to our sudit of the Stotements in
Singapere, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibillities in accordance with these requirements and
thie ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have abtained is sufficient and appropriate W provide
a basls for our oplnion.

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting and Restriction on Distribution

W drany attention o the notes to the Statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statements
are prepared bo assist DAC to meet the requirements of reparting to the National Council of Social Service
["MCSS5") / SG Enable (“SGE") and Ministry of Sccial and Family Development ("MSF"). As a result, the
Statements may not b suitabla for another purpose, Our repart is intended solely for DAC, NCSS / SGE and
MSF and should not be distributed Lo any other parties other than DAC, NCSS f SGE or MSF. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

August 28, 2025

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other infermation. The other information comprises the Statement by
the Executive Committee, but doss nat include the Statements and our auditar's repart theseon.

Our opénton on the Statements does not cover the other informatéon and we do not express any form of
ffurance conchesion tharean

In connection with our awdit of the Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, n
doing s, conglder whether the other information Is materially inconsistent with the Stabements or our

1 knowledge obtaimed in the audit or ollverwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have perfermed, we conclude that there (s a material misstaterment of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,
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Deloitte.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE

DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE

Hesponsibilities of Management and Executive Committes for the Statements

Management ks responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Statements in accordance with
the basis of accounting described in the notes to the Stabaments, and for soch intermal contrad s
management determines IS necessary to enable the preparation of the Statements that are free from
material misstaternent, whether due to frawd or eroor.

I prwparing Ui Stalenmmits, mgnagennil b resposible for assessig DACS abiily b conbinue e a yuing
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going cancern and using the going concern basls of
accounting unbéss management either intends to liquidate DAC or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do So.

The Executive Committes s responsible for overseaing DAC's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Qur objectives are te obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Stabements are free from material
migstatemant, whether due to fraud or error, and 1o Issue an auditor's repart thit indedes our opinion.
Reasonabie asturance £ a high level of assurance, Bbub is ndt 8 guarantes that an audit conducted in
accordance with S5As will always detect a material masstatement when it exists, Misstatemants can arise
from frawd or ercor and are considered material if, indwidually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the sconamic dedsions of users taken on the basis of these Statements,

As part of an audit in sccordance with S5As, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
SCEPLICHEM IAFSUGNOUE the AUIE. We alss:

{a) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud or
errar, design and perform audit procedures reponsive to those risks, and obtain audit evideace that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detgcting & materal
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve
collusion, forgery, intentianal omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

(k) Obtain an understanding of internal contred relevant to the audit in ceder to design swedit procedures
that are appropriate in the dreumstances, but not for the purpese of expressing an opinign on the
effectiveness of DAC'S intarnal contral.

(c) Evaluatg the appropriatencss of asccounting policies used and the reasonablenass of accounting
cstimates, If any, and related disclosures made by management.

(d) Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refabed to events or
conditions that may cast significant dowbt on DAC'S ability to continue a5 & gaing concarn, [f we
conclude that a materal uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditer's repert
to the related disclosures in the Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify gur
opinion. Owr conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of cur auditor’s
raport. Howenrar, future events or conditions may cavse DAC to coace to continue as a golng concern.

220 s supon | ARG TERR 2475

Deloitte.

IHNDEPEMDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTER OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE

(2} Evaluate the cverall presentation, structure and content of the Statements, including the disclosures,
and whaether the Statements represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achiavid fair progantatian.

We communicate with the Executive Committes regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incleding any significant deficiencies in internal contred that
wi idantity during cur audit,

Doerte X Tosow 2

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singupone

August 28, 2025
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
March 31, 2025

Ly sanvices
= Maintenance of lsnd & buildng
Total oxpanditune

2025 2024

5 3
1,180/880 1,032,432
2616 LT
183,330 192,937
213,538 158,930
2 016 &
o s
145,578 136,841
18,665 6,945
1,347 2,116
4775 5328
4,967 6,231
5557 13,555
1,534 1,563
213,538 158,931
432247 434,206
44,531 107,362
7,792 6,393
2,082 1,510
7.660 7,564
867 366
Tois 150
a8 (10392
1,012 1,250
5247 553
1.404 1,163
9,550 8,394
H ¥
2,040 1,659
33,892 8,230
9,054 9685
11,726 11,294
30052 26,364

CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE
DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [cont'd)
March 31, 2025

Opera surplus, representi|
tn'lﬂu:}'ﬁprw:nmlﬂ Imm:?nr the year

Transfers from specfic fund
Surplus payable to NCSS [ SGE and MSF

2025 2024
s 5
156,617 .
41,915 106,852

{198532)  (105,853)




CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE CEREBRAL PALSY ALLTANCE SINGAPORE

DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE DAY ACTIVITY CENTRE
STATEMENT OF RESERVES NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Accumulated DA BASIS OF ACCOUNTING
fusred Fund Tetal
5 5 5 Tha statemant of comprehensive mcomae and ststement of eserves am poaganed based on matorial
accounting policy information below which aro in sdtordance with the historical cost basis and are drawn up
Balance st Apdl 1, 2023 1,090,672 547,087 1,637,759 in pcoordance with the Soceties Act 1966 (the “Sockthes Act™) and the Chanties Act 1994 and other relevant
riguintions (the “Chanties Act),
Oparateng defict, represanting
total comprahansivg loss for the year 106,852 (206, 852) & 1.  Cash dondtions are recognised on a cish basis,
Batance at March 31, 2024 1,187,524 440,235 1,637,753 2. Grants received from Nationad Council of Social Sorvice / 56 Enabia and Minkstry of Social and Family
Developmant ane necognesed on an aocrusl basis,

Cparnting deficit, representing
total comprehinsiv loss for the yoar 198,532 [#1,915) 156,617 3. Corebral Palsy Alliance Singapons mcognises incoma when & transfors control of & good o rendors
sanion 1o 0 DU,

Balance at March 31, 2025 1,396,056 398,320 1,794.376

4. Progpannre s are recuyise wie Ung services @iy nake e,

5. Expendture relates only to cperating exponses incusmed in the running of the programma and am
racognibed on an sccrual basis.,

6, Tha accumulated fund s estricted for the operations of this programmae only, for the benefit of s
intanded clients: In koeping with the funder'fdonors’ intent for the use of the monies, the funds will
ot ba transferred out of tha programmia for other purposes,

7. The specfic fund is used to help the financial needy chients in the Doy Activity Centre to subsidise thair
trarsportation feas, programma foos, puorchase of autistive rehatslitative sids and wolfane neads,
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE
THERAPY REHABILITATION

STATEMENT BY EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In the opinion of the members of the Executive Committes of Cerebeal Paliy Alance Singopore
(the “Aszooiation), the staterment of comprensaive imcomme and statema, of peseves (e " SlalmmaisT)
of the Therapy Rehatditation (the “Centre™) for the year ended March 31, 2025 are prepared in all material
respects, in accordance with the basis of sccounting described In notes Lo the Statemants and phovitions of
the Socheties Act 1966 (the "Sodethes Act™) and the Chanitles Act 1994 and other relevant regulations
{the "Charities Act").

OM BEHALF OF MEMBERS OF THE
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

August 28, 2025

228 Aotavad ezt | FURANCIAL WEAR 24725

- Dt & Toixbos LLF
Linicyae Enticy b, TOSLLOTITA,
® & et Wary
DUE Deznimcown 2
-0
Sangapart SG0000
Tet 165 BX24 8053
Fie =5 6538 B164
e ComAg

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE OF
CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIAMNCE SINGAPORE

THERAPY REHABILITATION

Opinion

Wi have audited the statement of comprehensive income and statement of reserves (the “Statements™) of
the Therapy Rehabllitation (the “Centre™) for the year ended March 31, 2025, and the notes to the
Statemants, including a summary of significant accounting policies, as set out on pages 5 to 7,

In cur apinion, the Statements of the Centre for the year ended March 31, 2025 are prepaced in all material
respects, in acoordance with the basis of accounting described in the notes to the Stabements,

Basis for Opinien

Wi conducted our audit in accordance with Singapare Standards on Auditing ("S5A57). Our résponsibilities
umider those standards are further described in the Audtor’s ResponsibWities for the Awdit of the Statements
section of cur report. We are independent of the Centre in accordance with the Accounting and Corporate
Fegulalu y Avllne iy Soslr oF P ofmedwea) Semied oo Ers for Pl Avcounidants sed Acoiar iy Ealilies
{"ACRA Code™) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled sur gther ethical respansibilities i accardance with these
reqguirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficsent and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Emphasis of Maktter Basis of Accaunting and MNestriction en Diatribution

‘Wiz draw attention to the notes to the Statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The Statements
are prepared o assist the Centre to meet the requirements of reporting to the Natioaal Council of Social
Service (“NC55") / SG Enable ("SGE"). As a result, the Statements may nat be suitable for another purposa.
Our report is intended sobely for the Centre and NCSS ¢ SGE and should not be distributed to parties other
than the Centre or NCSS f SGE. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter,

Information Other than the Statements and Auditor's Repert Thareon

Management is respansible foe the other information. The other information comgrises the Statement by the
Executive Committes, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report therean.

Qur ooinion on the Statements does not cover the other information and we do not cxoress any form of
assurance conclusion thareon.

In connection with our audit of the Statements, cur responsibility Is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information ts materially inconsistent with the Stabements or gur
knowledge obtained in the sudit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we
have parformed, we conclude that there i a material misstatement of this other infarmation, we are required
to report thak fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Statements

Management is résponsible for the preparation of the Statements in accondance with the basis of accountis
described in the notes to the Statements, and for such internal contred as management determines
necessary to enable the preparation of the Statements that are free from material misstatement, whieth
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Stabements, management Is responsible for assessing the Centres ability to continug as
going concemn, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going conoern bas
of sccounting unless managemaent cither intends to Bguidate the Centre or to cease operations, or has r
realistic alternative but to do sa.

Thi Executive Committee is responsible for overseeing the Centrd’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Stabements are free from materi
misstatament, whether due to fraud or arror, and to issue an auditar's report that includes cur opinio:
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
sccordance with SSAS will abways detect & material misstatement when it exists, Misstatermnents can ari
from fraud or ercor and are considered material If, indsvidually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably t
cxpected to influgnce the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Stoberments,

A5 part of an audit in accordanoe with SSAs, we axercee professional jedgemant and maintain profession
scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

(a) [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Statements, whether due to fraud
crror, de3gn and perform audit procodurcd reaponaive o thoae riaka, and obtain audit cvidened th
ts sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materi
migstatement resulting from franed is higher than for ene resulting from ereer, a5 fraud may invely
collusion, fargery, Intentional cmissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

[{] Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in ardér to design audit precedun
that are appeopeiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opénion on th
offectiveness of the Centre’s internal contral,

{c) Evaluate the appropristeness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountic
estimates, if any, and related digclosures made by management,

{d)  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the golng concern basls of accounting an
baged on the sudit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exists relabed to evenis «
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Centre’s abdity to continue as a going concemn.
we conclude that a material uncertalnty exists, we are reauired b0 drsw attention in our auditor
report to the related disclosures in the Staternents or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modi
caur opinion. Gur concusions are based on the awdit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor
report. However, fulune events or conditions may cause the Centre (o cease to continue 85 & goir

LT
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We comEnunicate. witly the Executive Conenitiee regaeding, amsg other neatbers, e plemmesd scope. and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we ldentify during our awdit.

Dhalusta ¥, Torsker

Public Accountants and
Charbered Accountants
Singapore

August 28, 2025
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT OF RESERVES
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
2025 2034 Accurmidatod
$ % fund
INCOME [
Grants from National Council of Socisl Service [/ 5G Enablo 257,496 258,097
Tharapy treatmant feas 13,853 15,608 Balance at April 1, 2023 [1,358,650)
Total incoma 271,348 269,705
Oparating surpius, represanting total comprahoengive incoma for the year 58,094
EXPENDITURE
Goneral and administrative axpansas Ealnnicn 8t March 31, 2024 (1,290,556)
- Professional rehabiltation foes 207,465 197,745
- Transpart chasges 3,639 3,480 Cperating sufpils, rerisenting tethl comproliondive incoma for the year 60,129
= Migcllaneous oxponas 115 386
Totsl expanditune 211,219 200,611 Bal st March 31, 2025 1,230 427
Operating surplus representing
total comprehensive income for the year 60,129 £8,094
5 &
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CEREBRAL PALSY ALLIANCE SINGAPORE ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

THERAPY REHABILITATION

NOTES TO THE STATEMENTS
March 31, 2025

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The statement of comprahantive incoma and statement of resenves are pripaned based on the sipnifics
accounting policies. below which e in accordanca with tha historical cost basis and am drawn up
sccordance wﬁ: the m:a; Act 1966 (the “Sociaties Act”) and the Charities Act 1954 and other relova We are stronger with the support of our partners, volunteers,
e croohed el e T donors and supporters.

1. Cash donations ane mcognesod on a cash basis.

2. Grants recanad from National Councl of Socal Service [ 56 Enablo and Ministry of Socal and Fam Thank YDU!
Davelopmant ara recognised on an accorual basss,

3. Corebral Palsy Alliance Singapore recognises incoma whan it transdfors control of a good or rende
SArion 10 b Customar,

You may donate to us via the following methods:

e ®

4. Programim fises ard recognised whan thi Services ane mndered,

5, Expirdure relates ondy 0o oparating apinses ncurmed in tha running of the programme and &
recognizid on an accrun! basis, E"“E

[

6.  Tha accumulated fund is restricted for the operations of this programma only, for the benafit of |
intended disnts. In keaping with the funderfdonon” intent for tha usa of the monies, tha funds w
mot b transferred out of the programma for other purposes.

S [

Pleass visit hitpe:jlopas.org.2g/donats Pleaze maks the chegus payabils to 'CRAT and mail it to
65 Pasir Riz Drive 1, Singapore 518528

CGash Donations Dionation in kind
Pi=ass oall 8585 5587 to make an Plaasa write in to donate@opas.ong eg
appointment
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